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@ill  asp nd )l gulra  ghc -
Jblhallg Guaaill dial yuiijg (naglgisill

Gleg pivall aaaiall aSpiull &)la] gulaa guid) -
bl

a6l < Lidvi] aSpi 8)1a] gulao guydy -

(o Guéaill aial gieg §jla] gulaa gnc -
.(Chairman’s Club) ugls jila puuill

auulbhag agglal uplio dxc Loyl Jub adg

Jaall (no Jasi Glsph (na Lajlw ayiyaiig

Jacg wnclinllg  cnajnallg  ¢njlaiiwl

wal adlall &3l (na Glgiw apiic dxal

tle ol gag .dibgll Jgyidl  &spi

J1gaill dlaxd §jla] ¢na gugyygllsy @aja

A\l d=ald go ddlall duwlaallg

QA il
Gyl yulaa

ALC Jgasu
wle alll

2019/09/04

go aiw 27 ga jish ghljaily apwll giai)
anlall @awll ¢yl (na lbasia &pall
Gy asph Gua il @ail .qislall Ggéng
gsals Gala enillg) «Jagla» cnallell jlatiwMl
ga anhll @awill (laule Algaiwdl Cuuail
Ggaip Qlspi ajlaY algiw 8 ja Gl @uwa
guugi wlc gblaib apwll Jac . jlaiiwl
gan ga aspill alailinl dSia éalelg
ajlaVl gulaal \liaag aplall @awil Gsja
.dlgliallg Allsill @uwly aSpi ahona jiaag
@uly @spd &)1a] gulaa guydy wili upia wnlgi

yalaa gne
ajlaul

gbhaily
Ulay aagilw

2019/09/04

tna aiw 19 ge 3 ji g glatlw apwll gialy
GljlaiiwVlg ayjlaill dwapnall Gloaill Jlao
Loy AVLaall ga aaell (na douwlg dpa) Riailg
Algaiwllig qaall dlilacg GlyLuiwMI ¢lA cha

.al<iall aslelg guallg @awill Glgwig

wna chwly jlaiivl ¢liy wal driaall ailo ag
@G (a cls asig adla @hgl apb Guya
ala alelinll (nle jiSill ga 3lgaiwllig 20all
@alapill cugsll wll ale @i .gaipall gaill
na ayjlaiiwlll arapnall aloaall Giya wl)
ap «digh»  nallell jlaiiwdl Gy aspb
didljag wibgig Jisii cna djliig 8)lali @ld
] 163Y @nil .Glelhall Wlita (na lspill
A Guyl dcganar plall jlaiiwdl ghya
Jlafiudll gl (nllg anlall @awlll Jlinls
aslaall (na onjlaill cnlalll clifl cna opjlosll
na Igic glsg guay gilsll apngsuwll dy sl
dj0 Jigh asph wll @nil Glaanll @Gija
dcgano (néd guyd) wilis 2010 @le (na i
aliall dale] atlac ajlalg aliall Jgoll gyl
auull anlgi aic dnlall @awlll &)l dlaldll
@lwi jlativMl ¢lja @jla] alaa gu i glatlw

gulhagnc
ajlaul

aana glatlw
u il grabi
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auilill daclall

Ullgguallg @lawall @ibwll agaaill

duwilly Lol &)1l gulaa clacl ga JS alnlgg alugguag @laa dlall gulaa Jac Glito saay
Js! dcgpgall Vlaalll s @ailialgg @aillgduag @aalaa yaai @it d1aaiill djlail
ajlaVl gulaa elacl clal ga JS Jac @uaéi @iig [al aaaaall adiljuallg adla diw JS cna ajla)
nill Allnllg dlblwll pag Lata lai .A1)ga aany <15l @udi Glpnga wwn &iwoiill ajlallig
aaqigall Glalnllg Alalwll gaigai dagana cuwd daana (nad dajaaiill a)lall lanigai @iy
-G)IMll yulaa go

:na 138l gulao Glggua @al go

Laaingig laiealjag il Jall hhag aspoill dlabodl anil jiwdl slaicl .1

aaawaiill &)1aVl clal @uail wlaaill ajaai 2

.ugiwllg ailspall adlall Glibul slaiclg digiwll éipasill aijlgall jlal 3

aulalall aflglilg dabillly @l il gani il alelaVlg Alulpnll aspill @ljill iaa ga asiill 4
1au Jga<all

Jac @hig dlwlw @Gag dlig laic alnalll aalgll dlagleallg dlilull daMwg daés glap .5
a1 Jga=all aralonllig alnalll

@alall wlpllig Jlall @]Ig.wi dua Allhia ga Galgis Lay aspinll Gasgn @lhi arlela aidlya .6
&l aic alyaei wle

lsll JU3 &)13Y1 gulaa aljlail

pitleall ifill jlicl gres 3381 2a Jlacll dhag aspill digiwll & pasill ayiljall slaicl |1
Asylill lailspong aspodl anle COVID19 aailal piba p<llg

JUA ga aspill Jla gy go 40% Jalei @auwi gu ] Gai auill (plall aliisVl apdi slaicl .2
whall ngilill gl

LAl dabiall gyilgall @l$all laag Cugsll anjgyl gruipl Ggull ¢na aspill @awl aljal 3
Jlall Glguwl dim anla i aaall (nal dsuiall @billg

alaiclg adlall Glilll any golall jlaVl wnle uégillg dadlall diwll ddlall alil slaicl 4
acga wijil a)laill 8)ljg dtblhay asuaiill d)la\l duogig aspill <lal ge auuaiill ajla\l s
aspill araga<ll dreanll ala<il

@aul| you g0 20% dunilg &adi alijl g1jgi wile dsalgally diogasll dreaall dpgill ga) .5

aabwa AMaw a glawall graabwall @aw JSI aiigs gula 20 Jalss la ol ¢nawll

dwpgillg (AlaléaiwMll arclgalg diadill dleujgill dabiall dlelpMl i.o.og ¢llag aspnll
.Hjjlg,!Jin'J.oé.xmué_oL('_j,__ubu_c_j.pjldln_c‘\JgHﬂJ@_JloJIé_huJIahﬁo.o1%¢uungb_dUul4

25
Hhé | aagsull | Cugsll | (g gni o) ..o dlgliallg Allsill @uils asph

na .2019 ] 2016 diw ga dlgliallg Glsill
gls «CLwail gsals (a dnlall @awlill Gija
&)Wl y)l6i jlan] ge Jgguma giljaily apwll
¢llag @Gulinllg Balaall alspiy Gleis Laga
@callg Juaill Gujd nd aalaa ga cjas
Jlial ¢na Ly hjga al gl las .gjlallg
dilac (na ¢llasg Gyblaall Wilbgg @uall
Jlao (na agill aiialy Jnoy aijlgall gng
Jalna xaaiena jus iy seluy aild @awlll
Las .allaall nalill gaallg usillg Gléanll
wa hahall alspd djlal (a bl ¢ljliy
G)1Y1 gulaa Juiai JU5 ga aiallg dygsll
go oy dileiwll @iy dswlg dlélc ajalg
Jio dlclhé (na Aléap wlc Jgnall 13l Gag
asill e adlall alspillg annll aleyll
atimall aijuua J\5 aul=illg arinill dgidlg
gihall ga G1a §)lak @l Ggaul Jlha na
clyasll) Galyallg AVlnill Jio dlclhd (na
&lwg Giauwlllg (&apnall Glaxallg (aliallg
alppniwallg  (Jghill  asipw  @sdail

aiiVarnll

wuggllsul @)y anle glaily spwll Jno
@gliag aially ¢phiaga d=aly ga §jaill ¢na
Ja (PGDFM) adlall aylaVl ¢na Lilsll cilwljall
«Ggullg &IVl awaiill L. N. Welingkar am<a

Aiall«plaga

2021 dullall diwll JU5 &jlaM1 gulaa Glelaial

6

5

4 3 2 1

glaixlll @d)

2021/12/28

2021/11/09 | 2021/08/19 | 2021/07/28 | 2021/03/21 | 2021/01/19

claixVMl ay)li

Jgaall

uniall

gn=ll @ul

v v v v

ay1al1 gulaa guyd)

alunll jiga (e

v v v v

&yl gulaa gl wili

wnle alll atc ggasuw

\ v v v

4)Ia\l yuaa gnce

el aana gladw
&l

\

\

\ \ v v

a1l yulra giac

\

\

\ \ \ v

a1yl yulaa gac

Glay axgrbw goljails

@Glivall cuws aspinll §jla] gulaa dlelaizl ypha Hhong Guuiillg Jrawill Gllbia Gubi @iy -
@biy (nallg Glitall ga gulillg galill cjalli Jas=ll @iy s &)1l gulaa Jasl aaiall
Jgad /i dlelpalg laia ajalall Aljliallg &)laVl gulaa dlclainl (Guwii aiais Junailly
GlclaizVl jplaa hang Cugnillg AlelaiaVl Jlaci
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:enly Lo &inlll @laa Jaui

wnle dala Glpili ool agaaig cnaglall Gaaall pyaig digiwllg dadapall adlall Glilull a=alja .1
.Gyl gulaa J16 ga laalaicl dipgillg aspill cnllall wagall

lailiy @i la dasyliag aspill adlall @ilgall wiile gl abbwall guélja GlihaMa dwlja .2
(Gaag gl)

Jigi a6 cnillg ey Glpi ¢l gpaag aspill (na atiall dwlaall Glwluallg thalall awlys 3
Aclall dea lals Alp<ill ada L,lLlJuia,gaajg_o aspnll ¢nllall wagall wnle

lnll ali asuiall dwlall Glaylillg guilgall aspill aljill ga asiill 4

wlalall Gaaall ga Jalll (nle Glja g1jig «najlall Ablwall udlja g2a d1jga dlclaial aéc .5
Al ablwall wélja wlb gi @ialll ulb wilc zlis.@alall ¢ea la Jsg

gLy aaj\ll duaianill Alelll A4 @i 2é ail ga aslillg «nldlall Guaaill p)lai 2ilii é=alja .6
el ada (na dyjlgll dlhaMall

Al (Guaaill ajla] alliislg Jac dhag (Glita aoalja 7

A1aii (na laiilcla waa ga Gaaill Jall aspidl cna endalall Guaaill &)lal Jlacl anle wlpol .8
12y anlall Glaaallg Jlacll

dlalgag dinlll (nle lavyel daslall ailayl dabi il d=alja jj6i Jal Joiwa Gdaa gu<i .9

nlalall @uaaill &)jla] (na dsiall GlelpaVlg Aluluwdl &lsil (nfasall slaicVlg d=3lall. 10

A9 @apui gl gyl ablbwall qudlja gusi asle] gl gusin )11 gulaal duogill 11
aulsil

:ayllall diwll JMUA dialll aljlail

wlc dala Glpili ool agaaig cnaglall Gaaall jyéig digiwllg dadapall adlall Glilull a=alja .1
L@alaicVl ajIa\1 yulaal Aipgill ga)g aspunll cnllall wagall

ngiwdl (ulalall Guéaill )i d=alja .2

aspill (na auslall AlelpVlg Glwluwll = ile dalivall Gliaaillg a\a=ill d=alja 3
Ayl (uajladl abibwall Gaaa alsil auanig gusi a1l gulaal dogill 4

ASpil Alylad elalall Guaaill jjlai dsalja 5

Jlall Glgwi aiia ulis w(nle zlis Guaaillg jblaall ajlal aniial Jnar &)l gulaal daogill .6
il Jna ugagr cnblall
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2021 adlall il e ajlall gulaa Glalsa g1jgii dlagas<ll diaall wll dipgill 2a) .6

.20216._[JloJIdJ.LuJJLaJln_chgag alaiclg draga<ll dieanll ad<el dgeall .7

Laog Guiialll ga Jsi polall @Gliwall jlyalg aspill jblaall aial ge (Graaill aial Jna alaicl .8
guiiall Jna &)gpar (uolall Jlall Glgwl aia jla

Alg A @S wnll phé alga wna asylill aspoldl gls Jua<islaicl .9

jglais V Loy lmaswll aspnll <lpig gu wnle Gdalg anill dragas<dl digaall wl| dngill ga).10
aspinll Jla gl o 10% dwi

.COVID19 aailall lallaci jili (haag «gp ¢na dlplall ljghi @alg asuill <laig Jlaci asilia .11

a)lalll yulaa glal

cllag daillgiwag lailialo ang) (@Glita (Gag aic 46iiia dniva glal Jusiis &)1l gulaa @géy
guataiill ji¢ ajlall gulaa claci ga WIS sac guei @is ¢ .aalaa clai wnle gulaall daclwal
Aaijgnsl dojWll Magall ggeials gao gilainall <Lacll t] aaloyl alidall glalll03a (g
go ayaVl gulaa cnasg M el gi e Gjlall gulaa alal lallaci e dlgguall glalll ada Jaaiig
glallada Jlacl ge ailggua

:a)13)1 gulaa e dsiiiall dldiwall dnnaiall glalll ge i (il Layag

:lavirag daialll Jasuui ayjli
aaal Cugsll dnjgr Ggw (na aspiull @auwl aljal Jué la dia (i 2019 @lell Aia @lsda dialll gl
dial ge [mlna @i 2021 paagi 09 Aujlisg ail ] ajlalll gulaa daa ga cuilaiy Lay Glgiw G

Jlall Glguwi dira jljal laag pblaall &jlal

:0aall

hilgnllg alall pylaill doalpar Gleiy lata dulleay ailligguas @liéll ¢na djlalll gulaa daclua
a1V gulaa (] @ajll Gluogill ga)g alalall

:ayllall diwll JU5 Lailclaialg dialll claci

5 4 3 2 1 slaialll @é)

2021/11/09 | 2021/08/19 | 2021/07/28 | 2021/03/18 | 2021/01/19 elaizVll ayjLi

jgaaall wniall gnell @ul

v Vv Vv v v GLaaill ainl ) wnle g alll aie ggasuw

v v v v v GLaaill ainl gc &u ! el aana glalw

v Vv Vv Vv v @Guaaill ainl gne wnilauay auw enle paiaa
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:lminag lali<ii Ay jlig dialll cbaci

gi=i gl wliiil @iy lg 2021/10/17 ay)li Ada [@al)a] @i 26 aspill ggsi i aialll Jusibi @iy @l
Jaiwa &jla] yulaa gac guei gl wlaiil jga aialll Jsibi @iy wgw (Jéiua &3] yulaa gac
.41\l gulha Gaa ga vuilais Lay Glgiw G\ @ialll aiMlg daa ¢gsi wgug aspall

:dialll @laa

cliaclg dialll claclg &)lall gulaa clacl Jjeg gusi Galclg gusig apdiyill Jgu) aogill 1
oulaall (] G la gy Aliogill @yadig dyasitll &)l

gramlwall xalll dLigb allnall ga dajaraiill Gjlallig éJla\gluub_.ong_cTGT.élio cuolai glap .2
cuuliall alé ll jlb] pa

Glalkallg ayaraiill ajlaVl elsf gu aaplg adlle Gla .3

Iangni) dlipgill @iadig (j,gj,l,é_ilﬂlfjJIJ\JIGT.dISn d=alja 4

Jatwall &j1aVl gulaa giac ge allaiudl aap claiil @ac ga asiill .5

Alaiclll ajlall gulaa nle lavyeg dullall diwll dasgall pjoidealja .6

alilullg Glagleall wnle Jgnall &jlall gulaa ik arii gnill ablbiall Gubi aais ge jaga
cwliall Gégll (nag Gués Jsin

a1\l Gu b e auwliall Glylyall AlaiV aaj\ll Glagleall aa aile &)laVl gulaa clach aigji @iy
Jolgillg aallell gi .aailaljill clagll ga @aisail auwliall alagll (na aspill ¢na diLaiill
wlalg a1§) Guaai Juwg ajlall dlac gulwi ga aiwaiill ajlalllg ajlall gulaa gu Jleall
Guanil afMaiwlll gany Lay aiaiill ajlalllg ajlaVl gulaa Gldggua gu Jna clia .aspill
a)13\1 gulaa clael gu Grwiill winle &)laV1 gulaa o gual Jasug .allnall ulavig aspill laal
Glclaial ad9) gulaall @géig aajill Glilullg Glagleall ¢lli (nle @algnal daaiill ajlallig
Glblii g dnadall dlagleall ddialiag ayjlall Jlaclll pjlai dayl aagaiill a)lall ga aijgs
aspill

aillill aaclall
&yataiill &)lallig ajlall gulaa digrel dclasii (nga ga goladii jlisl

GlalSallg Glagiyill aial Jysii Glylhia Gubi ge 83

Glapdyill dinl Jasidiy Jaiwa djla] gulaa gre guei gl wliiil jga &)1l gulaa @géy Wgw
gulaa clacl jLislg audyi ¢nd daclwall P2y Jaiwall gnell @aia cbacl @i\l ga Glalsallg
awuliall dljlaallg aspill Ablinl wws aiwoiill ajlall ;Lz')_ch galaall glal :.Lt')_cig ajla\l
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jblaall &)lal aial .2

:lmiaag dialll Jasud Aujli
aaal cugsll apjgr Ggw wna aspivll @awl 23] Jué la Aia (nf 2019 @lell dia @liia dialll gl
aial ge lalna @i 2021 paagi 09 Ayjlisg ail V] ajlall gulaa daa ga wulilaiy Lay Glgiw Ml

Jlall Glguwi aia jl6l laag @Guaaill ajlal

:0aall
J\ o aspnll @ljilMlig pblaall ajla] cna aula gl aildgguar clagll gna &)la\l gulaa daclwa

413U gulaa (] dajMl Glogill ga)g aspill lal =i il jblaall d23lja

:ayllall diwll JU5 Lailclaialg dialll claci

5 4 3 2 1 slaialll @é)

2021/11/09 | 2021/08/19 | 2021/07/28 | 2021/03/18 | 2021/01/19 elaizVll ayjli

jgaall uniall gnell qul

Vv Vv Vv v v Jblaall @jla] dial gutd) wnle g alll aie ggasuw

v v v v v blaall &jla] ainl gc &u il grabi xana glalw

Vv Vv v Vv v Jblaall a)la] aial gc wnilaua avw enle pataa

:nls Lo ainlll (alava Jauni

ga aslillg a1Vl gulaa ga l@alaicl J1a pblaall ajlal Glwluwg Glagilyiul a2aljag slac] 1
aspiill dihilg @23 ga lapwlii

dclos wnaa daljag jblaall dulia oyl jblaall §)jla] ja dardall dijgall jjloill d=alja .2
aspnll gna jblhall guliag dasulia Gleljnlg dahilll dalcelag

@uadig aaai wnle §jaMl gulaa daclwa jblaall §)lall awalsll @hillg ajlgall djag glao .3
.Gaaigall jblaall agan aspill jglai @ac ¢ga aslillg aspall ¢na Jguaall jblaall agan

@adig aallell aly bl ga aspill &y @agai gi 2Jidall dMal=illg dléanll d=alja 4
GVl gulha ] @ildy arwliall Aluogill

Glalkallg Glaudiyill @ial .3

HURY ||
anlall Cﬂ.dljn.llg Gyl ,g.ls_u"w iy Lara alspiull Gasga TJ.].Q GL6ni (na ajIaVl gulaa daclwa

&a)15\1 gulaa Ll audyill dalelg aubiyill Jgudy drpgillg &y aaiill &)lallg &1l gulaa cbacly
aljlaallg AlalisVl d=alja (] @aalbil clalkall aplall alwluwll 2159g (@iiaiill djlallg

.aalisall alalall Aflpd aaaig éjlall gulaa dignel &iglhall
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2021 al=ll g dagiaall alalsall glu wil Larag
&)1\l gulaa clacll Liljallg Glalsall :igi

aj1aVl gulaa cbacil Liljallg Glalsall

asylill alspidl JAS ga bljallg Glalsall @Ul aspill J\5 go biljallg alalsall

Lljallg Glalsall apiall bljallg alalkall | apsiall Lljallg Glalsall ”IJLIQ'S‘IJ“
(el.a)anlill (e.) (e.) ( d"J)L?jJLgm aac (nllaa)

clacll

wilg Il
?LOI.SQ a1 all U\J_DU.LO‘U gl alalka GLOI.SQ b UJ_QTJ

glalglalse | 2 nao g Ny

0 0 0 0 0 22,000 0 5

auaraiill &)la\l Liljallg Glalkall iyl

@l aspill U5 ga biljallg Glalsall wilaal

AAC

Glalsall (Ligiw) (¢l.5) anlill Lljallg Alalsall upliall

& paiall Aaiil
(¢l.a)

alalsa wilg) Gligali J gSwdy | SIAT |gao goli| - wilgyl
digiw | Gljbl | aclaisl | aloigo digi ]

0 29,575 3,795 12,170 0 6,463 0 283,972 6

)Ml gulra J16 0 draizall GlélSall dwliw ge d1ymga Glalil dif Elia y<i alg

dasull aaclall
audlall pléill aalji glan

aullall yi)léill aaljig doluy d1apaiill aj1aVlg &)laMl gulaa Glamsei

ajgni lapjc @iy aspill adlall plaill gl &)la\l gulaal Lulis am<illy daaiill 4)1a\l dald
@iy ail Las .alisii 2iliig Glily ga aspill adlall wilgall aals )i Llailg «dlaleg datlw
aiauaiill ajlaVl gig Jlall Glgwi il J16 o daaigall adgall ainnlhall juleall Gag @alac)

Glilull ¢lli adag @av e dlggua

lailily gy p6ill 1aa JUS ga graalwall dslwll gnw eni ¢na aspd é)1a] gulaa aaeiyajgalg
deb\JI(oJ;ggm_Q_ﬂlliauﬂ_c&[_égﬂh;Lac‘\Jlgoan 1 (ald adg ad1dag dlaleg datlw éjgni allall
ASpidl AMaw cna Aaa<ill 1Ay
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ainl gaig .ajaaiill &jlaVlg &)Vl gulha alalkar aplall juleall gpglg dallaci &)lal
wlc lapjcg laalaicl @il &jlall gulaal Glalkall pjidar laiingi gap dlalallg Glawdyill
.aspill dolell dreaall

gc <ljaallg a1aaiill &)lallg ajla¥l gulaa licl dagiaall Lljallg géliallg Glalall j1)éi
2021 lsll

ajaM1 gulaa cbachy hiip la pla JSiiug aspill wnal giiall jalgallg Glalsall Gwluw goala
<ljaallg aauaiill &jlaVlg

guilgall Glilbhia ga wuilais Lay ¢lag &)1l gulaa cbacll jalgallg Glalsall @lai aspill guii
aspinll abyf gnalo ga10% alalsall (illas)] jglaisVl dya aasgallaclgag (ugsli algs (na dsyiall
ol gl aspill Jla guiy ga 5% ge JaiVl graabwall Gl jgig (lblinVlg «“\aiwll @ni <))
wlc asalgall @iy gig .(aspill ¢uulwill @lhill (na aile pgnia ga Las LA ga ilcl duwi
aungi lc cliy ¢llag «ngiwll laclainl (na dalell dreaall J1é ga éjlall gulaa bact alalsa
zli «alalsall (nalll aall ga Jéiwall ajlaVl gulaa gnc clac jgaug Glalsallg Glaudiyill dial
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- :cnubwill @lhill laib @il aspill dndiiil (b Lata

wlsyl Jair aaleiall alilasll gaalll wnleg Cugsll alga oyl ol Jaill Alilac guaay @lall .1
4y pll Alolgall Jilwg go dluwg aul

aaraAll allllg Glagallg Glspallg alislidl glgil guaa slpiwlg jlatiwlg palig gug lpd .2
Qygsilalga )lag Jala algall Jbig erjaulig ol Jéillg dlgliall dajll dlwg dilg dlisillg

(aclinll aalell aiiall adalga a=i) alp aii lau lal gi ol Jaill apla aclio i ughi 3

Iaclgil aalsy gilayl wyleig djanallg ayjlgll giladl w(nlc dlgliallg gadiullg gadaill Glilac 4

aalsiall aliglall Glhaag agllg d i tnilgall cLililg dilupg Jisuiig é)lal cna as)jlaall .5
DLl 1Az,

.acgaaall bliil laib ayigyisiVl éjlaill dhdil gLas dwjlaa .6

ol Jaillg algliall Jlach ahiipall Wiallg alaaall el aaj\ll cnilwall palig d@alal .7
«njalig

Jalgul Alspdl Msgg jalgull (ugaig jalgdl Alaasg aclgil guaar ool Jaill .8

Alyiliallg ulsil aailwall il Gloaall Jadi enillg Gljlaall &)lalg Jaill laas aals @uadi .9

2020
wniygs jlisa

(4,363,973)
58,644

500,000
52,962
18,072

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi

2021
wniygs jlisa

(9,554,025)
284,635

27,452
23,751

(3,734,295)

(9,218,187)

(6,000,000)

(56,540)
(61,107)
(543,061)

(3,000,000)
5,143,935
(148,329)

(56,946)
(675,963)

(6,660,708)

1,262,697

(1,108,722)

(6,177)
4,541,676

(867,214)

16,124
3,426,777

3,426,777

2,575,687

1,288,193
(1,288,193)

806,566
(806,566)

(=uli) aaall @1asill Gléaaill glu
2021 jrauus 31 (na daiiall diwll

alaluyl

jlaiiwVl dnduii

7 Glaag Glsliaa lpi
Ulaag dlsliaa g1 (pa Glnaia

JisT @leniwl ajia Gl ailill gilagll (na aspall (nalo

10 Jaubl ailli ga
5 daliwa aflga Glalyl
5 aaliwa abji Gleyjgi Alaly)

il (na daxdiwall &aéill Glaasill (nalp
il

Jugaill ahdiii

12 dcgasa alyji Gleyjgi
13 daliwa Joll drana gpa
«alwg yrg)al Gcgaaa Jigai wlllsi

Joli agac aljill gc dcgana Jigai w@lISi

2liall Joi gc paliagac Glegaaa

(tna daadiwall) go aailill aaaill alaaaill (nalo

J1gaill ahiduil

Jal=all asillg asill (na gadill gnalo

awiz] e Jig il
Jlis1na Jal=all adillg Aaill

10 Hauwa 31 wna Jaleall adillg ad6ill

dadi ¢ GMalea
@lxaiwMl (G dlagaga anl] alaly]
Jolill agac Gliglha il Alaly)

«ngall Jéill dhiijall 2ilnillg =030l ddlall alilyll ada ga lzja JSihi 24 (] 1 ga daapall alalagl gl
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl
2021 prawia 31

Glalnalllg arwlhall awluwll (na Glpsill 2.2

wa daxdiwall ¢llil dlilaa agaaall daulall Alildl alac] cna adgihall Guwball Glwlowdl gl
@ai @l .2021 pilix 1 U_o=IJL|.'|LcI o i enill il puleall Gubi clitiwb (Gdsbwll aullall Giwll
Ay juy @l gslg Jalo AT Jaei gl puuai gl jlisa ol jiall Gubill acgaaall

dcgaaall J16 ga déihall G\ba<illg Glpwaillg daiaall pulsall 2.2.1

alildl inle pili sl g gslg 2021 diw wna dja Jgll Alpuwaillg Maa<ill ga agaell onpwi
.Acgaaall deaaall dullall

9 dulall pyléill cnlgall jliall wnlc GMiaei :2 dlayall - Gailéll GVaal orjlicall 2Up)]
4 dullall pyléill cnigall jleallg 7 aullall yyléill cnlgall jlieallg 39 nlgall Guwlhall jlieag
16 dullall pyléill cnigall jlieallg

‘-. u" m . : . 1 L-.I . L Q 1 o8, eooe d-.l-é £ Q c . G 1 o 3-6_."
[niwl @i laaic deaarall adlall Alilull wnle Glpilill 2a Jaleii @idga Gleclac] G\ia<ill @
Jblaall ga lyei adall Jaadl Jaall égidl gu gogyeall dailall Jasa

:aiVll ala=ll Gl pall A\ba<ill €lli ganii

apdlia diglhall &iaéill Glaasill (na alp<ill g dyaéleill alp<ill ulbiy gnall inlasll | jall

aspall Jalsy Lay piall dxilall jew (qa Glusis laga Jal=ill @iy ¢uay pUoll dtlac Jia

gl axilall jauw (na

ddlc wdg gg> Gugillg dlayinill bgail jgul Qliv] jlb] cna diglhall dlju<ill alawll <
bgaill

@l lazic alnaia Gjgny dxaaall Gllhiall clorinl éjgyp ga Glspull Gdga cloc] @adi <
Jblaall dnei aitS jblaall ga L jéi adlall a4l @iini

A

dcgaaall @jigig .dcgaaall d2aaall adlall alibdl (le pili lal gsi @l A\ba<ill ada gl
.Jg=aall djlw ani laaic ahiéiwa Glyia cna dila<ll ljjuall @laiiwl

16 dillall yyléill cnlgall jlieall inlc GMia<i - 2021 g1igs 30 a4 -19310g51 CLO.LSU..O.”J.DI‘.L” dljliial

J4a=i - -19a10g5s daleiall palill aljliial 2020 gila 28 ¢na dgall auwlaall pylea gulaa japl
Gubi ga gy pliwall tlac] A\aeill aiai . palill agéc 16 adlall pjlaill ¢nlgall jl=all wle
atalill polill aljlioV palill aée Jua=i drwlaa gliu 16 ddlall jjlaill ¢nlgall jleall alabig)
jlial gls13] lo @uéi @ac jaliwall jlisg 26 Glac [ pa laig<l 1141 1911695 cligl dpiilia dyiis
1Aay @@gdy (il poliwall @géy . polill adel Jua=i Jias jpgall ga -19a16g51 @Gleiall polill
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d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 jrawaia 31

.Jgilall 1aag lay agauall agaall jlb] (na lablii d pblal dajilll aljléellg GVgaiall ¢llai.10

Jlai adla halha (na Iajlaiiwl (G yb ge @il aspill wal éjagiall adlall gailgall JAiwl 11
.dnpiia Glang AlSph Jué ga

. ull Jaillg gawldl g13aig Jraaillg dlgliall Glaas @1a6i.12

wileg Cygsll alga jlag Jals Laclgil wlitay slgallg gilall ooyl Jaill Glilac gran @lall 13
airaill diglaisil algallg aliallg agaglig drilwllg aalsll giladl Jaii aaleiall clilasll il
Jaill Jilwg ga alpwg ¢l

¢lyidii gl aalina lal ggsi gi @l aspiill jgaug) baa @il aspill alwal dlaiwllg @@will ¢llai.14
lavlcl quéni ale laiglei aa nill g lallach déauub Mlaci Jglji enill alimall ga ang ol
joug (lay lmanli gl gl alitall aia oy gl ¢yl gl tudii gl lag o)Lall gl cugsll gna
.J15g5 gl auigild aspis cugsll dlga oja gl Jala Lail djgsiall dhdilll d pilia @il aspill

Aol laihdgil dalb Al gi alasa gl alilaa sl dhidiil @lall @bl aspdll jgag

aspiull cuaalua Jué go 2020 pauus 31 (a dumiiall diwll deasall adlall alilwl slaicl ai
.2021 yuyla 31 cna @il

dcgarall auwlhall GLwbowll tna Glp<illg alacMi Uul.u.li 2

alacVl gulwi 2.1

Julea gulaa ge djalnll adlall pylaill daulgall juleall =I.o_og.] d=eaaall dlall Alildl alac] @i
.audgall drwlaall

Glagagallg épaliwall Ul elifiwl draglill aalsill iaral loag agaaall adlall Glildl slac] @i
aauall 1bag lawlia @i il i dl alalddl Alalpdl A ga alalell aaréll @jaall adlall
alalsll

aspil oyl lacg dpuiyl alasll Jiay ol (risgSl ligall dsanall ayllall alill gy @i
@Vl

A\La<ill yus<ig 2020 diwl deaxall ddlall dlilull ga (Galgii ¥ adibwll diwll glha a1 gl
3ol cna Jnoilly gua ga Las alyall dale] Glila<l [@glya] @i enill
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl
2021 prawia 31

16 cnigall drwlaall jLiea inlc GMia<i- agndall @ladiwMl J16 Glnaiall :Glasallg Glisliaall

16 (nlgall annlall jlea wile Miagi 2020 gila (na adgall dunlhall julea gulaa janl
@niy @gai gi ga alidliall giai wnillg agnaall @ladiwl J1é Allpaiall :alasallg Glsliaall
Glagallg alsliaall agir ga i i gu @alsi ga Glagallg Glsliaall agir gu ga GMpaia ¢l
a6, yhlly Jrsibill sl ggsi gVl d1jgnll dllallg gdgall wnl] Jolll cliay Jgogll alla (na clag
wll<ig agitll aia (Jia gu ¢pa G\lnaiall aliiall Jouwsi U3 ga \JJJ G)1\1 16 ga dagndall

Hilwall gf ab¥1 gap agidl el Hlii]

a1 Mg 2022 pilix 1321 gi cna Tadi anill digiwll agaaall adlall aliludl Glyia anle Jua<ill ¢op
djia g}ﬁid,glumngm‘olsiuu\J.l daliall dla=allg uISJ.mn.II:g_uuﬂ_cumJJJJTJG.Q_ubJu.Q
&a Jg¥l Jaa=ill Gubi aliiall @l alls (na dngj=a

.dcganall inle ¢pala pili Aa<ill ggsi gi gagiall ji¢ ga

clal] ally na «10% duwi» jLisl gav @gupll — dullall Glgalll 9 aulall pijlaill cnigall jlisall
dulall Gluglhally OlyicMl

adlall plaill adgall juleall slac] dilac wle 2020-2018 Glgiwll digivl Glipwaill ga cjas
Juasill ganis .9 adlall jjlaill (nlgall jli=all wnle Wasi (nlgall duwbhall julea gulaa jani

@l jilM1bg i W\inl whaa Jga au i wrall @uaill gap aldiall laayai il @gull Jga Glabgi
hoa @guwill ada Jauii .ol ¢nllall @l jilMl bg i (e & jaga djgn Jaall gi apaall enllall
gl daawall agquill (nle alaisia (pyaallg yyidall gu lard daliwall gi axawall 2llall elli

wle Joa=ill laa alitiall Guhi 5l Wyhll ge ald gpyéall gl giisall J1é go la] daliuall
laia @gai (il digiwdl adlall Glilull éjia as1 gi wna dlaliall gi alasall ddlall alglhall

4ja Jgll Jua=ill Gubi aliiall

20 2022 yilis 1321 gl na Tadi anill asgiwll a=anall adlall Glibdl alyia aile Jua<ill (oo

alaliall gl @aeall adlall abglhall (nle G\a9ill dcganall @Gihiw . jSiall Gubilly alawll
Jall Jua=ill Guhi aliliall lala @gai will digiwll dgaaall adlall alilull ajia =i gi ¢na

.4ja
.acgaaall inle rala pili A\ya=ill ggsi gi gagiall ¢ ga

(2 &lapall) a1l G¥a=al ¢njl=all Ao

AU\ ga ailill alayall 2020 gubhwei 27 (na (gulaall gi) ddgall auwlhall julea gulaa pii
(lgall dunlaall jlieag 9 adlall pjlaill (nlgall jleall aile GMya<ill—aailall jlewll (v jlieall
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asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 jrawaia 31

yubls 1931895 @Gleiall Jolll jliol ge ailill polill Glegda (nd JuRi ool lwidl JUdY
Jugill Jias @l 13116 édlall jjlaill (nigall jlieall hag jusi o ¢gan lay wwing il déy phll
Juolill adel Juaei

@lé 19 arags anily pili jlpaiwd 1jhi gslg 2021 giigs 30 (in Jua=ill 13a Gubi jjaall ga gls
30 nin (nlasll jpall G djia aa) 2021 gujla 31 ¢na adgall aunlaall juleal ¢nigall gulaall
Japi 1291 gi cna Tagi anill asgiwll d2anall adlall alild! Glyia aile Jua<ill ¢y 2022 guigy
laila ¢lI3 gag 19-a10g51 ddleiall palill ljlial (nle Jgnall dcgaaall @ai @l gslg .2020

18y agawall Gubill §)id ggn¢ (na Jg=aall ¢njlw arng lasic cnlasllj pall Gubi @jisi

Ay puii @l gslg Gjalo pulea 2.3

d=aqall adlall Aliledl jlap] agjli anis A=y pwi @l gslg Ajap anill Alpawoillg juleall gnly Lara
.Jg=aall ayjlw ani laaic ¢l Jsai (ia juleall ada (Guhi dcgaaall (ngii .dcgaaall

3 ddlall pyléill cnlgall jhsall inle Gla<i - cnaialoall jLb)I wl] Gieaya éLa)

3 adlall jiylaill cnigall jlieall (nle CMLa2i 2020 gila (na adgall duwlhall julea gulia japi
&LVl JIatiwl ga A\yasill ada ga Pi2llg .cnataléall bV wl] areaya d)li] — Jlactil 20
JRMI (nl] @reoja éjlal 1989 diw wna jalnll adlall Glilull pycg alacl jlbl ll aeayall
Gllbiall (na bgala ju<i i Ty gi gga 2018 yujla na jalall adlall jijlaill (uaialaall

« adlsial

Jylaill enlgall jhially 63JI9JIu')IJJ'_c\JIin:hnunlLé.cl@g:JldpuanlHlsmwd;anLbilnﬁ
GlaljilMl e @qilillg « Gubill cnilill @gull» JAs dlnjbnjlﬁbJ.DJIgTalJ.ﬁllJIm!L.Li;UdeLoJI
Glpwaoi aial pnai gT 37 (ndgall aunlhall jhiea Glhi gap ojaii ¢nill dlainall dliglhallg

A4lnadia djgni l@asi allh cha «dlpall 21 adlall pylaill adgall puleall

Ju=all gav dajlgll adial alablinVl ausgi dadgall auwlaall julea gulaa j3é . adgll guai cnag
ausjall §LYI Jlariwly filii ¢! enillg dlainall Alagagall dslsiall 3 ddlall j)laill (gl
Aadlall aliludl gyeg slac] jlb] wnl)

2022 plix 1 a1 gl ¢na iadi anill digiwdl d2aaall adlall alibdl alyia iile A\ya<ill onpwi

.dcgaaall inle rala pili oof G\a<ill adal ggsi gi gagiall ga gul
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl
2021 prawia 31

2023 pilis 1 a=s gl wna Tari il agiwldl Glyioll 1 (nlgall awlhall jliga winle AMyaill ¢npwi
gy agaljl] pe alabiy] @aéy 2 awjlaall gly wile AMaeill gU Tihi . j<iall Gubilly alawll 2a

Jg=a0 glypw ayjli gla «dpwlall Glwlpwll alaglea wile ayagall Glagleall wyyei @Guhi
Laljl] g OMya<ill el

.Gcganall arwlhall Glwlowldl Glalpal anle La pili aanil A\ga<ill pili @uéisaniacgaaall gl

2uaqill gulwi 2.4

2021 jrauya 31né Las dsylill [ailspig dcgasall alall alilull dgaaall adlall alildl gaii
LS Lita o &j12ia Glaile (na Ggan Lal ggsi gi jblaal dcgaaall ysy=ii loaic & hwll Gaaii
nle [aiphpw JU5 go Glailall elli ile jyifill ale 8)aé1l layal 9gsig laé paiiwall aSpill (na

1214 jaiiwall aspill

:acganall inal ggsi lazic héa lata patiwall aSpill inle dcgaaall phiwi.daana djgny

arngi inle aglall ajaall lmaiai gnill adlall (Ggaall i) lawa paiiwall aspill anle dpapwll <
(lara paiiwall aspitll aplall alnll Gla dbdilll

g ‘lala jaiiwall aspill (na lais)lia ga éu<ia Glaile (na (Ggan gi jblaal =il <

L@ilafle wnle pilill (na laga paiiwall aspill anle laipghrw @layiwl anle jaall <

lAa jyjeilg .aphuwll dwjlaa il ¢ragi Cugnill (Ggan aulel gb yljial ¢lia ale JSiiu
paiiwall aspill alilaa (Ggan gi Cugnill Ggan aulél ga Jab dcgaaall hainilaaicg (plyialll
wle [@ipghpw waa @uaiaic dlnll Ali wghllg Gilaall aals lajlicl (na dcgaaall sl layga

I3 (na Loy lava paiivall aspll

lara paiiwall aspill (na gl Glgplll gnlals ga @ilall gnadlsill wuijill <
w Pl analeill Aluiyill ¢pa axilill gaall <

Judi g hllg gilagll cils 13] lawa paiiwall aspill wle @iphiw (hao @udi dcgaall arei
laaic aslill aspill graaiiay .aphuwll ailill Jalgsll ga jisi gi anlg Jalc (na Gljisi agag anll
dcgaaall 384i loaic dhiwll ada wagiig asulill aspill (ile aphuwll wile dcgaaall Jnai
asleiall ilagynallg Glalpllig aliglhallg Glagagall aljal @ig .asylill aspill winle laiphw
degaaall Jgm ayjligo gaaall aall gly ¢né diwll Y\ lasy gl aijlus @i gnill asylill aspiuly

asylill aspidll anle acganall phyw @agi Ayjli wnis dphpnll wle
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d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 jrawaia 31

Jleill enlgall jlieallg 4 dulall juyloill cnigall jli=allg 7 dulall juyl6ill cnlgall jli=allg 39
didga dlelac] jgulll Jasa Allb| ga 2 dlajall ayhi . (jgull Jasa QU] ga 2 dlsjall) 16 dullall
Jaay (¢gidl gu aailall jew) jgull Jaga Jlasiwl (e Wi ¢nill aawlhall allSdiall aallsal

blaall ga Ly i ¢lld Jua 2y

sblaall ga lyyéi gqild Jiar a1y Jasas (dgidl gy éxilall jew) jgulll Jasa Jlariwl yili Jiy
] Lo JSdu aiiwi agac dcgaaall woal.auudpll jisyill ailga ga dcgaaall Glaa’sg dlaiia anlc
wag @i gi lain Jairall ga ¢un 2021 adlall diwdl a9 Lal aiai anillg jgulll Jia jgulll Ja=a
CMaa aabil Guhi il acgaaall Jlaiil pili @uai sang s dcgaaallg . jgull GMlaga pii
laiahilg lailaadg Lailaiia wile Tjhi gnill alp<ill d2alpa Gapb ge 2021 @le a2y dayaall asyll
dilac @cal guajlallg gudsiall graabwall dileivwMl Jpolgiwg @il j1jléill gaj dilac ¢llasg

JlaiiMll ga aailill pblaall wiaiig @hia JSiiu JLaiilll

8 cnlgall dnwlaall jlea wnle AMyaei - dwlhall Glpadill b ysei

8 wnlgall aulhall jhea (nle dlaai 2021 plpa (na wnilgall duwhall pulea gulaa JJ_DT
Alpasill cna dlp<ill gu juaill Alha<ill apgi «duwlhall Glpadill» Wyl laia @ad nillg
@i @S A\haeill angi Las AUl aanig duwbhall bl (na duwbhall Glp<illg

Auwbhall Alpagill pghil dMAhaallg uuh_.éJIt,qJLmT Gilduiall

wnlc Guhiig 2023 plis 1321 gl cna Tadi anill aigiwdl adlall alibudl alyia anle AMaa<ill on i
ailar a2y gl na Gani anill awwlaall Glpadill (na dnuwlall Alp<illg Gluluwdl ana aly<ill
618911 ¢lli e alnalll @i lallb j<iall Gubill aauyg .ajiall

.acgaaall inle (pala pili Alasill ggsy gl gagiall je go

gan 2 dwjlaall glug 1¢nlgall auwlall jliea inle Glaoi — duuwhall Glwluwll ge alnalll
dulall pjleill ailgall juleall

glug 1adgall aunlhall jliga wnle CALa<i 2021 plpa (na dadgall aunlhall julea gulaa janl
@dy ¢nillg &yagall Glagleall @lsal gvg adlall pylaill adgall yleall gas 2 awjlaall
Ablnal (le danpagall dlagleall @lsal Gubi wile Aliiall daclwal dlialg alabi)] laa
Glwlowll Glalnal @iadi wnle aldiall daclwa il AMa<ill Elli Waai .arwlhall Glwluwll
iwlw ge aladdl (na abiiall Gulhio Jhaiwl Giyb ge Leai fisT ggsi (il apwbal
dalolg «ayjagall» aGuwhall @aiwlw ge alnalll dlilbio wnl] aalbiily «qyyagall» drwlhall
Glalnal gliu aljliall gin (na d jagall Glagleall agaaal aldiall Gk arais Jga alaba)\l

A lhall lwlowll
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl
2021 prawia 31

(0.0.3 61631lg dL1ill dlasall cuw ¢ni cno dspi JUS ga lay boina

aaiaAll alaall jiali
Glalyll laya Loy dlisillg
arsquill Gilalyllg
aalbll dlalgag

Jaill @bl @yiao aspi

100%  100% Jhi *.@.@.3 Glazallg

(0.3 Glaallg Jéill (Gphll (§ida aspi cng 51% duwis drlead disla dna @il aspidl wal *
JLiiwall éjlariwl wnd] IaLiiwl Gecganall Galé .(51% :2020 praus 31) 2021 praus 31¢na Las
asylill aspdnll ¢nd 100% iy duledll laisla dno auéi gnigiléll

dalall duwlaall Glwluwll goala 2.5

alalpil GlyicVl
Jra=ll (] Glaxall gi giladl wile dphull Jéi sic Ma<ll ga agasll ga Alalplil WlyicVl @iy
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.cnleoll

G yulisll
;b Las lmatini (nlc daulall dlagagall (G gulidll aaie)

Jg4Jai ggiiaa
alinaiga clgliall @llall <161 gania nali (nalnll (vl gluall ggujaill ggiaall )
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Jlisl) héa Giilallg gliall Jpi Glcgdaa Jiai dyadleill dyasill Gléarill Cils 13] lo @udi

(héa Gailollg glall Joi Cilcgdaa
Jlisl (nagiwi Cils 13] Lo aganil adlall alagagall analeill bg pill @uéin dcgaaall @gai
alalell aaall aily «gliall Joi» Wy Ui Aa el haa aailallg gluall Jol Glegaaa
lail) aaflall w)<ig .nllall Jolll jac waa wile pis adg nfarall Wlyiclll aic ¢llall Joil
apwlwlll phall yblaag glall Joli dhyijall glaiill jblaag JIgaill dtiajll dassll clal Jilsall
Jiaii auaaleill anaill alaaill Gils 13] lo @uéi vicg a1l giwala ¢llasg wiliKillg wyaill

bgpi ganiy (llall Jolll gls 13] lo dcganall nelyi Jhaa éailallg gluall Joi Glcgasa ¢na
wnclyig bpill 1aa (nagiwi M ¢ung analeill anaill Glaaaill glia gl Cudgi ga i aa ajaalei

:.nbli la dcganall

«anaill alaaaill Cuagig glia ga i ad nill dlaiaall Glasill

«nllall gayll Lilja

slawdl ol aag j<iall slawdl bg i

Glyipi Jio) d>aaa0 Alagaga gao anaill alaaaill (na dcgaaall adlha o aai rill bg il <
(ega il @ ganiill il dlagagall

ajgn1 aailall GMlasa ajaai éslel Jio — Jlgotll dtiajll darall clal Julaall Ja=i enill Liljall <
-aljga

A A

A

wlsill gi yblaall WLsiVl ga wislll ingiwall ga JisY =il aawi (il aadleill bg pill )
auadlei andi Gloasi auii VI bl plya) wiyiy ahipall e annéleill anaill Glaasill (na
enlall golll gulia @iy VAl ada Jio (nag .haa aailallg gliall Joil Glegaaa ¢na Jiaii

HlwAll gl alyUl JUA gao d@lalell aausll

;b Las dadlall lailagaga gulidg wlini dcgaaall Gaan

alohall dalsil L dajaa dilla Glagaga

alahall aalsilli allall Glagagall yulidr écganall @gdi.decgaaal LlT.th"JIJ.’i’SUIgL&dT.()JIQja
iVl b pnl] VS Lailariwl &lls (g

alsanill Jinail alagagalli BlainVlaia y2ll Jlacl 23gai gan tnllall Joill BlaisVl @iy gi <
g analeill anaill

Glegaaa Jiai daana ayylgi cnd aiaéi aléasi wnl] gnilall Joill aiaéleill bgpall (nagi UT <
@ilall 2liall Joll héa aailallg gliall Joi
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uglhall Jildall (unalll aall gl Jolll ¢lal agjiaall adnill aaall Jgaall Jolll (nle glan
Jal ln_aﬁd_cg,o;njlg_ooalm

dullall dlagagall Gaud ploril

laag lay hainall e guall algal aals ge agagiall glaiiMll jilwal jpnia dcgaaall Jawi
alaaill gu @Gpéll wl] dgagiall glaiflll yilwd aiitwi . jilwall gl algill JUA ga dlalell darésll

asdagiall anaill alaaill Jadii wgw .ol (nleall aailall jewl dujai duwil dagnia
pigi (nill (AUl agilaiiVl Glipwaill gi lay hainall Alilkanll gu ga a@ilill aaaill Glaasill
anéleill bg pill ga Tjais U lzja

Jilw ganaa ubwisl @iy «niatall Glyicll dia glaill blaa (a apus aslj lawa Gani @l
12 Gaal a=agiall glaiiVl jilwa) aaaléll [ai 12 11 JUs dlainal IJ_'i'_Q_'I'JIL"_'IIJJTU_cég]LiJIL‘JI.Qﬁ\JI
aia glaifMl blaa (na dpus a3k j laua ciaa will aulaifl pblaall pyeill AUl duill (jad
py=ill (ariall jaell haa wnle aedgiall glaifll jilual anaa alwisl aay aniaall oljiclll

(&15Yl pac whaa wnle asdgiall glaiiVll jilwa) jieill Cudgi ge jhill Wni

huall yaiall Gubi dcgaall Gald «wnpall dipall dapjillg gujlaill grissall duilly
Cuwinlg .Glgalll adal alalll jac jlaa wnle asagiall glaiiMll jilws Cuwislg jleall gav jlgll
L labLiaei a glaifil jilua dsibull dcgasall aps wll haliiwl Alona dagana acgaaall

.dcganall alnidll diyllg dapjil dhiijpall dhidiwall Jalgell 20 cuuwlii)

anéleill alegarall alaw ¢na alill alla gna jisi GVlag gjisa Jols allall Joill &)laV1 Jalsig
wa ¢lag <Nl gaer a jiia Jpls illall Jolll &)1l pisi aé L3 gag lagy 365 daal
anéleill 2llall dcganall @\iwl adlainl @ac wll damylall gi adalall Glagleall i gi alls

.Jalsll aailall

dullall Glhglhall
wuliéllg cniavall wlyicll
a1 cnalnlh wlwllg gogpall dlla cnag alalell am_o_lhl_ljm dulall dbglhall aals Jrawi @iy

Apiilia lay dsleiall dloleall @uISi

P )Ulg gyl gitlallg wlwllg yogjall degarall ay 1glbhall ganii
Jolill aliglhag
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whiti . Jaina jié 1jal Jalsil &liall Jinai a9y laaic lalinai (na ¢lgsuiall gguall padi @iy
A=alajiwl dLilsa] @@ac aic dagaall (gguall

daleall adillg A6ill

¢gidl wnal aap)lllg 26ill ga Jaleall Adillg a8ill gsis «@axall aasill aldasill glu golell
.Jal gl jaudi 3 laiaa @Glaaiwl ayia Gla ailill gilagllg

w U alaldd] GlalpM VA ¢pa dlalll dardllh djaa dadla Gla
= A JAS ga 161l do)aa &y gaga

189 (Tl alalddl alalpVl JU5 ga alslell dausll dnjaall adlall Glagagall gulié @iy
auintil Allasll Jugai aip 3 (na Lay alalell daudll na Glpill Glyiclll @iig .alalsll daydll
J1gai aiyg .ayslall Ggén ga <jas dlajall aljlil (na lasyeg wslil dlabill Alalpl gas
aic dlagall aljil ] wopstil alalddl Glalpll gné 16skw Lay Gyisall daslyiall jilwallg bl
ga alijill alsyjgi alaly) Jawi Las .gaaall Jaall gl wa ey Wlyiclll @iy Mg GlyicVl cll]
la 2aaall J3all glu (na w st dloldll alalplll JU5 ga dlalell daréil @awill gna Gljlaiiwl
Alalpl na Lay WljicVl @iy allall 0ia (nag jlafivdll @lSi ga «jal Ialayiwl a8lg JSiy Jiai @l
ATl alaldd] Alalpll g4 ga dlalell dausil @awill g aljlaiindl 2hai Vg . il dlabill

Aaudll pladil ausi wl]

Glyicll clsl]

Lauwn dlilaa adla Glagaga dcgaaa ga <ja gi wnlla Joi ga <ja gi) wnlla Joli 6ljiclll @in
:laaic (¢l aile Guhiy

gl «Jolll ga anaill alaaaill @\liwl (na Ggaall (naiii <

laljill Jaaii gi Jolll ¢la ga anaill alaaaill @\liwl (na ladgas Jugair dcgaaall @géi <
Qatall» wiiyi aagar Al Wb wll grala pali gga Jolsih dalivwall anaill Glaaaill gaal
@gai i (u) gl Joill dolall Liljallg yblaall Gals Jygai) dcgaaall @gai gl (1) Lojg «gaallg
wlc aphpwll Gada laislg Joill dalall Liljallg pblaall aalss blaisVi gi Jugai dcgaaall
Joll

Wiy (na Jgaall gi Jolll gao anaill alaaaill @lliwl ¢né laagas Jugai dcganall gdi laaic
¢la waa i wllg @aslall bljog jblaar haini cllj la 13] la @uéil @gdi «gaallg gaall»
wlc aphiwll Ad4ai @lg Joill aalall Liljallg jblaall aalsy blaisvl gi Jugais @ai @l 13) blaisvl
@gai allall ada na . Jolll inle dphuwll (na dcgaaall jlpaiwl jladar Joll Jroawi @iy «Jolll
gulwi wnle ay biijall @ljilllg Jgaall Jolll gulié @ig .alnll (i @l jilMl Jiawi) bayl dcgaaall
JSub Al enill é paiwall dphpwll gulid @iy .acgaaall lay haini gnill GlaljilVllg Ggaall gussey
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bg it Jaasi gl s Jsiny dalisa bg iy gyaall gudi go 3l (il nlla @ljill Jlagiul aic
@ljilMb wljicl cl2l]S Jaa<ill gl Juadill 13 dlalea QU @gy JSuw el endlall @l jilVl
.2aaall Jaall glu gna dlnll ala apjiasll aarsll cna (Gyall 2jaig auaa @ljill wlyiclg gnlpill

alalell aaall gulis
dabia dlalea (na @ljill Jail ggaaall gi Jl 2u ga @liwall jewll @il dalell daidll wyei
e dlalea dgan pljial nle dlalell daroll gulid sitwg . gulell Ayl cna (Gguull gusyliall gu
:ljilVll Jai gl ol

gl «@ljilV1 gi Joill il (Ggull na Jaill g gudl <
il gl alie b wna @l jilMl gi Jioill daclla Jistl ggull cna Jaill gi gull <

aaela JisUl Ggull gl gyl Ggull (] Jgogll acganall glsal ggsy gl vy

na gusjliall gSaall ga il albljiall @laaiwl @ljilll gi Joill dlslell darall gulié @iy

Guonil gglasiw Ggull cna gusjliall gi glyials aljilMll gi Jolll jrewi vic laaladiwl Ggaull
.nliall &slnidll @aallna

ailnial galia Jlii] (nle (Gguull cna ¢ljliall jad enllall pc Joill alalell daroll gulid gnelyy
go Gaull cna jal ¢jlda il asu J\A ga gi .al ingiwa Jnaig wnlcls Jolll @laziwl Jis ga
.al (ngiwa Jnalg inlels Jolll @adiug gi Jairall

20 «dlalall aasll gulsl aals alily al jagis wghll dailla @uéi wllwf dcgarall @adiwi
.abgalall jé aMaaall @ladiwl ga aallg dlnll Gls dbgalall GMaaall wnle slaicl (unal Guéai

alilll (na laic alnall gf dlslell lmiad guliéd @iy onill Gbglhallg Glagagall &alS Gini
(ngiwa Jaf ] Taliiwl «nl Las guallg «élslell dasll (nagall Jgaall gas dgaaall adlall
:JSS alalell dausll gulisl d1yagall Glaaall ga

«alilaa Gibiglha gi Gilagagal dhdill (Glgwill (na (@lasall ji¢) dileall jlewlll 1 wngiwall <
dagall gulidl ailly &) yagall GMdaall ga wngiwa Jai lay gg<s @udi wllwi 2 (ngiwall <
g ¢piilio ¢ gi pithio Juiy (bgala alalsll

aadll gulisl duwill 4 yagall dlsaall ga wgina Jal lay ggsi Y auai wllwl :3 tngiwall <
bgala dlalsll
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Gl yulisll
it (] alall Gliglhall Wiini @iy (@M gulisll gsljel

Jilwall gf byl Y5 go dlalell dagéll djaall dlall Gbglhall <
alahall aal<ill aajaall adlall Gbglhall <

gl Cua ilwall gi oyl YA ga alslell dagall enllo @ljill go ool Wyini dcgaaall @ai @l
.dcganalls Ibliijl jisul (na dlahall aalsill aajaall adlall Gliglhall

élohall &615illy dajrall dullall Gliglball

wlwllg ypgéll

oulid @iy .éxSioll dlaleall WIS a2y (ralolly alslall aaysll Lisa gl Wlyicll @iy
(dlaleall @IS x21 (nalnll) Alnaiall gu @G ol Jrawi @iig .alaball dalsill 164 ggjall

Jaea aa1 b @ladiwb pgjall Gjia jlaa wnle gaaall JilwAll gTeLjJ‘\JI glu wna alajiwlMl gliag
wl| pyall alalea W@ISIS g pa Aluawi <L\l dcgasall uleilll Wljicll @iy .aleoll dailoll

@iy «allall ada (ag . Jalsil Jmwill gi Jimwill ga <ja gasain gi aga Jaizall ga ¢piall aall
go willg Juls awad jagis ¢pall aall i) uleilll dlaw) @isg .(pladilll dang wis ulsilll Juolbi

laglabl @iig algrull Gloaal alaws Jalsih Juawill gi Jiauwill (o «ja gaaiin gl aga Jaizall
a (@eii Al Jrawill ajia jlaa anlc

(na aile gogniall @ljillly clagll @iy loaic gasall (nllall jSpall gly ga ypg)éll b @iy
aglabl @i il cnilall @l jil\l &g jiaall dawall gu (Gpall Jiawi @iig .oglaiil gl aglall gi ag<ll

Glglha gi dlgaa diaai ¢ Glagaga ail ¢lls ¢na lar ggaaall Jildallg i bpb (nl] aligai gi
.Jigai @ullsi gi Jugai alalpls gaaall jilwall gi abHl glu ¢ia d)ada

dyguii Juoliy bgpiia j1é (@r dcgaall wnal g<i @l la dlglaia aliglhas gagyall Wiini @iy
.agaaall adlall alilull ajia sy Jalll cale jmc 12 2li daal @ljily]

déaiwa Jlagpnag ygd jlai ggiils

13 C1jap <lgu malwi @i (load gi gl <lél Jidiwall (na 2axiw glla ge aliglhall 318 @iy
Jani @l gl yjgall Jué ga pilga

Glyicll clsl]

claiil gf aglal] gf ailiglnally hyijall @ljildl ga clacVl @iy laaic (rlla aljilly WlyicVl cl2l] qiy
.aéléaiml &\
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haa ¢slg Jnaia Jois slajiwdll Jawd Jliall Juw aile grali aéc aagas «(Jalsll ganiall
2Ll glu (na gania ool dsleiall Glagmall Wie @iy .J=all 135§a alajiwdl 13a ggsi loaic
Alajiwl ool a=s cnalnll jilwall gi

dilpall ia (llh Jaga @ladiwh Gluniall @n @is bala Jlgaill dtiajll darall pili gls 13l
gméauﬂlgﬁaﬂ‘@njlplsiuulm.@IﬂUUM}dI}bMI‘@jUﬂgaln.l=l_6_ég sy Cuny
.JHgai wllsis adagll jgja datii gansall

dlainall aliglhallg GlaljilVl

@Gaaill g5i @l lo lavic anay gslg gaxall (ilall jSpall gly (a dlainall aliglball Jawi \
Jisuiwa 1jal @ialnial galia ganii (rill ajlgall jalall

«nle ljgnaa guilg 3 wa lar gagiall ullawil Glaill wul adlawigl alaljil\l i
ahéiwall Jlaclll gijliiag JliiMl algag Glagallg Glsliaall dsleiall wISill Jia Glagnall
@i\ .dLiaj ajia jlaa wnle lailaeag [@ilsliaar (Gleil Lata [@aisi wnle dcgaaall dadlei anill
17 @é) ol gab laic alnall @iig gazall gllall jSpall gly ¢né adlawi gl GlaljiVl Jyauwi

apisill GiMlasll

aspill dpuuiyl alasll L)l gag qiigsll jliall dcgazall dazall dylall ALkl e @iy

alildl ¢na @ajaall agidll gulid @iyg (Aasph J<! dptipll dlaell ayaniy dcganall @gaig @l
apuiyll dlosll i @lxabul asb J3) a2azall ayllall

dapjillg dMaleall

Wpall jlawll laag dcgarall Alspl Ji6 go Wiuo auixll Gllasll @ii qill Glolsall wai
40 Jgll wljiclll dlaleall Jali A1jli cna dlnll ald dpuyiyll dlasll &y jgall

il dlasll (] dauinlll GMas<ll dajaall daadill Alglhallg Glagagall Jigai sley Las
ge &ailill Ggjall 3)ai.aanall alall alilydl Ayl dpuyipll dlasll & jgall Gpoll jleull lag
2aaall gaall gly gab &xaill sgidl Jygai gl dygui

Jlwl @lasiwl laligai @iy duisl dlas) ayay)lill @al<ill lawlia @iy (il &a8ill e sgidl g
dousll 6ag lawlis @l will asaill ué sgill auuillg diivall loleall algi tné Wyall
aaudll aaai ard @iy ol Ayglill ¢na Las Wpnll jlewl @ladiwl laligai @iy duini dlagy dlalell
alalell aasll awlaall auasill pe agidl Jugai ge aailill filwall gi abjill dlalsa @iy .alalsll
ol ol aill alalell d&ausll (na pill ge ailill jilwall gl 2kl Wlyicll ga tublaiy gai wlc
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A g Sia gulwl wile d@=anall adlall alildl (na @jaall aliglhallg Glagagall duwills
@uai dale] Guyb ge tnajall Jgaall dbigima gy Aian aé GWgaill dils 13] la dcgalall
(JsS alalell aaréll gulia ale alall pilill (pa AMBaall go ingiwa Jai il Ialiiwl) @iinill

.G=ana dylla Alily 4jia Js ailaicna

| Bliiwl Gliglhallg Glagagall Glia agaair dcgaaall Gald .alslell daidll Glalnal gyl
avga ga las dalell dasll chajall Jgaall wtngiwag @ljilVl gl ol jblhag Glawg deuib
.allci

dulall algaill abléa

JSpall gl ena @llall (nalv ajag ddlall dhglhallg ddlall dlagagall gu dvléa clpa] @il
dcgaaall ngiig dlawall gllall apléar @jli (nlb wnigild (G Elia gIs 15] gaaall anllall
21lg gl wna Abiglhall diguig Glagagall (Giéail cnalnll gulwi aile alawll

grabgall daaall dlai slalsa

cnlhall ingiwall

Haalgll lmabgag guilaall guiigsll lawabga daalsl danaall alai élalsa dcgaaall @adi
ISHll (Gaiwi .daadll Gaa Jgbg grabgall anilaill il nd] aituy Liljall ada (Gléaiwl gl

Ulaabwall ¢li w(nle dcganall dlaljill pnioéi .wibgill 4jia (naa wnle Liljall aial dedgiall
Iadléaiwl aic g nas wini will

aimll (] alslyidl eyl dcgaaall @adi (guiigsll grabgalll Gleiy lawag «<UA wl] aalsl
wlc jnié) dcgaaall @ljill gl .grabgall wilgy go duwis duwitall drclaiall dlitalill dalsll
Aadldaniw I;j_cgbgmoj(l_y wi nill Alaa buwall ¢l

wlgall ingiwall

wlc leliy Lljall ada (Gléaiwl gl .grdgall lmiabga dalsl daxall dilai alalka dcganall @a4i
waa wle Lljall adal daedgiall WullKill (Gaiwi .daxill éaa Jgbg (pabgall anilaill wilyll
Ladlé~iwl aic Wgmas Jawi enill GlslyinVl aia wnle dcgaaall Alaljill jniéT.darall djia

Alan
Ja ag Gan ge Qili ((nVaiwl gig‘l.ig_iLij) o @ljill acgaaall wal ggsi laaic Alunsall A6i

@iVl duguuil &ialnidal galia (anii giill ajlgall jalb (Gaai jalll ulhiy UT(I.O.I_IOJ" I gag (14
gl yapiall ga <ja alajiwl dcgaaall 2agii laaic .@ljilVll glial aia Ggiga padi <lja] gsaig
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d1ylpaiwVi Iya

ayjlpaiuwdll Taro gulwi w(nle dlplgall wnle dcgaaall é)aél @uai </l dcgaaall ajla) Gala
(e aglle . all Jisiwall (na Jlacll dlplgal aajMil ajlgall lagal dcganall gi il Caiilg
dcganall 8)38 Jga Ly yaga 1< i aé ¢pala géyi @ac Al ayi 3gag &)1al ale (il @iy @l Ll
adlall alill slac] acgaaall Jolgi «nllillg .ayjlpaiwdl iala gulwi (lc [allaci dlvlga wlc
.a1)lpaiwMl fata gulwi (inlc G2aaall

dullall Glagagall wiini
blaidll aias @iy (il Jlaclll p3gai @uéi wl] aliiwl dgllall Glagagall @yinidcgadall 33

aailallg gliall Joi Alegaaay hayiyi ¢nllall Joill ayaaleill bg il Gils 13] Lo @uaig alagagall
ailall @llall Joi (nlc

polivas dcgarall - clailllg spx2ill Gljlis ganii enill yalill sgée 830 aai

alyia ol wily all polill asel cle\M alilag ji¢ daa lmangs palill aéc dxa dcgaaall aani
A [alady alyia ol gi «Jga=a JSiiu aiwjlaa ga asiill alla ¢na polill aéc éjia aa jlis ganii
.aiwjlaa @ic ga algaea djgni aslill ally ¢a jalill ade clail

@udi (na @Sl acgaaall Gihi .claiMll a1aaill Gljls u.o_m_lJ_DT_l agdc dac dcgaaall wnal
aals nclyi il ol . ualill adc clail gi aani jls dwjlaa dlgéea djgni as§all ga gIs 13l Lo
dylas aggli aug .cl@illl g aganill LA lof dwjlaal Lalnial Tjals Gaai gnill alnll ala Jalgsll
261 wg hll (na (yaga i gi Gan Clia IS 13] polill ade daa @uéi dcgaaall arei (il
gl aanill JUs awjlao @ac gl dwjlaa wile Llaijaé wile Jigyg dcgarall dphuw @Glhi gas

clailll

Jagas dcganrall — nlysuiiill yolill agéc Glaljill

Alpgi .4 jlaiivlll &yjlé=ll laihéra wle dylai aljlée jlagl agdc @lpl dcgarall Gald
ga [y Izja J<iii U qnill gVl daa Jia Glyijill @l$alg bgpill @uéi (e zliy dcgaaall
@l Jni Vil jlall Glegasa go wuialll aall adiall aawsllg ooyl jléell (raliill pasll
aaleiall hljallg polaall graay ¢rjaga J<dy haing ail (il jlasell alalell aasll ga gran
.cnliini jlg] agaes agasll ge duunlbhallg Gljlésll ada dislay

shd | ang=uwll | gl | (g i ¢na) .¢.¢.@.gb dlgliallg Alléill @uly ESpi

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 jrawaia 31

gl w Ul alaliull alalpVl gna alalell laiaud jilws gi aligi alya] @i enill agidll Jugai (Ggya
(enllgill (nle gaaall Yaall glu gi ksl alaldudl Alalpg Vil gna Lyl 5jai gaaall Jaall gl

dcgaaall Glspi

Wl jlewl ¢niig<Il jlisall wndl auistll Alilasll Glglhallg Glagagall Jigai @is .graaill aic
2Jai .diwll Wnll Jlewl hwgiar Jall Glily Jgaig dasaaall ddlall Glilull a1)li (na @ailwll
aic . AUl alabod] Alalpl gav guadill 2 Jagaill e axilill auislll d\la<ll Jigai Ggja
daall gly gaw auislll adasell aday @Gleiall kil dlaliull GlalgVl iy 5y duisi drlac gu
.2a2all

dlclhdll Glaglea

AiSig laly] ulwis] laic qiiy enill Jlaclll dhdil (na Jass dcgaaall ga jraa cja ga glhéll )
0 (Goii |5Vl @udig yjlgall g1jgil acgaaall &jla] J1d a daxaall Jroill dlelha ) .l ISi
@l enill Jeuill lelhd guaai @iy .Jeaill alylya Alail cnlgiwa wnl] daxdéall adslall jjlaill
4) Sat Ulclhés lalga jjlaialaclg <\a<ll diag Glaaillg dlaiiallg dialniall dlawll guai

alga jjlai

dalall dwbhall alblyialllg Glpadillg @lS>Ul 2.6

Jigi alvlyialg Glpasig @lsal gng @)laVl ga ulhiy dcgaaall agaaall adlall Gliludl slac) g)
J< alnalllg déayall Abblnalllg dlglhallg dlagagallg dlagynallg Alalpl ajaall lall anle
wlhii 2flii (] ady gl gSay Alpasillg alblyiall ada ga aslill @ac ) .dlainall Glglhall
aic .ahdiwa alyia ¢na ajiliall Aliglhall gi Glagagall dyjiaall aaréll (nle ¢nala Juasi clyal
Gleii enill adlill allyiaVlg @l$all gngs &)laVl Galé «dcgarall danwlaall Glwlul Gubi
d=aaall allall alilull Ayl na Alpasgill ga asTill @ael wall apdyllg abdiwall jalnally
dlagagall ajiasll aausll (nle ¢pala Juaei clja] ¢na quwii ayaga jblhar hiiji anillg

e\l adlall aiwll JU Gliglhallg

aphuw ge ayly wgh wu alidiwall aljghill Jga aldhll alvljiallg wgyhll p<ii Ad
2] cnill agidl Juawi @i .Llaigas aic gl laigas alla ¢na alslyialll (na lalawi @iig dcgaaall
gl /g @Yl 21aai ga d=anall dyllall Glilull ¢ié lay Wizall 2lball (il &)jags Jist pili

alnll ala alpaaill / @l$aiil Gleis Lara alial alpaaill

dyymgall @lsall

Jilill 1l IS enillg alill @l$sill Alail &)1\l Galé dcganall dnwlbhall Glwluwll Gubi sic
:d=2aaall dlall aliludl (né dlhwall 2llall (né & yaga Jistll
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl
2021 prawia 31

Aljiall lyEaYl Jasa padi— palill gée

@3iwi [@ila enllillg palill ade (na ganiall aailall Jaga dlgaw 3311 gi dcgaaall gsag \l
(nall aaflall Ja=a ga agljiall plyiall Jaga gl . olill Glglha gulial aljiall plyiadl Jasa
Joill Jilao aad i Jol wle Jgnall aaj\lll Jlgalll plyiall aslaw dcgaaall w(le =i
glap Jilaa alilaa éaal plyiaVl @iy gi il dlilaa daislaial aiy (a @ladiuwdll Gy hiipall
a6 ulhiy (pallg «aslaw «dacgaaall wnle gu=in» la agljiall glyiaVll Jaga gus=g clal . Jilaa
@géi . ualill ade @lsaig bg i gusil Juaei wl] Jliai laaic gl abgala jlewl jagi @ac aic
diglhag dnlia (jgsi laaic dbgala dMhaa @ladiwb miljiall oljidll Jaa padil degaaall
.alitiall aplAall alpaaill gasy <2\l

&yaliusall oyl osysi 83Lc]

dlalll aaisll cna dlp<ill Jljal ga aandi slea gliay apliwall )il yuliés acgaaall @gai
wna dlalell aawsll @usil Joiwa @uéi s dcgarall Gileiwl .o il alabadl Glalp\l gna
Gaull (nle @ila Juy wll ggapll épaliwall )il @uéi @i .dgaall dadlall alilwll ayli

Jla=ll dllhg gagag detib Jio daaaa (Gguw Jalge Julda dlaa dlilaa jlewi @laziwl

alalpVl 3

.Glagallg Alaaall ¢gi wnll IAliiwl dcganall wal cMasll ga agasll ga Glalp\l gijgi cnli Laia

2020 2021
eniygs jlias (niygs jlisa
2,291,341 3,533,493 Jai
8,387,535 7,385,139 alglia
9,659,716 10,464,623 Glaga pioli

834,335 629,707 S jai

21,172,927 22,012,962

shd | ang=uwll | gl | (g i ¢na) .¢.¢.@.gb dlgliallg Alléill @uly ESpi

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 jrawaia 31

abvblyialllg Glpagill

oyaill grisrall Geégiall glaiiVl gilws yania

guall Glgaly dlaijall dedgiall glailll Jilwy @uéi gsine gulwl wile dcgaaall @gai
dbuia adyb Gubhir acgasall @gdi «(uylaill guiaall dpwilly Globall alsilly da)jaall
glaiiVll jblha (na Alp<ill guiis Gcgaaall @gai M «nllillg .aedgiall glaiiMl pilwd alwisM
wa Al pac waa wile adgiall glaiiVl jilws wd] Ialiiwl Jlws gapia Jawi ela ga Mg
adlul! laips anl| Aiiwi Glnnia dagana <Ll dcganall Gald .agana ala alily Js aujli
A6 .AnlnidVll diunllg guitaall adleiall ahidimall Jalgell Jléa laliaei ae) (glaiiVlll jilwsy
Llpaoill ada ge duleoll Ailiill wling

dasléiallg asyall éithy rgilll yania

nalp Alpadi aitwi .@aldiallg aspall cenby ggjaall agild ganisa ubwish dcgaaall @gdi
ada Aali .Glpasill ¢li gpg aic awdlana Jistl Judall (] ggjaall l@é1eai gSaall dauall
aylil 163V Geag (nill Glasill dpila dhyipall @alsill gl jlewll ALLAT jLicVl (na Glpasill
Al @&lai na aailsll wgphll Alanil ada awd Aas§i ¢nall aall wnl] araga<ll aviljuall

Glaallg Glsliaall dlnll Gl Maiwdl aqu)g di1ag il qiéllg daliilll jlacil
alnll aly Naiwll agujg dag il iéllg ajadall anliiVl jlacil acgaaall jla] aani
Jslillg wlill gi Jpill gagiall @ladiwdl dlclya a9) Glpadill ada »a1ii .Glasallg alsliaall
anliilll jlacillg diag il darall ajlalll galyi.onjlaill gi cniall @alaill gi Jlagiwlll ga ¢alall
ge @liai apliilll jlacll gi &)laMl iy lasic alisivall dMaiudl agw) Jia=i @ilg Ligiw

aalull alpaaill

@laaiwll (G dlagagag Ulaallg Glsliaall datd plail

pli loaic @lasiwMl (G dlagagag dlaallg Glsliaall @Gad cna plasilll @uéin ajlalll @gdai
@alajiwl gSay VM aé dyjiaall aagall gi wll g phll gra Alp<ill gi Glasill

;b la daiéll cna (ploail aealja L_nJIL_ruQ_lm wnillg dala pii "L___n.'l'JILJ.oIg_QJI‘I.o.uu"' i

@laaiwdl ga gi Gagll jgja ga a=agi gsay Lo jglais lay Gguull dad (nad (ryaga laail <
.nalell

aulagll alinllg Liaglgisill (na aala Glpgi <
.2agiall ga dgwl ggsuw gi dguwi Joill (ralniaVl <1t gi i) gy adslall plaill ga Jua <
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2020 2021
wniigs jlisa wnisgs jLlia
52,962 27,452
25,400 200,097
42,597 10,365
262,675 -
18,072 23,751
42,991 72,932
444,697 334,597

Cugsll dlgs dagsa Al ~19a1ag5 daily uili o wioeAill dlglha wnag (Géilull égioll JUs *

asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi

d=anall ddlall Glilull
2021 prawia 31

wyal alalpl 5

aflga clalpl

dlaag lsliaa 2u go 1)

(8 aley]) pali agéc clai] ga ayy
2Lyl alsyjgi alaly)

anT

daclwall pilaill ada dianig .dajflall daslga g plall glhdll Glsp daclwal pilai
i gaudl diw il Jni éaal gplall glhéll (ng édiiigsil dlalell ingéll Garéall Gragsall

.2020 1l ya ljliic|

nlgall duwlhall jli<al Li)_og (niigs Jlian 262,675 ajad gliar nllall @call ge duwlhall @il
S AlwAll gi abjul ¢na aliawig «aragsall daclwall Glbhlnalg aragsall aiall duwlha» 20
Glagpna @l aspill laa Jawi aill aljiall waa il Jilaia goulwl aile «anal alalpyl»

Alnll ali (poabgall willsi

81
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2020 2021
wnisgs jlias wniigs jlia
21,172,927 22,012,962
19,203,811 19,607,563
1,378,688 1,538,268
590,428 867,131
21,172,927 22,012,962
2020 2021
wniigs jlias wniigs jlia
4,851,035 6,082,338
3,835,935 4,149,605
2,518,124 3,261,072
350,460 662,010
1,220,682 967,622
574,864 660,308
1,260,913 1,186,234
14,612,013 16,969,189

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi

d=aall dudlall Glilwll
2021 jrawaia 31

alalpil GlyicVl Cydgi

Gagll jlaa (nle daxéa dlaas

awalyall (Glgwil
gl

Hhd

diag=uwll

cMlasll ga aga=ll ga Alalpl (ullas]

Juisudti alagyna .4

(7 alay) Claiul

dilbpg dljluwll asMaiwl alga
gblull ga 3gac @ylsi

dlglia GVlgacg jalga
@lxaiwMl (G dlagaga clab)
ani

:2020) (niugs jlian 1,831,328 gluar Glagpnas Jawall ggjrall Jiibill Glagma ganii

(Lniags jlisa1,554,764
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dsanall ddlall ALkl

82

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi

asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi

dsanall ddlall Glildl

O : — —
g ¥ 430
R 3 2 3Z
9 9 7 T
r) 532
3 g
i 2
3
> 3 :
3 3
(gV] = M.W
(w)] H .
3 3
:d =
E
Iay] =
& g
2
n \._" m N~ m 0 O LN M,
sd m 3 8§ § 8 | R 5
2 SERIgE |8 1
~N
A i
. 3
Q 4 < SR A B s S ) s
P = o %, = %, 5 -
N D S 0o ¥ o ~ x
% R A~ K F =
“m" — ~
Ulasag Glsliaa .7
Jlacl Glivwai
26 dyllawl) @6)lw cnilia W)l anlc L)l Gljlow
£gaxall Moiill Glusyig Glil il épolima aplima Glasag
wiygs jlins  niygs jlips gilSag dlgal  eniigs jlips  cniigsjlips  cniigs jlips  eniigs jlins  ¢niigs jLixa
80,824,978 90,17 167,043 1,094,164 1,250,764 1,236,155 10,306,150  6,668,0531  (aaljal Guw Las) 2021 pilis 1 na A.
(731,150) (731,150) (23 alry)) clball apani pili m,
b.
wna Las aalja] aleall apyll m.
80,093,828 90,17 167,043 1,094,164 1,250,764 1,236,155 9,575,000  66,68,0531 *2021 plig1 M
9,581,862 607,781 20,596 62,320 78,618 55,471 8,757,076 alalb) m
1,646,000 - 1,646,000 - QUi dale] 2
(1,695,710) (14,955) (1,680,755) Glasuiua 3
(414) - (414) - i 9,
- (75,129) - 842 74,287 GMygai 7
(36,527) (3,640) (92) 3,688 (36,483) auinl AMac Jigai Juasi W
89,589,039 622,823 183,999 141,865 1,333,070 1,291,626 11,221,000 73,794,656 2021 jrauya 31 ¢na w
3
EN\aiwl -
43,203,225 137,838 936,294 1,021,394 716,397 40,391,302 (@A6130) 2021 plis1¢na m
4,394,008 13,344 64,124 47,70 119,225 4,149,605 ajiall Jasall d
(1,61,172) (14,988) (1,596,184) Glasiiua q
(381) - (381) - uhd
(22,687) (3,640) (89) 3,580 (22,538) auinl GMac Jigai Juasi
45,962,993 147,542 984,960 1,072,684 835,622 42,922,185 2021 jrauys 31 ¢na
:a1jiaall aausll (nalp
43,626,046 622,823 36,457 156,905 260,386 456,004 11,221,000 30,872,471 2021 prauys 31¢na
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 prawia 31 2021 jrawaia 31

apliwall )il ghiu alalailll gi &)l agi gualill agael danalsill aaall ge jhill Wn
aalij ol alaw @Gléaiwl gga il jlagVl dlilaa drawl GMagar thawa jié Jall laanaai gsal
g duball @iy (gl dlga ¢na layle Wjleiall Glwlpwll bibg «nllillg palill ade a3l
Glyia wnle ajjga aang apaliwall il @uai daalel a)laVl @gai . Ella )is ada palill agac
i S dakii

G\igai

&psial CMlac Jygai Jyasi

alals]

o116 83le]
Uil

*2020 iy 1
2020 pilis1ena

diwll Janall

2020 pliy1¢na

(23 L)) elatl oy i il

2020 pauwua 31cna

2020 jrawua 31wna

:dy jiaall daidll cnalp
2020 pawa 31¢na

(na Las aalja] aleall apyll

G\agall (nga ldimall gratéall ga cpiil Jué ga dalell Gardll pasi @i Al aiwldl A
iy enill ayalimall o)Ul aiag gégay abiaall dpall ggeiaiig dlnll dlag lay Wjisall diiaall
HA6i @iy grapsill gy ga Jall dasll wd] Isliiwl dlalell dagéll cna peill alwisl @i lnayéi

(4aii) Glasag Glsliaa .7

(U adiwi enill Jlacll glhay adgyeall @uaill @b wi] ggayll jlinall )il dlslell aasall i§% B SR REze|B| S&8§Fg (8] 7
IsLitwl &lslell daydll yani @i alilaall Aljlasel diaall Gleall dagd clls (a Loy Ggull Glily 5% 5 38 goRe (8| REged |R|
F ) m = O ~ on = o >
2l @i .alsl=ll daréll chajall Jgaall ga 2 ingiwall (pan yuldig dleyiall dijléa aéyyb wnl] §= © © © " & R
alabadl AlalpVl gab (¢nisgs jliza 150,000 :2020) ¢niigs jLina 1,646,000 glias @il dale] Ay u:,a 3 8% S o S 3
@iwall (¢ agall plyiall gl .auai dalc] gailes aislall Ggan gan apila l@aljalg (sl %":Ctﬁ g = = 3 3 3
— g o LN [78)
wa (5% :2020) 5% duwis wladilll (naguw (g1 )a jiall) Gguull jouw gls aalell datdll auaaicna © g S = > 9 o o
*478,750 :2020) (niigs jliaa 561,050 glias datall ploail wnl] (g13a jiall) jasall (Gguull jouw
. : : a9 o 3 A =9 5 ®
g i 3338 8| 8¢
23802 = 5 ° NleF R
.l La$ ganall Jall gl né Nl agu) 2jgi @i E
2020 2021 549 3 g~ g < || 3% = |5| &
¢nixgs jlizs tnigs jliz g a4 - - -
i 5% 9 3 © o '= |3 A e o | ] R
3,835,935 4,149,605 (4 alay]) Jusuiii Glagpna &= -% § g < 2 § S2 = A g
228,173 244,403 (6 alry]) ayylal Glagyna j‘g = = < 2 2 < o -
:J :
4,064,108 4,394,008 Z;‘» é é 2 T3 |3 § g 23 § é
: NS N «© oy m B o @ o ™ s @
o — - = — 3 = -
9
)
Gus=Rig 2020 prawys 31 o Las deaaall dulall Glilull ga (Golgii U dajaall gllall oy gl * gjg 3 3 3 E 3 = =
. — 1 I ) N o o
23 albglll cnd Jinailly 5jlg ga Las [aglpa] @i cnill A=l °3,' % R 7o N o >
27,771 2lia) 2021 jrauu 31 (né draiiall diwldl JU lailaw) @i will gpsll @uISi dad ja6i 335 23| TRo9T T |8 2ETITR IS 3
(e4un M :2020 jraws 31) (nisgs jlisa g;—s S = NS mnoS o~ % NF NS | S
% 2 T Lo e g8 — |2 ® O Ry &
w ~ = S DR o = =3 a © o 2 o0
g RT| RSEEE g 22 ) &
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi

d=anall ddlall Glilull
2021 prawia 31

:aiull JU5 GlSjallg polill aliglbal a)jiall dagall gl laga

2020 2021
wniigs jliya wnisgs jlia
1,193,507 1,086,731
1,288,193 806,566
61,107 56,946

- (12,187)

(604,168) (732,909)
(849,569) (262,419)
(2,339) 1,648
1,086,731 944,376
2020 2021
wniigs jlisa wnisgs jlia
581,493 457,712
505,238 486,664
1,086,731 944,376

2021 piliy 1 na Las
Joli abiglhal alalyl

Jolill Gliglhal Gaila

Jolill liglhal pali agac inle GMa<i
dlcgana

yoli ligliha sleyiwl

auial llac Jugai ggya

Hauwua 31¢na boSJ.DLlJI Ulglha

dlglaia
dlglaia pc

JSjall gly gné dlauall il Alglha ale Guhall yyljiall 1Ml Jasal 23400l bugiall gl

5% wnll 3% (ja aglyii drwi gaaall enllall

19 aLD_I!Ln.Q_j.IJi.Iﬂ dhbglha Gléaiwl Juai gc alnalll @iy

shd | ang=uwll | gl | (g i ¢na) .¢.¢.@.gb dlgliallg Alléill @uly ESpi

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi

d=aaall aulall GLiLl

2021 jrawaia 31

jolill agéc .8

Jaliwas dcgaaall

Jialiagac aaa glii laililac (na daxdyiwall Glsliaall agis o aaell jaliagéc dcgaaall (nal
glany dlgasa layal palill agasl laib dcgaaall Glaljill gl .Glgiw 3 dale aan ¢niliallg )l
ge Jjliill acganall wnle dale dany Pan] .apaliwall Alagagall @sla ¢na jpgall Ga Julda
bl ga lapaii gi ajaliwall Glagagall

Jali agéc ¢llasg Jal gl ljauh 12 lauali axa glii alasal polill agéc sy Lagl dcgaaall wnal

:aiudl JAA Glspallg dlawall @laaiwdl G Glagagal ajjiaall dagéll el Lasa

enllasyll ¢nilia o lji
wniigs jlisa wnings jlisa wnings jliss

1,133,861 1,009,757 124,104 2020 piliy 1¢na Las
1,288,193 1,288,193 - @laviwVl (Go Glagoga wl] wlaly)
(574,864) (562,116) (12,748) clab|
(806,972) (707,596) (99,376) @laviwVl (o Alagaga sleyiwl

(45) (45) - auinl Allac Jygai @Ggpa
31 na Las @laaiwlll (Ga Glagaga

1,040,173 1,028,193 11,980 2021 pawwys

806,566 728,986 77,580 @laviwVl (Go Alagoga ] wlaly)
(660,308) (639,896) (20,412) clab]

@ Glagagal jiali agéc nle GMiasi

(12,187) (3,651) (8,536) @laaiwl
(252,054) (239,942) (12,112) @laaiwdl (Ga Glagaga sleriwl
75 150 (75) auisl GMac Jigai Gga

31 wna Las @laaiwlll (o Glagaga

922,265 873,840 48,425 2021 prawws
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl
2021 prawia 31

a1 nalnll dcgaaall wal @éaiwall Alalp\l ayjiaall aarsll Jiai 2021 pauws 31 (na Las
(¢t VI :2020) niigs jliaa 70,387 gluay aeagiall glaiiMll jilws jania

Las dils @éaiwall AlalpVllg g jlaill guisaall aedgiall glaiiVll jilwd gpnia ca aspyll gl

:endy

2020 2021
eniygs jliza enigs jLliza

1,690,906 1,901,227 HlisTena

210,583 306,458 aiwll asagiall glaiiMll jilws

- (210,632) whib

(262) 2,975 auial GMac Jigai ggja
1,901,227 2,000,028

gl alawll apalia e awdriall gughill griaaall aapjl gawd Gaiug 2021 pawa 31 (ua Las

il gaiaall éwﬂd__lLé_o Ulilav wnlc dcganall Jrnaill . Jalslh daréll

89
Hhé | aagsull | Cugsll | (g gni o) ..o dlgliallg Allsill @uils asph

2020 2021
wniigs jliga wnings jlisa
574,864 660,308
61,107 56,946
(42,597) (10,365)
593,374 706,889
2020 2021
wnisgs jlias wniigs jlia
6,654,743 6,023,887
(1,901,227) (1,929,641)
4,753,516 4,094,246
739,188 1,155,940
455,640 999,044
1,417,705 799,749
41,856 -
61,151 -
447,695 141,696
7,916,751 7,190,675

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi

d=aall dudlall Glilwll
2021 jrawaia 31

:@aaall $aall gly cha dawall @lball ¢nly Lara

@lxaiwMl (g dlagaga clab)
yalill Gliglhal aafla wgna
Jolill agéc clail ga ayy

gaaall g5l gly ¢ Jawall ghall (ilas)]

loaéa dlegasag ggujlai ggilna .9

(¢nllan¥ib) gguylai ggisaa
asagiall glaiilll jilws jania lnali

(cnalnll) gguylai ggina

((nalnll) déaiwa clalpl
2ilagg laada Cilegasa
(Hyjga t.nJILom_o d=as

(15 alssy)) @alua ga @riwall
0921 ggisra
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl
2021 prawia 31

laa] &Ly anis oVl cnbliisMl wnl] dribgll dlla<ll @cay dauppg alsjllg wnalell @asill
Jl18 wagay AlelhaiwMl aia Wag laasy @is wnillg ggaaall Jlall guij ga 50% duwi (nbliisVl
.4)15¥1 gulaa ga dupgi wnle cliy agiwll dragasll &eaall glaizl (na graablwall

ggoaall Jlall yuly go 5% arwis alyi Aleyjgi slawl uglhall 2lall e (nblisVi g1 jgi jnisy
Gald aiudl JU5 .ghall el abji aleyjgi alauy alapall bl laga aawi M il algiwll gna
élsjllg cnalell @aaill ygsil duwwdga dna Ji1é diwll a1y ga 10% duwi glhéiwl dcgaaall

LM (nbliinM and] &)1aV1 gulaa clacl alalsag atibgll dllasll @ca du g

@ubill dsle] gaila (u

wl| ablaailllg )Wl alalell aasll ¢na Alal gl Jrawil Glagagall @uéi dale] gaila @adiug
alabadl alalpl gpab &1L Jawall Jolll guoi (na asliji ploailll laa ara (Gleis ¢nall aall
Al

alalell d&agéll (ablyial (3

danjaall ddlall alagagall alalell aawsll (na dasliall alpill dlalsll dawsll (nblyisl Jiag
Tl alabdddl AlalpVl A3 ga dlalell daysll

2Lyl dleyjgi (a

asalgall @ig @l aspiull (naalwal dygiwll djagasll dreaall glaizl sa=il 2021 gujla 31 ¢na

3,000,000 glias (@auwll yula 40 :2020) @auwll gula 20 datdy aiadi aIJ_ﬂ Ulseajgi jlav] wnlc
a9 laalaw @i 2020 pauwus 31 cha daiiall aiwll ((niigs jlisa 6,000,000 :2020) ¢niigs jlisa

asalgall inle Jgnall ay)li

dayidall aliyill alsy jgi
«(Haalwall draga<ll dieaall ddalgag dtieall dlaall ga diglhall déalgall tnle Jgnall a<g

aiwll (niygs jligy 2,400,000 gliay @auwll gula 16 lajad dadi aligl gujgis &)laVl gulaa gl
2021 prauwus 31 cna diadiall

shd | ang=uwll | gl | (g i ¢na) .¢.¢.@.gb dlgliallg Alléill @uly ESpi

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 jrawaia 31

daleall adillg aéill .10
:only Lo o 31 ¢na Jaleall a6illg 26ill ganiy

2020 2021
wniygs jlias wniigs jlisa

876,777 1,025,687 Ad6ig ¢lgidl (al apji

3,050,000 2,050,000 aiili gilag

3,926,777 3,075,687  =aaall (nllall jSpall glul 18ag Jaleall adillg aaill

ailli ga JisU adnl Gleaiwl alyia aly aili gilag
(500,000) (500,000) Jadl

3,426,777 2,575,687 2anallanaill Alaasill glullaag Jaleall asillg Aaill

Ligiw (3.5% W] 1% :2020) 2% ] 1% g La aglyis enlea aaila Jaga huwgia jai ailill gflagll g
oy haina (niigs jlisa 50,000 :2020) ¢niigs jlisa 50,000 gliar aulill gilagll blaisMl @iy
(17 alny) acganall (nl] dagiaa Al adilaifl A\yauwi Jiléa alilans

Jlall guij .1

:2020) Laaw 150,000,000 ga Jalsili ggaaallg janallg ar ppnall @il aspill Jlawly ggsiy
Jals1L Ta8i dcgana «amuull (ula 100 :2020) guld 100 datéy (lazw 150,000,000

alyil Gleyjgig yailallg GlbliisVl .12

LYl enblyiavl (i

aan\ll A\ba<illg aiawoiill ainiMlg al ag-\l Glla<illg 2016 diwl 1 @by alspill ggilél Lo_og
Cngsll Auwwga ans Jud aiwll 215 ga 10% duwi glhdiwl @iy (@l aspnll quulwill @lhillg (=l
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi

2020 2021
wniigs jlisa wnisgs jlia
- 5,143,935

- 61,521

- 27,77

- (89,292)

- 5,143,935

2020 2021
¢nings jliaa wniigs jlisa
1,540,567 1,506,358
159,764 231,642
(193,973) (137,199)

- (245)

1,506,358 1,600,556

d=anall ddlall Glilull
2021 prawia 31

gl &S (nly Loga

HliTena
U294 (o Ullnaia

(J1gai @lIsi gan 42)aa) Gaila 4olSi
(7 alry]) dla=ag Glsliaa gav dajra Gaila aalsi

U294 alaw

Hauua 31cha

grabgall aaaall dilai élalsa .14

HlixTena

simll I
diwll JAU5 ggaaall
Haua 3Tna

93
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asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi

2020 2021
wniygs jlias wnings jlisa
5,143,935

- 5,143,935

d=aall dudlall Glilwll
2021 jrawaia 31

wlwg ygja .13

daylja giila

wl| diw go aglyii djia ggnc (na gaall (Gaiwi daylpall GLdleil ungar adaiwall 2llall gl
2.625% iy 1) Jaaig dlagall Glegasall gulwi wile @Griwall gliall digui @iy .Cilgiw 5

2020 2021
wniigs jliga wniigs jliaa

- 5,143,935

4,629,542
- 514,393

5,143,935

(e M 12020 jrauus 31) Ligiw

:dlasll ) Taliiwl @lwllg gg)éll Julai il laga

dla<ll
wnigs jliaa
dlgliia pc
dlglaia

oo | aagsull | Cugsll | (g gni o) £.8.@.0b dlgliallg Allsill @uls asplb



asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi

dsanall ddlall Glildl

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall Gliludl

2021 prawia 31 2021 jrawaia 31
Loyl Loyl ddéniwa Glagynag gt jlai ggiila .15
2020 2021 ggaalwall
c1as il i S 1l
eniygs Lz cniigs jliny ¢niygs jlina 2020 o
:2a2all Jaall gl cnisgs jlipa tnisgs jliza
261,028 435,853 435,853 gauinll = cilalpl
1,661,255 1,241,869 U9 i ggiila
(61,151) (113,457) (113,457) Glagyna alajiwl
i 2,449,859 2,127,831 Ulnniag dériwa dlagyna
(37,200) (286,766) (286,766) w Al aguy _
408,191 158,690 c\lac ga laada Gleas
:2a2all (nilall jSpall gly 92,957 103,919 ggal gaiila
61,151 - - aalle (na Wb ga Gaiwa glia
4,612,262 3,632,309
w sl Gllalea
algag jlie 2hag Glasag Glsliaa el Jlixa 148,800 2liar ariigsll tnilgall Glia ga adlha @Yl aspill Claliwl adiall il JAS
(185,881) - - as\aiwl cald .aspil allas! dnniall ué clitall )i @laiind (g jlus 365,000 :2020) (iiigs

Wl aal niigs jLliaa 513,800 gluar jpna Jrawis @Yl aspoll ajla)

0c @lyi 8xysiall Glagynall 9 alay) (o Laic ansall ealua ga asiwall gllall Jiei

bl sic yagill @aloasg 65118 oy alivsall ambina go @aball alsall gl la€ aataal aallc Gla Wbl ga GMlalea .16

g Hau anill Alspillg @l aspall Lilell éjlall cnabgag (raabwall adlle ala wlbll Jiay
bgpiig Glulw tnle asalgall @i lwgalo ili of asjiio §anu lale ggulas of laule
.alll aspill &)lal Jué ga AMalsall ada pewi

:llell &j1aVl gabga élalsa

by Las diwdl JAUA dcgaaall Llell jlaMl cnabga alalsa ils

2020 2021 :a2aaall adlall Alilll (na dajaall @éle Ala wlbl ga AMaleall (il Laga
wniygs jlins eniygs jlits
270,725 335,976 Jalll ajuna (Al Liljag wilg)
24,000 22,000 ajaVll yulaa claci alalsa
23,281 20,050 abgall aaaall alai alalsa
318,006 378,026
95 94
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl
2021 prawia 31

2020 2021
wniigs jlisa wnisgs jLlia

4,072,707 2,407,863 (enisgs jlisa) éiwll Ay

150,000,000 150,000,000 aiwll JU5 dailsll @awll aael 22yall hwgiall

27 16 (gula) Gadiallg drwlbwill @awll Gy

oia__la,u.nlﬂlé,uljgé_sw;njl@lmlGULEUIQJJUUQQALC@ANTMG\J.QI&Q i cljal @iy al
(@@l diagj alyal dale] alhii aé ¢nill d=axall adlall Aliledl

adlall jblaall &jlal Glwlawg Wlaai 19

adlpallg guliallg aanill adyphy pblaallada &)lal @i g<ig dcgaaall dhdiil (na Jblaall gasi
draaf ald blaall &jlal (né déyyhll ada gl .w il hilgillg jblaall agaal 18ag &paiwall
Jblhall py=ill drlgima dcgaaally ja S Jaaiig abjUl (Gu6ai nad deganall jlpaiwl dpus

.« dbgiall Glygiuall Glei) lag

Jblha wnle (Ggull jblhal (p<ill jnidig dlguwll jblhag laiiMll jblhal dcgarall Py<ii
Jblha alé) (na dcgaaall awluw Jiaii .qawll jlewl pblaag dauistl GMasll jblhag dailall
.acgaaall ial gnadiljiuwdl bibAaill dlilac JU5 ¢a Jlacll

Glayilyiwl alaiclg yblaall ajlal Jalidl qaiall 26g e dlalsll algguall @Yl aspoull Jaaii
Qia ga ¢gi JS §jla] dlwluw alaiclg dealja dcgaaall §jla] wnlgii . jblaall &jla] tihaliag
.alisl jlasl daangall jblaall

glaifVll jblaa 19.1

20 @J10 adc gl ddla alai ungas ailaljills clagll ge Jiléa Wb jac jblha ha glaiiVl jblaa gl
4jgni glaiiMll jblaal py=ii ¢nill ddlall Glagagall ggsii.alla @jlusd 2155 wnl] (nagy Laa Jrac
g aill giinaallg ailill @ilagllg cgidll inal dap)jiil ga drwy)

shd | ang=uwll | gl | (g i ¢na) .¢.¢.@.gb dlgliallg Alléill @uly ESpi

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 jrawaia 31

dlaina Gliglhag dlaljill .17
:ayllill dlainall Glglhallg GlaljiNl &cgaaall (al

2020 2021
wniygs jlias wnings jlisa
alaljill

5,101,401 - glaiil allhs

alaina aligll

1,888,153 2,713,689 Jlao allhs

naa (nllillig w Al Wlybl ga cliti] agac @lyl wle dcgaaall Géalg 2021 pauya 31 (a Las
U :2020) ¢niygs jligs 1,222,920 gliay LitiVll J16 ¢niliay @leiy Laga (nligiwall Glaill aajila

(10 alad]) jalob glav ulka Jilda dlilans sy haina ailill ilagll ya=u gl

dao61allg drwlbwill @awll d1ngj .18

wle gunalell @l aspill cnaabuwar golall diwll 21y dawds duwlwlll @awll dinyy &lba quiag
G 4b e dasiall @awll anyy wwinig.diwll JU5 aaflsll aalell @awill sael a3pall hwgiall
anlell @awlll yael aapall hwgiall (nle gualell @l aspull caabwar gpolall Al dawd
aals Jugai aic lajlan] @ivw (il aalell @awill a9l aapall hwgiall 1aflj diwll JUA aaflsll
aaflall aaérall algalll ge pili oo aiiy @l .ausle @awl wl] aadsall dlainall dalell @awill

.alilaia aaaiallg aunlwill @auwll dagj gla ¢llilg
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl
2021 prawia 31

(na aedagiall glaifll Jilws p3gai Gubi pili g<lg .ggilall Alai dhiiill @nai Vg diw ga jistl
njaga e piel agaiwall AlalpVl wile éeanall alall Gliludl ayjli

aaall (nllall jSpall glu agid duwill glaiiMll jblhal =il ga iunalll aall gnllill Jgaall angy
:gluuall ¢na Al adilaifl Glipwai gi alilav ol 26g gga

2020 2021
wnings jliya wnings jlisa

3,904,582 3,047,414 (261l elifiwb) aili gilagg ¢lgidl wal dan)i

Gleganall elifinl) loada Glegaaag gy jlai ggitna

6,064,475 5,414,023 (uayjga W] [oada d=aallg [0aéa

9,969,057 8,461,437

wal (Jaaally) gujlaill griaall (il glaifll jolaal gy=ill Jga Glaglsa lill Jgaall angy
:Ulnnia dagana dhwlgr dcgaaall

ggLxill ggisaall

alawdl ¢na galill @bl aac 2021 jraunia 31

360 ga jisi 360 ga Jai
tllanlll lagy lag.

wings jliny - onings jlisa enings jliaa

djadall aijiasll aaréll ndsil enllas\l
6,023,887 1,599,194 4,424,693 A<ill aic

1,929,641 1,599,194 330,447 ajaoall glaiiMl jilws

32.033% 100% 1.47% a=dagiall glaiiVll jilws Jaa

shd | ang=uwll | gl | (g i ¢na) .¢.¢.@.gb dlgliallg Alléill @uly ESpi

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 jrawaia 31

Las Jiléa Wb i eljl glaiflll jblaal py=ill jlada ga aall Aleljalg Glwluw dcganall Gibi
Lara glaii\ll jblaal (py<ill ga dcgaaall 31 . paiwa gulwi wile giinaall Jinai dalpa) @gai
] aalpVl Jhda dan dagaw Gla Cgii ga Jaleill ailill gilagllg ¢lgidl wal aap il (Glsis
gauall jblaal dcganall =i J=2ai laa ¢gaiwa gulwi wle guinall éap)i aalya @is LA

.Glgé<ea d)gni T;gm daga<all

Juinaallg ailill gilagllg ¢gidl wal aapjill ga axilill glaiilll jblaal dcgaaall (=i Lilis
Jblaall pieiga tnndllanll Jalsey Cung Jildall Wbl jac ge wnalll aigaall davjillg g laill
lgall aial ayjioall aasll

gidl wal Gapjill

Gluwga Jiai ahléall wlybll gV 1hi dagana ¢lgitll wnal Gavjill ga axilill glaiiMll jblha )
Awallell cnilaiiMll Wiinill AMIsg ga drara duwlia dtilaill Alating Al3 deawll diwn atlla
lJaub 12 waa wile aeagiall jilwAll wnle cliy J2Ul dpnaé gilagllg A6ill dard ploail gula @i
Jblaall =il AVl Jall dpnd alaléainl guseng

wl loada d=oallg loada Glegarall clifiwl) wpdil disrall apylllg gyguylaill ggiall
(VIRYLE

Jiai .Jrac JsI anjall gileall awuy djgay Jiliy glaiilll pblaal dacgasall WSl )
lara Jasy il algallg Jlacll glhal jigill jblaa ¢l na las Masll éaclal Lalyégagall
.Jlaiflll jblha (nle agana pili «Jrasll

aulal hilgnllg alelpaVlg awluull 283y Lay Jlach 83ag JsI 1Bag <Mas=ll glaiil jblaa jlai
ayilaiiVl d3gall @uéi @iy .«Masll glaifl jblo &jlal Gleis lord dcgaaall wal dcgigall
aynjall ayilaiilll agaall aaai @isg Jolddl cnilaiiVll wyinill alays délay wil Talitwl Jrosll
diyaall g jlaill aaojill (ulall gl gulwi e @ilall glaiill @uéi ljal @iy .ausill 1aal éb

. oll éiwall cna dndleill aadill dléaxill dlaljilli clagll wnlc djadll @aual aliléall

Ulnnia dagana @ladinwl d2aaa ddla alily JS Al (nd daasll (ploail Julai <y @il
Glegaaal alawll ¢na palill @bl sac wnll AlnnAall GMasa viiwi.deagiall glaiil jilws guliél
Glaiiall gqig awalyeall aghiall wwa o) dlilaall Jilwall blail Gls dcgiiall Mas<ll Glclha
ous<r . (wilaiiVl gualill ga wal JISidl gl glaiil ablbhs ahwlg dh<illg <\a<ll wlinig ggig
aagallg algasall dlagleallg Jlgolll ariajll aauéllg AMlaisMl d@xapall dayiill wlwisVl
wghll aleagig adlall wghallg asbwll Glastll Jga a2aaall adlall alill Ay jli (na dsliall
alawdl ena atill alla gna gy il geisaall janaao wlwisl dale Gang @iy .arigivall aalnialll
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 prawia 31 2021 jrawaia 31

Glaljillly clagll Jigalll pagi (na daigenl dcgaaall danlga jblha (na dlguull jblaa gl alawll gné gl @lif sac 2020 pauys 31
acpuy (nlla Jol gu e §53dll @ac ga alguull yblaa iii gl gSay .alall dlgaill dhyiall 360 ga Jisi 360 ga Jai
g0 xslill @lhiily &dlall G pb g dlguull §jlal degadall @gai.alalell aiawd ga wyd juy OIEEN] lagy lagy

I@al8aiwl aic alaljill clagll aralsil Jigalll jagi GigS lps  wieSlss  igS liss

slaw Glaljill wl Taliiwl dcgaaall wal dllall Abglhall Glaaiwl daild (lill Jgaall ol 85801l & 4161l agdll (sl gulas]

:qJ1aY1 dledgig dagniall ¢ dadleill dlegasall 6,654,743 1,511,729 5,143,014 Jisill aic
12 ga jisi ) 1,901,227 1,511,729 389,498 ajadall glaiiVll jilws
sgaaall Jad adi2wl]3  jaini3 s
uniy Liia uniy Lia uniy Liia uniy Liia
niygs jLis niygs jLiy niygs jLiy niygs )Liy 58.57% 100% 1 57% a6giall glaifll jilus Jaso
2021
Jg)Lai ggiils el e e e
3,473,619 - 2,231,750 1,241,869 *aéaiwa Glagnag glaiMll yblaal py=ill ga (nndlll aall yblaa jSyi
5,143,935 4,629,541 514,394 ] Blug Jgyd dhiil (na gl «@aylivia Jlacl ahdbil (na alléall Wlblll ga sac cjidy losic AljSHill i
. ija8 J=ou 2é laa alilaia aalnial Glaw 095y laaic gl aralyeall aadhiall guai (na
998,846 511,841 359,288 127,117 Jaalill @ljill e e bttt @m ng... o9 e ae :
gl duwlowll gl dalnidlll wgphll tna dlp<ill Jilaa o plif diadleill dlaljilMb clagll winlc
wlc Jigi enill aljghill @Gleiy Lawa dcgaaall el dawill dpwbwall wd] aljsyill i e
9,616,400 5,141,382 3,105,432 1,369,586 dcganall dullall dlagagall i Julai gSas disa &ualy$s ddhia wle gi ailys Jlack lhg
atilaifl alinwai gl ai haina alilap ol gpg Jia adlill awalpeall Gbliall awa glaiill jblaal
gl cna
2020
. . 2020 2021
tlagpnag ggylai gglila (niygs jLis (niygs Lisa
4,204,071 - 2,542,816 1,661,255 *ddaiwa
:aralyall adhiall
1,147,968 524,393 467,681 155,894 Juolill aljill
5,352,039 524,393 3,010,497 1,817,149 8826816 7,223,066 Cugsll dlga
1,142,241 1,238,371 WAl Jgag enadlall ggleill gulaa Jga
<Masgll ga loaéa Gleaall clifiwly *
9,969,057 8,461,437
101 100
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl
2021 prawia 31

Ulagagall dlalell aawsll cna Alpill aatii) gaaall Jaall glu LnJ_CJ.uLlJI ¢ndlill Jgaall abgy
Glp<iall aalsi blaisdl ga .auisill dMlasll Wp jlawi tna il dagii (auasill Gliglhallg
Al i Al

G\asll W jlewi na psill
5% Gy duisyl

aiull a1y enle pifill auisill AMla=ll @ajaall dapjil

2020 2021 2020 2021
wniigs jlisa wniigs jlia wnings jliya wniigs jlia

23,018 + 14,152 + 460,359 283,047 <y jal Jlga

25,291+ - 505,826 - qJqu

@auwill jlewi pblaa 19.3.3

wgiwa (na alp<ill i @awill alalell datall ulsi jhlaa (e @awlll jlewl jhlaa
aausll (na p2ill ga @awlll jlewl jblaa aiii .a1noll @awill jlewl dawé gi @awlll Alpbga
w3l alalddl alalpMl anle @awlll jlewi pblaa pili (il Lawa .@awi (ha Gljlaiiw\l alalsll
Al JUa ga alslell aaiéll asjaall aslall (Ggan algsil alslell aagall ¢na p<ill daii
Goull Glphda (na 5% auwis jasa peoi wiuy deanall adlall alilll ag)li gna «n sl alaldll

:aiili i Al alpeiall daalsi blainVl ga

) Jou cna pill
un Al dlabudl GlalpVl anle pailill % @il

2020 2021
wnisgs jlias wniigs jlia

12,702 10,770 %+5 @awlll jouw

Jlall guij ajlal .20

anall Jlall guiy Ja=a (ile abalaall glap ga dcgaaall Jlawly &jlal go vuutidl waall gl
alwall [atlc Jniy aaid el Guanig Jlaclll @cal

wghll (na alpill cgn a aile Alaei cljalg Jlall goij JSia ajlab dcgaaall gai
Gleyjgi Glegaaa Jua=i dcgaaall jgas «abiaei gl Jlall iy J$ia wle ahalaall .agalnialll
a0 @awl jlap| gl graabwall wd] Jlall guly dale] gi abjil
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asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 jrawaia 31

Ggull jblaa19.3

aayii adla alsll alisiwall auaaill Alaasill gi alalell aauall alai pblha (na Ggull pblaa gl
aninlll GMasll jblaag aailall jlewl jblaa ;Ggull jblha ganii . Ggull jlewl tna alpill
caawill jlewi jblhag

Gaull Glalailg wgjhl paiwall @uaill gulwi wtle Ggqull jblaa &)lal @il

arpl AMaea/ @ailall jlewi jblaa 19.3.1

ay i anle agll / aaflall Alasa ¢na alpill §igi gf Jlaisl ga asll / aailall Ja=a jblaa Divii
ailjall ajla) Jua ga i/ aailall jlewi pblaa jlai.adlall Glgatll alalell aausll gi alidiwall

aailall aol<iajla) (na acgarall o)l dwliw Jiaii.Glglhallg Glagagall aipll / aailall Jaea
Jblhal dcganall Pyeii.apiallg ailill dailall GMaa Gl ggaall ga dcgana @ladiwb au gl /
callwlll Jugaill aagal lmaaig Jall lmngja wnle aiyll / Gailell Jaza

asll / aaflall GMasa ¢na @vjieall alpill pili (na gaaall jilwall gi bl gly duwlws gl
lay Bhoinall ddlall abiglhallg Glagagall piall pewll winle zliydaalg diwl deganall a1y nle
alga=all Glp<ill gaaall jilwall gi AUl gly duwbws gdlill Jgaall avgy 2021 pauys 31 ¢a
AMa=a (na plaaill ggsuw .aili (vl aljigiall gLan) blainVl ga aailall jlewi cna disaall

Jilaa guusc pili agyll / aaflall

(-/+) 2 H1 (@yLwall) enle pifill
wniygs jliss

blaill cna pill
(-/+) GrwLwill dlasll

2020 2021

- 50,153 100 (igsIl jLigall

apinill AMasll pblaa19.3.2

alall arlisiwall &asill alaasill gi dlalell aawall wlsi jblaa (na duisil dllasll jblaa g
ga dauislil aMasll jblaa dcganall pai.auistl dllasll W jlawl (a Alpill www dudla
dabiia d)gn auinlll AMlasll o jlewi (na d=agiallg il Alspall @usi JUs
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl
2021 prawia 31

@ladiwk alslell daisll gulia

G\haall JlET]

a1jagall tha angjeall

abgalall dhii (Glguwi
ndLlan\l (2 ingiwall) (1 uingiwall)

wnings jliya wnings jliya unings jliaa
2020 jpawia 31

dlalall daroll dwléa dlagaga

:@awl ¢na Gljlaiiwl
dlalell daréll dwléa dilla dlagaga

254,037 - 254,037 Al dlaldul clalpVl JAA ga

Jlawi (] ¢gaylls alalell daiall a1ani @iy Joddii (Ggu tha djeuwall dadlall Glgaill auwill
.Glglhall daxiyiwall ulhll jlewig alagagall elpill jlewl @ladiwl @it .apuall (Ggull
dwléa adla Glagagas dpewall @awlll Wiini LM Jilé ¢ gai wile dcgaaall Cala

apliall pyl lay blaisVl @is M s o paill alaldudl Glalpll JAA ga alalell aaisll

Glagagall awwilly .ayjiaall laiaid e daiala djgny lini A adlall dlgaill alalell aausll gl

go . (jaub pic aniil ga Jal) Jolll ajnaé Gloaiwl ayia ala gi alilwll adlall Gliglhallg dadlall
Luyai alalell laiaré Jalei ajiasll aausll gi gjicall

dlelhall Gloglea .22

&)1Vl gulaa Ji6 go laigalja Cuai anill Glagleall il Taliiw! Jigdill Glelnd éylall ¢aan
Jaiwall tnlgiy .<Ia¥ll @ubig ajlgall g1jgi oyl Jrsudill aljlya AlAil g Jgiwall aliay ¢rall
alga Jala aalihall aralyeall gdalgall wndl liiwl élaiall Jlacl @ubii Jusdiill aljlya Alail ge
dlagynallg dlslpllig abiglhallg dlagagall (nalya Juai enllill Jgaall oy .lan)jlag dugsll

2020 jrawa 31g 2021 jrawa 31 ¢na duadiall aiwll aljillg

dralpaall Glagleall

2dgall ] Glelball Glagagag ailiig dlaly) Gaiiwl @ial2all Glogleall @i jlb) (na
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asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 jrawaia 31

gulj wnle laguda (uall qalp Jiag wrall iVl Jaga @laiwl Jlall guly dcgarall wélyi
26illg elgiyll wal danjill lnali wlwllg ggall Jljal dcgaaall @gai .guall (nalo Ixilj Jlall
(bliidlg @uaill dsle] yailag Jlall guly go @slall Ggés wnllas] ggsiy .guall (o gab
ooy agis ga Jlall gy ggsiy .alayall abjlllg dlslell aasll (nblislg auisil GMasll Jigai
alijlllg alalell aagall (nblyinlg auinlil GMasll Jigai (nbliislg @uaill aale] gailag Jlall
Jlixa 37,319,977 :*2020) 2021 jrauwa 31 (na Las (nisgs jlina 38,085,981 2luay ¢lIA jadig dljall

(¢niygs

useig 2020 prawys 31 ¢na las deaaall dulall Glilidl ga (Galgii M dajarall gllall pu gl *
23 albyMl cna J1ndilly 5jlg ga Las [@glya] @i cnill Gla<ill

adlall digaill alalell &arsll .21

.Gcgaaall dluglhag dlagagal dlalell daisll guliél cnagall Jgaall endlill Jgaall angy

ajall Jgaall ingiwa gav aalll daréll dwldall dlagagall Juai enllill Jgaall angy
:alalell dawsll guliol

@lxaiwb dlslell dardll gl

Glaaall Ll

a1 ymgall tna angjeall

abgalall ahudii Glguwi
¢niLlaVli (2 i(ngiwall) (1 (ngiwall)

wnisgs jlias wnisgs jlias wnisgs jlias
2021 prawwia 31

dlalell dardll dwléa dlagaga

:a@awl ¢no dljlaiiwl
dlalall dardll dwléa drlla dlagaga

215,401 - 215,401 Al alalil GlalpVl JUs ga
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asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg ALlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLildl

2021 prawia 31

eneaj il qljalll dale] .23

apalimall P)Ul o @usill dsle] bl ¢na sk jll ge dunlbhall @il aspill Gald 2016 diw JiUA
dalc] (nbliinlg laiaié ga wlch apaliwall WByUl Jrawi LA ge aiig 2016 jauus 31 ¢na Las
:oLi;Ta.Lca.m’m ga lnngIJaléaLcT(ojg,n'AJIg (niigs Jjlisa 731,150 glias @@uidi

d=anall daisall ailyall ddlall dlagleall wile Glyilill gpala il Jgaall ang,

alplldale] asy alpaVléale] pili  aalya] Grw Las
eniygs jlias eniygs jliza eniygs jliza
36,477,235 (731,150) 37,208,385
8,693,850 (731,150) 9,425,000
alalldale] aos  alpaVléale] pili  aalja] Grw Las
eniygs jlias eniygs jlixs eniygs jlisa
36,890,603 (731,150) 37,621,753
8,843,850 (731,150) 9,575,000

:gaaall gilall jSpall gly

2020 Jiliy 1nd

dlagag Ulsliaa

il 85le] il

2020 pawa 31cna

dlaag Ulsliaa

euaill 6:lc] ails

Jrawa 31 (na aradiall diwll anaill Glaaaillg Jalddl Jaallg Jaall alily wnde pili aagy

.2020

2020 2021
Cniygs jliaa niygs jlins
19,203,811 19,607,563
1,969,116 2,405,399
21,172,927 22,012,962
4,312,018 2,534,335
(239,311) (126,472)
4,072,707 2,407,863

* lmalja] alea
2020 2021
Cniygs jliaa tniygs jlina
40,538,464 46,112,971
10,098,670 9,654,800
50,637,134 55,767,771
6,142,760 10,770,443
1,062,591 550,733
7,205,351 11,321,176

asulill lailsSpng (alada) .¢l..yu algliallg Gllsill @uwly aspi

d=aall dudlall Glilwll
2021 jrawaia 31

alj2all gdgall (il Glelhall alagaga Gaiiwl Las alalpVl aia (6841 (all (ralj2all

.Ulagagall

alalpyl

cugslialgs
sl ggleill gulaa Jga ard)

aiwll (6jLws) a1y — Adliill
Cugsll dlga
cnahll ggleill gulha Jga diay

Glelholl Glagaga

dugsll dlgs
sl ggleill gulaa Jga aréy

Glclhall Glglha

cugsllalga
waulall ggleill gulaa Jga aréy

useig 2020 prawus 31 wna Las deaaall dulall Gliludl ga (Galgii M dajaall gllall psu gl *

23 2l cnd Jinoilly 3jlg ga Las [aglya] @i cnill GMya<ill
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cygs!l - gl Gisall
.s.¢l.@.gu dlgliallg Gluéill @uly aspn

Cugsll 13089 élanll 22801.u .o
+965 2228 6100 :ila
+965 2228 6124 :jusla

info@jtckw.com :unig JisIMI ag pill

b5
.@.(@.3 Ula=allg Jaill Gphll Gjica aSpu
Jhd (angall 41210 . .o

+974 4412 7325 :«ila

+974 4450 1255 :gyusla
info.qa@jtckw.com :unig Ji<IMI a1 pll

diaguwll duell éslaall
@-(@-3 dtiiwagll s eni ¢na @S

dixguull aujell dslaall (32232 alaall (6501.0 .o
+966 8324223 :ila

+966 832 8990 :(usla

info.ksa@jtckw.com :¢nig jisIMI Ay pl|

asulill lailSpng (alada) .¢l.q.yu algliallg GLlsill @uwly aspi
d=aaall aulall GLiLl
2021 jrawaia 31

19-a1ag5 piili .24

<hig pisy («19-116g5») lig)gs gug o i gy drallell @anll dahio Gapw 2020 yujlo Jlb
gulaa Jga ashia wile Lagl quiaill 1aa jif a8g .@llell il graa (na gl ajliiil Laljicl
Glgha @llell lail gras na Glagsall Gaail adgg .Cugsil alga ¢la ¢na Lar cnadlall gglsill
Gllac y53ag (nelaizVlacbilly ALl pivig aganll GUel clis ena Lay (gug proll jLiiil <Iginy

Jgall elail g1ad ¢na Jgaill yhang Guelll

Jall (naw gi &)1Vl gagiig [us laailiig acgaaall Jlach wnle pilill g<i @l «lypall ada ha
wnjlgillig .aalihall aragsall GljbiiwMlg Glwluwll gliil acgaaall Jplgi wgw .atlc ga la (nlc
lilal 1aisig (@G all Jnal arlieidill laililac dlplgal lmams i jlné Jasiw Ui 20
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Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

At 31December 2020 As previously Effect of After
reported restatement restatement

KD KD KD

Property and equipment 37,621,753 (731150) 36,890,603
Revaluation surplus 9,575,000 (731150) 8,843,850

There is no impact on the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31December
2020.

24. IMPACT OF COVID-19

During March 2020, the World Health Organisation (“WHO”) declared the Coronavirus (“COVID-19")
outbreak as a pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread across the globe. This outbreak has
also affected the GCC region including the State of Kuwait. Governments across the globe have
taken steps to contain the spread of the virus, which included closure of borders, released social
distancing guidelines and enforced country-wide lockdowns and curfews.

At this stage, the impact on the Grooup’s business and results has not been significant and
management expects this to remain the case. The Group will continue to follow the various
government policies and advice and, in parallel, will do its utmost to continue in operation in the
best and safest way possible.

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar

Kuwait - Corporate Office
Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.K.s.c.c

P.O. Box 22801, Safat 13089, Kuwait.
Tel: +965 2228 6100

Fax:  +965 2228 6124

Email: info@jtckw.com

Qatar
Road Junction Transport & Equipment Co. W.L.L.

P.O. Box 41210, Doha Qatar.
Tel: +974 4412 7325
Fax:  +974 44501255
Email: info.qa@jtckw.com

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
JTC Logistics Co. W.L.L.

P.O. Box 6501, Dammam 32232, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Tel: +966 832 4223
Fax: +966 832 8990
Email: info.ksa@jtckw.com




Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

22. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Restated*
2021 2020
Management has determined the operating segments based on the information reviewed by the KD KD
board of directors represented by the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of allocating
resourcres and assesing performance. The chief operating decision maker organises the entity Segment assets
based on different geographical areas, inside and outside Kuwait. The following table presents the .
: : ) R - Kuwait 46,112,971 40,538,464
geographical analysis of the Group’s assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses, and profit for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020. Rest of GCC 9,654,800 10,098,670
raphical information
Geographica ormatio 55,767,771 50,637,134
In presenting the geographic information, segment revenue, results and assets have been based
on the geographic location from which income is derived and segment assets were based on the o
. . Segment liabilities
geographic location of the assets.
Kuwait 10,770,443 6,142,760
2021 2020
2
KD KD Rest of GCC 550,733 1,062,591
Revenue 11,321,176 7,205,351
Kuwait 19,607,563 19,203,811
Rest of GCC 2,405,399 1,969,116 * Certain amounts presented do not correspond to the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2020 and reflect adjustments made as detailed in Note 23.
22,012,962 21172,927
23. RETROSPECTIVE RESTATEMENT
Results —profit (loss) for the year
In the year 2016, the Parent Company has accounted excess revaluation gain on leasehold land as
Kuwait 2,634,335 4,312,018 at 31 December 2016 resulting in overstatement of leasehold land and revaluation reserve by KD
Rest of GCC (126,472) (239.31) 731,150 which have been restated as disclosed below.
The following tables summarise the impacts on the Group’s interim condensed consolidated
2,407,863 4,072,707

financial information.

Consolidated statement of financial position:

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries

At1January 2020 As previously Effect of After
reported restatement restatement

KD KD KD

Property and equipment 37,208,385 (731150) 36,477,235
Revaluation surplus 9,425,000 (731150) 8,693,850
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Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Foreign currency denominated Change in currency rate by 5%

balances effect on profit for the year
2021 2020 2021 2020
KD KD KD KD
Us Dollar 283,047 460,359 +14,152 + 23,018
EURO - 505,826 - + 25,291

19.3.3 Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities will fluctuate as a result of changes in
the level of equity indices or the value of individual share prices. Equity price risk arises from the
change in fair values of equity investments. The effect of equity price risk on other comprehensive
income as a result of a change in the fair value of equity instruments at FVOCI, at the reporting
date due to an assumed 5% change in market indices with all other variable held constant, is as
follows:

% change in

equity Price Effect on other comprehensive income
2021 2020
KD KD
Price of equity shares +5% 10,770 12,702

20. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy
capital ratio to support its business and maximize the shareholder’s value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment or return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by capital plus net
debt. The Group includes within net debt, loans and borrowings less bank balance and cash. Total
equity comprises of share capital, revaluation surplus, foreign currency translation reserve, fair
value reserve and retained earnings. Capital comprises share capital, revaluation surplus, foreign
currency translation reserve, fair value reserve and retained earnings and is measured at KD
38,085,981 as at 31 December 2021 (2020*: KD 37,319,977).

* Certain amounts presented do not correspond to the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2020 and reflect adjustments made as detailed in Note 23.

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

21. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and
liabilities.

The following table shows an analysis of the assets measured at fair value by level of the fair value
hierarchy:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices Significant

in active observable
markets inputs
(Level) (Level 2) Total
31December 2021 KD KD KD
Assets measured at fair value:
Investment securities:
Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income 215,401 - 215,401
31 December 2020
Assets measured at fair value:
Investment securities:
Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income 254,037 - 254,037

For financial instruments quoted in an active market, fair value is determined by reference to
quoted market prices. Bid prices dare used for assets and offer prices are used for liabilities. The
Group has irrevocably designated the quoted equity securities as financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income as these are not held for trading.

The fair values of financial instruments are not materially different from their carrying values. For
financial assets and financial liabilities that are liquid or having a short term maturity (less than
twelve months) it is assumed that the carrying amounts approximate to their fair value.
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Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
KD KD

Geographic region:
Kuwait 7,223,066 8826816
GCC and other countries 1,238,371 1142241
8,461,437 9,969,057

19.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial
asset quickly at close to its fair value. The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring on a regular
basis that sufficient funds are available to meet liabilities as they fall due.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted repayment obligations and management expectations:

Within 3to12 More than 12
3 months months Months Total
KD KD KD KD
2021
Trade payables and
accruals* 1,241,869 2231750 - 3,473,619
Loans and borrowings - 514,394 4,629,541 5,143,935
Lease liability 127,717 359,288 511,841 998,846
1,369,586 3,105,432 5,141,382 9,616,400
2020
Trade payables and
accruals* 1,661,255 2,542,816 - 4.204,071
Lease liability 155,894 467,681 524393 1147968
1,817,149 3,010,497 524,393 5,352,039

* Excluding advances from customers.
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Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

19.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprise of: interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk,and e quity price risk.

Market risk is managed on the basis of continuous appraisal of market conditions and trends.

19.31 Interest [ profit rate risk

Interest/profit rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest/profit rates will affect
future profitability or the fair values of financial instruments. Interest/profit rate risk is managed by
the treasury department of the Group. The Group is exposed to interest/profit rate risk as a result of
mismatches of interest/profit rate repricing of assets and liabilities. It is the Group’s profit policy to
manage its interest/profit cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The Group is exposed
to interest/profit rate risk on its term loans and payable under Islamic financing.

The sensitivity of the consolidated statement of profit or loss is the effect of the assumed changes
in interest/profit rates on the Group’s profit for one year, based on the floating rate financial assets
and financial liabilities held at 31 December 2021. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss to reasonably possible changes in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant. A decrease in interest/profit rates will have an identical
opposite effect.

Change in basis Effect on (loss) profit (+/-)
Currency points (+/-) KD

2021 2020

Kuwaiti Dinars 100 50,153 -

19.3.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group manages its currency risk by
regularly assessing current and expected foreign currency exchange rate movements.

The effect on consolidated statement of income (due to changes in fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities) as a result of change in the currency rate, with all other variables held consistent is
shown below:
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Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021 For the year ended 31 December 2021
industry and country, in which customers operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. The table below provides information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade

receivables (gross) using a provision matrix:
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer
is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined
in accordance with this assessment. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial 31December 2021 Days past due
condition of trade receivables. The outstanding balance of other receivables are considered

Trade receivables

to have a low risk of default and management believes that the counterparties have a strong <360 days > 360 days
capacity to meet contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. Total
KD KD KD
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various Estimated total gross carrying amount at
customer segments with similar loss patterns (e, by geographical region, product type, customer default 4,424,693 1,599,194 6,023,887
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The
calculation reflect.s the prgbqblllty—_welgh.ted outcome, the tl_me value of money and reasonable Estimated credit [oss 330,447 1,599,194 1,929,641
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are provided _
for if past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity. However, the Expected credit loss rate 7.47% 100% 32.033%
impact of applying the expected credit risk model at the reporting date on accrued income was
immaterial.
Trade receivables
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
consolidated statement of financial position, without taking account of any collateral and other 31December 2020 Days past due
credit enhancements: <360 days > 360 days
Total
2021 2020 KD KD KD
KD KD
) ) ) Estimated total gross carrying amount at
Bank balances and fixed deposits (excluding cash) 3,047,414 3,904,582 default 5143014 1511729 6.654.743
Trade receivables and prepayments (excluding 5,414,023 6,064,475
prepayments and advance to suppliers) Estimated credit loss 389,498 1,511,729 1,901,227
8,461,437 9,969,057 Expected credit loss rate 7.57% 100% 28.57%
Risk concentration of maximum exposure to credit risk
Concentrations arise when anumber of counterparties are engagedin similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political
or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to
developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location. The Group’s financial assets
subject to credit risk, before taking into account any collateral held or credit enhancements, can
be analysed by the following geographic regions:
90 91
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17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Group has following commitments and contingent liabilities:

2021 2020
KD KD
Commitments
Letters of credit = 5,101,401
Contingencies
Letters of guarantee 2,713,689 1,888,153

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had agreed construction contracts with third parties and is
consequently committed to future capital expenditure in respect of pre-fabricated buildings of
KD 1,222,920 (2020: NIL).

Certain fixed deposits are held as collateral security against letter of guarantee issued (Note 10).

18. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. There is no impact
from dilutive instruments outstanding, basic and diluted EPS are identicall.

2021 2020
Profit for the year (KD) 2,407,863 4,072,707
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 150,000,000 150,000,000
year
Basic and diluted earnings per share (fils) 16 27
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Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares between the reporting date and the
date of authorisation of this consolidated financial statement which would require the restatement
of EPS.

19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process
of risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability and each individual within the
Group is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and exposure to market risk limited to interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk. The Group’s policy is to monitor those business risks
through the Group’s strategic planning process.

The Parent Company is ultimately responsible for the overall risk management approach and for
approving the risk strategies and principles. The management of the Group reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below

19.1 Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Financial assets subject to credit risk consist
principally of bank balances, fixed deposits and trade receivables, accrued income and other
receivables.

The Group has policies and procedures in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any
counter party and to monitor the collection of receivables on an ongoing basis. The Group limits its
credit risk with regard to bank balances and fixed deposits by only dealing with reputable banks. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is limited to the extent possible.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk from bank balances, fixed deposits and trade and other
receivables arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these instruments.

Balances with banks

Creditrisk from balances with banks and financialinstitutions is limited because the counterparties
are reputable financial institutions with appropriate credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. Impairment on cash and short-term deposits has been measured on a
12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures.

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments and advance to suppliers)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The demographics of the Group’s customer base, including the default risk of the
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

15. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS Transactions with related parties in the consolidated financial statement are as follows:

2021 2020 Shareholders Total 2021 Total 2020
KD KD KD KD KD
Trade payables 1,241,869 1,661,255 Consolidated statement of income:
Accruals and provisions 2,127,831 2,449,859 Revenue — haulage 435,853 435,853 261,028
Advances from customers 158,690 408,191 Reimbursement of expenses (113,457) (113,457) (61151)
Other payables 103,919 92,957 Other charges (286,766) (286,766) (37.200)
3,632,309 4,612,262 Consolidated statement of financial position:
Amount due from a related party - = 61,151
During the current year, the parent company received certain claim from Kuwait port authorities
amounting to KD 148,800 (2020: KD 365,000), for usage of port land not assigned for Company Other transactions
operations. The management of the Parent company had recognised a total provision of KD Purchases of property and equipment, _ _ (185.881)

513,800 for this purpose. spares and consumables

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Amounts due from shareholder disclosed in Note 9 represents expenses incurred on behalf of
Related parties represent shareholders, key management personnel of the Parent Company and shareholder, amount due from shareholder is interest free and receivable on demand.
entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and

terms of these transactions are approved by the Parent Company’s management. Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of members of key management personnel of the Group during the year was

as follows:
2021 2020
KD KD
Salaries and other short term benefits 335,976 270,725
Directors’ remuneration 22,000 24,000
Employees’ end of service benefits 20,050 23,281
378,026 318,006
86 87
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 For the year ended 31 December 2021
13. LOANS AND BORROWINGS The movement of borrowings is as follows:
2021 2020 2021 2020
KD KD KD KD
Murabaha payables 5,143,935 - At1January - -
Proceeds from borrowings 5,143,935 -
5,143,935 -
Intrest cost (included in finance costs) 61,521 -
Intrest cost included in property and equipment (note 7) 27,77 -
The amounts payable under Murabaha agreements are repayable within1to 5 years. The amount Repayment of borrowings (89,292) -
due is settled on a deferred payment basis and carry profit at 2.625% per annum (31 December
2020: Ni). At 31December 5,143,935 -

Currency wise breakup of the loans and borrowings are as follows:

2021 2020

KD KD 14. EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS
Currency 2021 2020
KD KD
Kuwait Dinars 5,143,935 -
At1January 1,506,358 1,540,567
Charge for the year 231,642 159,764
Non-current 4,629,542 -
Paid during the year (137,199) (193,973)
Current 514,393 -
Foreign exchange difference (245) -
5,143,935 -
At 31 December 1,600,556 1,506,358
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Movement in the provision for expected credit losses (ECL) on trade receivables and accrued
income were as follows:

2021 2020

KD KD

At1January 1,901,227 1,690,906
Expected credit losses for the year 306,458 210,583
Write-off (210,632) -
Foreign exchange difference 2,975 (262)
2,000,028 1901227

As at 31 December 2021, remaining trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are
receivable within less than 30 days. Unimpaired receivables are expected, to be fully recoverable.
The Group does not obtain collateral against receivables.

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of the following at 31 December:

2021 2020

KD KD

Bank balances and cash 1,025,687 876,777

Fixed deposits 2,050,000 3,050,000

Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement 3,075,687 3,926,777
of financial position

Fixed deposits with original maturities more than three (500,000) (500,000)

months

Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement
of cash flows

2,575,687 3,426,777

Fixed deposits yield an average effective interest rate (EIR) ranging between 1% to 2 % (2020: 1% to
3.5%) per annum. Fixed deposits, amounting to KD 50,000 (2020: KD 50,000) are held as collateral
securities against other credit facilities granted to the Group (Note 17).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

1. SHARE CAPITAL

The Parent Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid capital consists of 150,000,000 (2020:
150,000,000) shares of 100 fils (2020: 100 fils) each, which were fully paid in cash.

12. RESERVES, SURPLUS AND DIVIDENDS

a) Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Companies Law No.10of 2016, as amended and its Executive Regulations, as
amended, and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for the year before
KFAS, Zakat and NLST is transferred to statutory reserve until the reserve totals 50% of the paid up
share capital, after which such transfers can be discontinued by a resolution of the shareholders
in the Annual General Assembly meeting upon recommendation by the Board of Directors.

Distribution of the reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend of
5% of paid up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the
payment of a dividend of that amount. During the year, the Group has transferred 10% of the profit
for the year before KFAS, Zakat NLST and directors’ remuneration to statutory reserve.

b) Revaluation surplus

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increases in the fair value of land and decreases to
the extent that such decrease relates to an increase on the same asset previously recognised in
other comprehensive income.

c) Fair value reserve

Fair value reserve represent the accumulated changes in fair values of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

d) Dividends

On 31 March 2021, the Annual General Assembly meeting of the Parent Company’s shareholders
was held and approved the cash dividend of 20 fils per share (2020: 40 fils per share) amounting to
KD 3,000,000 (2020: KD 6,000,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was paid following
the approval date.

Proposed dividends

Subject to requisite consent of the relevant authorities and approval of the general assembly of
the shareholders, the Board of Directors have recommended distribution of cash dividend of 16 fils
per share amounting to KD 2,400,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

As at1January

Additions to leasehold liabilites
Interest on lease liabilities

Lease modifications of lease liabilities
Payments

Derecognition of lease liabilities

Foreign exchange difference

Lease liabilities as at 31 December

Current

Non-current

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position is 3% to 5%.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 19.

2021 2020
KD KD
1,086,731 1193,507
806,566 1288193
56,946 61107
(12187) -
(732,909) (604,168)
(262,419) (849,569)
1,648 (2,339)
944,376 1,086,731
2021 2020

KD KD
457712 581,493
486,664 505,238
944,376 1,086,731
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

The following are the amounts recognised in consolidated statement of income:

Amortization of right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Gain on termination of leases

Total amount recognised in consolidated statement of
income

9. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables (gross)

Less: Provision for expected credit loss

Trade receivables (net)
Accrued income (net)
Prepayments and deposits
Advance to suppliers
Government grants receivable
Due from shareholder (note 15)

Other receivables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s carrying amount of accrued income is net of an allowance for

expected credit losses of KD 70,387 (2020: KD NIL).

2021 2020
KD KD
660,308 574,864
56,046 61107
(10,365) (42,597)
706,889 593,374
2021 2058

KD
6,023,887 6,654,743
(1,929,641) (1,901,227)
4,094,246 4753516
1,155,940 739188
999,044 455640
799,749 1,417,705
- 41856
- 61151
141,696 447695
7,190,675 7,916,751
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Notwithstanding the contractual term of the leases, management considers that, the agreements
of leasehold land are renewable indefinitely, at similar nominal rates of ground rent, and with no
premium payable for renewal of the lease and, consequently, as is common practice in Kuwait,
these leases have been accounted for as freehold land. The mangagemnet does a revaluation of
the leasehold land on cyclical basis at a regular interval of every year.

During the current year, the fair valuation was conducted by two independent appraisers with
a recognised and relevant professional qualification and recent experience of the location and
category of leasehold land being valued. The change in fair value was calculated based on the
lower of the two values. Fair value of the leasehold land is arrived at by reference to industry
acknowledged methods of valuations that depend on market data including recent sales value of
comparable properties. The fair value was determined based on sales comparison method and
is measured under the Level 2 fair value hierarchy. The revaluation gain amounting to KD 1,646,000
(2020: KD 150,000) was included in other comprehensive income and credited directly to equity
as revaluation surplus. The significant assumption used in the determination of fair value was the
market price (per sgm). A decrease of 5% (2020: 5%) in the estimated market price (per sgm) will
reduce the value by KD 561,050 (2020: KD 478,750%).

The depreciation charge has been allocated in the consolidated statement of income as follows:

2021 2020

KD KD

Operating expenses (Note 4) 4,149,605 3,835,935
Administrative expenses (Note 6) 244,403 228173
4,394,008 4,064,108

* Certain amounts presented do not correspond to the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2020 and reflect adjustments made as detailed in Note 23.

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2021 is KD 27,771 (31
December 2020: Nil).

8. LEASES

Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property used in its operations. Leases of land
and buildings generally have lease term of 3 years. The Group’s obligations under its leases are
secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets.
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Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

The Group also has certain leases of equipment with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of
office equipment with low value. The Group applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value
assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements
during the period:

Lands Buildings Total

KD KD KD

As at1January 2020 124,104 1,009,757 1,133,861
Additions to right of use assets - 1,288,193 1,288,193
Amortization (12748) (56216) (574,864)
Derecognition of right of use assets (99,376) (707,596) (806,972)
Foreign exchange difference - (45) (45)
Right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2020 11,980 1,028,193 1,040,173
Additions to right of use assets 77,580 728,986 806,566
Amortization (20,412) (639,896) (660,308)
Lease modifications to right of use assets (8,536) (3,651) (12187)
Derecognition of right of use assets (121m2) (239,942) (252,054)
Foreign exchange difference (75) 150 75
Right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2021 48,425 873,840 922,265
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021 For the year ended 31 December 2021
4. OPERATING EXPENSES measures included government assistance made towards national workforce in the private

sector for a period of up to six months effective from April 2020.

2?(%1 20&8 The financial support amounting to KD 262,675 is accounted for in accordance with IAS 20
‘Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosures of Government Assistance’ and recognised in
profit or loss as ‘other income’ on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Parent Company
Staff costs 6,082,338 4,851,035 recognises expenses for the related staff costs.
Depreciation (Note 7) 4,149,605 3,835,935
Motor vehicle consumables and maintenance 3,261,072 2,518,124 6. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Subcontract costs 662,010 350,460
o . L 2021 2020
Stevedoring incentive and commission 967,622 1,220,682 KD KD
Amortization of right of use asset 660,308 574,864
Staff cost 1,277,351 1,204,951
Others 1186,234 1260913 T eosts e S
Communication, consultancy and repair and maintenance 337,467 236,588
16,969,189 14,612,013 expenses
Depreciation (Note 7) 244,403 228173
Expected credit losses on trade receivables (Note 9) 306,458 210,583
Operating expenses includes inventories recognised as expenses amounting to KD 1,831,328 (2020:
KD 1,554.764). Others 547,106 827,846
2,712,785 2,708,141
5. OTHER INCOME
2021 2020
KD KD
Interest income 27,452 52,962
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 200,097 25,400
Gain on termination of leases (note 8) 10,365 42597
Government grant* = 262,675
Dividend income 23,751 18,072
Others 72,932 42,991
334,597 444,697
* Inthe prior period,in an attempt to mitigate the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic,the Government
of Kuwait had introduced measures to aid private entities in response to the pandemic. These
74 75
Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar



72

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Impairment of property and equipment and right of use assets

Management assesses the impairment of property and equipment and right of use assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

Factors that are considered important which could trigger an impairment review include the
following:

» significant decline in the market value beyond that which would be expected from the
passageof time or normal use,

» significant changes in the technology and regulatory environments,

» evidence from internal reporting which indicates that the economic performance of the asset
is, or will be, worse than expected.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

Revaluation of leasehold land

The Group measures leasehold land at revalued amount with changes in fair value being
recoghised in other comprehensive income. The Group engaged an independent valuation
specialist to assess fair value at the reporting date. Leasehold land was valued by reference to
market based evidence, using comparable prices adjusted for specific market factors such as
nature, location and condition of the property.
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3. REVENUE

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with customers based

on type of services and equipments:

Transportation
Stevedoring
Leasing equipment

Warehousing

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred over time

Geographical markets
Kuwait
Qatar

Saudi

Total revenue from contracts with customers

2021 2020

KD KD
3,633,493 2,291,341
7,385,139 8,387,535
10,464,623 9,659,716
629,707 834,335
22,012,962 21172,927
22,012,962 21172,927
19,607,563 19,203,811
1,538,268 1,378,688
867,131 590,428
22,012,962 21172,927
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consolidation are recognised in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Segment information

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from
which it earns revenue and incurs cost. The operating segments used by the management of
the Group to allocate resources and assess performance are consistent with the internal report
provided to the chief operating decision maker. Operating segment exhibiting similar economic
characteristic, product and services, class of customers where appropriate are aggregated and
reported as reportable segments.

2.6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods. In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to
circumstances beyond the Group’s control and are reflected in the assumptions if and when
they occur. ltems with the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements with substantial management judgement and/or estimates are collated
below with respect to judgements/estimates involved.

Significant judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

Going concern

The Group’s management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern
and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated financial
statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Classification of financial assets

The Group determines the classification of financial assets based on the assessment of the
business model within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual
terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise
the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination option. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The
Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

Allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. For trade receivables, the Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECL. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. Actual results
maly differ from these estimates.

Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory items

The Group makes a provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory items. Estimates of net
realisable value of inventories are based on the most reliable evidence at the time the estimates
are made. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly related to
events occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date to the extent that such events confirm
conditions existing at the end of year

Useful lives, residual values and related depreciation charges of property and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation charges of its property and equipment. These estimates are determined after
considering the expected usage of the asset, physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and future
depreciation charge would be adjusted where management believes the useful lives differ from
previous estimates.

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar

71



68

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

> Levell Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

> Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

> Llevel3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and the Group intends to settle on a net basis to realise the asset and
settle the liablities simultenusly.

Employees’ end of service benefits

Local

The Group provides end of service benefits to all its local Kuwaiti and expat employees. The
entitlement to these benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service.
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. The Group’s
obligations are limited to these contributions which are expensed when due.

Further, with respect to its national employees, the Group also makes contributions to public
institution for social security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s
obligation are limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

International

The Group provides end of service benefits to all its international employees. The entitlement to
these benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service. The expected costs
of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. The Group’s obligations are limited
to these contributions which are expensed when due.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
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under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in
the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Commitment and contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position, but
are not disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is remote.

Capital commitment refers to the projected capital expenditure including, but not limited to,
expenses such as property-related costs, equipment, production materials, and future business
ventures the Group has contracted to incur on its property and equipment over a period of time.
Captial commitments are not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and
are disclosed in note 17.

Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in KD, which is also the Parent
Company’s functional currency. For each entity the Group determines the functional currency
and items included in the consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or consolidated statement of income are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or consolidated statement of income, respectively).

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into KD at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income statements are translated at the
average rates of exchange for the year. The exchange differences arising on the translation for
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Fortrade and other receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the balances and the Group’s economic environment.

The management considers a financial asset in default when the contractual payments are 365
days past due. However, in certain cases, the management may also consider a financial asset to
be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and lease
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

» Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

\

» Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities at amortised cost is more relevant to the Group.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as finance income or finance costs.
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade payables and accruals
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received,
whether billed by the supplier or not.

Derecognition

Afinanciallliability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

> In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

> Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in consolidated
statement of income when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables and cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial assets at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as
equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity
under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Group elected to classify irrevocably its equity investments under this category.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are carried at undiscounted original invoiced amount less any expected credit
losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and bank balances and fixed deposits and have
maturity of 3 months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost using
effective interest rate.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at original amount less a provision for any uncollectible amounts. An
estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad
debts are written off when there is no possibility of recovery.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
bank balances and fixed deposits and have maturity of 3 months or less.
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Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair values including
foreign exchange component are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in
the retained earnings as part of equity. Cumulative gains and losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are transferred to retained earnings on derecognition and are not
recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Dividend income on equity investments
at FVOCI are recognised in the consolidated statement of income unless they clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment in which case they are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is de-recognised either when:

> therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

> the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Recoverable amount
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or Groups of assets. When the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation
model is used. These calculations are corroborated by available fair value indicators. Impairment
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the consolidated income statement
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for property
previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this
case the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any
previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the assets or CGUs recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the assets does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is recognised in the consolidated statement of income unless the asset is carried at revalued
amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase in other comprehensive
income.

Financial instruments

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

The Group determines the classification of financial assets based on the business model it uses to
manage the financial assets and the contractual cashflow characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages financial
assets to achieve its business objective. The Group’s business model is not assessed on an
instrument by instrument basis but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on a
number of observable factors. The information considered includes:

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

» The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice;

> The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed: and

» The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst
case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in
a way that is different from the Group’s original expectations, the Group does not change the
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI test)
The Group assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether they meet the
SPPI test. ‘Principal for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal and for
other basic lending risks and costs as well as a profit margin. In assessing whether the contractual
cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. The Group considers:

» Contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;
> Leverage features;
>

Prepayment and extension terms;

‘/7

Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset
arrangements); and

» Features that modify consideration of the time value of money — e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates.

Contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cashflows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to
contractual cashflows that are solely payment of principal and interest. In such cases, the financial
asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group has determined the classification and measurement of its financial assets as follows:
Financial assets at amortised cost
This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at amortised

cost if both of the following conditions are met:

» The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and
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ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option
to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rentalincome. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Property and equipment

Except for leasehold land which is measured at revaluaed amount, property and equipment is
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property and equipment and borrowing costs
for long term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of
property and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the property
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

maintenance costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of income as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of
assets after deduction of residual value as follows:

Motor vehicles and equipment 3-15years
Improvements on leasehold land 10 years
Prefabricated buildings 5-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5years
Tools and machinery 5 years

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement
of income when the asset is derecognised.

The assets’residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost. Following completion, work in progress is transferred into
the relevant class of property and equipment.

Leasehold land is measured at revalued amount. Valuation is performed at regular intervals of
every yedr to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount. Any revaluation changes are credited to the revaluation surplus in OCl, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in the
consolidated statement of income, in which case the increase is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the consolidated statement of income,
except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the
revaluation surplus.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making allowances for
any slow moving obsolete or damaged items. Cost of inventories is based on weighted average
principle, and includes expenditure incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition such as purchase price, shipping costs and other incidental expesnes.

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make sale.
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expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group has concluded that it
is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it typically controls the goods or services
before transferring them to the customer.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Service revenue

Service revenue primarily comprises of stevedoring, haulage, equipment leasing, inventory
management, transportation and warehousing services. Service revenue are recognised over a
period of time when the services are rendered to the customer.

The Group also recognises revenue from contracts of ‘sale of services’ or ‘bundled sale of goods
and services contracts that are viewed as a single performance obligation’ over time using an
output method in measuring progress, generally based on cost-to-cost measure of progress
because it faithfully depicts the Group’s performance towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation.

The Group elected to apply the ‘right to invoice’ practical expedient for contracts that contain
fixed amounts and rates for manpower and materials specified in a contract, when the Group
determines that right to consideration from a customer corresponds directly with the value of the
Group’s performance completed to date.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest rate method (‘EIR”)
that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs,
for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is
recoghised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at
nominal amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on
the pattern of consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Taxes

Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The Group calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% of profit for the year in accordance with the
modified calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Directors resolution, which states that
the transfer to statutory reserve and accumulated losses brought forward should be excluded
from profit for the year when determining the contribution.

National Labour Support Tax

NLSTis calculated at 2.5% of the profit for the year attributable to the Parent Company in accordance
with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Ministry of Finance resolutions No. 24 of 2006.

Zakat

Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Group in accordance with the Ministry
of Finance resolution No. 58/2007 effective from 10 December 2007.

Taxation on overseas subsidiaries

Taxation on overseas subsidiaries is provided in accordance with fiscal regulations applicable to
each country of operation.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Group as d lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases, leases with indefinite life and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

» Land 3 years

> Buildings 3 years

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.
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Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

> Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of

the investee)
» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

» The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

» The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
» Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

» The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of income from the date
the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, non-controlling interest and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss
is recognised in consolidated statement of income. Any investment retained is recognised at fair
value.
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The subsidiaries of the Group are as follows:

Country of
Name of the company incorporation Interestin equity % Principal activities
2021 2020

JTC Fuel Transport Company Kuwait 100% 100% Carriage of goods

W.LL (“JTCF?)

JTC Heavy and Light Equipment Kuwait 100% 100% Leasing vehicles and

and Machinery Leasing equipment rental

Company W.LL (“JTCE")

Held through JTCF

Al Mushtari Public Transport, Iraq 100% 100% Public transport,

Equiment Leasing, Marine equipment leasing,

Services & Warehousing marine services and

Company W.LL warehousing.

JTC Logistics Company LL.C. Kingdom of 100% 100% Carriage of cargo and

Saudi Arabia passengers, storage

services and leasing
of heavy and light
equipments.

Held through JTCE

Road Junction Transport and Qatar 100% 100% Leasing of heavy

Equipment Company W.LL* and light equipment
including cranes and
forklifts and power

generators.

* The Parent Company has 51% beneficial ownership in Road Junction Transport and Equipment
Company W.LL.as of 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: 51%). The Group based on advise from
its legal counsel has assesessed that it effectiviey owns 100% of the subsidiary.

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
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The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of
potential ‘day 2" gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the Board decided to clarify existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent assets
that would not be affected by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and apply prospectively.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Property and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use - Amendments to IAS 16

In May 2020, the IASB issued Property and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use, which
prohibits entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property and equipment, any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in
profit or loss.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1January 2022 and
must be applied retrospectively to items of property and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the IASB issued
amendment to IFRS 9. The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing
whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms
of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received by the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with
earlier adoption permitted. The Group will apply the amendments to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendment.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Profit Rate Benchmark Reform (Phase 2)

On 27 August 2020 the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB or the Board) published
‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2, Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16°
(IBOR reform Phase 2). IBOR reform Phase 2 provides temporary reliefs to address the accounting
issues which arise upon the replacement of an Inter-Bank Offered Rate (an IBOR) with an alternative
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nearly risk-free profit rate (an RFR).

The impact of the replacement of interbank offered rates (IBORs’) with alternative risk-free rates
on the Group’s products and services remains a key area of focus. The Group has exposure to
contracts referencing IBORs, such as Libor, extending past FY2021, when it is likely that these IBORs
will cease being published. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the Group’s transition
to the new rate regimes after 2021 by considering changes in its products, services, systems and
reporting and will continue to engage with internal and external stakeholders to support an orderly
transition and to mitigate the risks resulting from the transition.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it introduces a definition of
‘accounting estimates’. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur
on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1and IFRS Practice Statement 2

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements, in which it provides guidance and examples to help entities apply
materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities
provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities
to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
with earlier application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2 provide
non-mandatory guidance on the application of the definition of material to accounting policy
information, an effective date for these amendments is not necessary.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments to determine the impact they will
have on the Group’s accounting policy disclosures.

2.4 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee.
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12. Stevedoring services, loading and unloading ships and maritime transport.

13. Perform all road transport operations, transporting goods and various materials inside and
outside the State of Kuwait. Especially, operations related to the transport of general cargo and
bulk fuel, water and precious chemical materials by any mean of transportation.

14. Owns stocks and bonds for the Parent Company account only (Parent Company may have an
interest or participate in any way with bodies engaged in similar activities or which may assist
in achieving its objectives in Kuwait or abroad and it may arise or participates or buy these
bodies or join them in their equity).The Parent Company may perform the aforementioned
activities within or outside the State of Kuwait as a legal entity or as an agent.

The Parent Company may perform other similar, complementary or connected activities to its
main activities.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been approved
by the shareholders of the Parent Company on 31 March 2021.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES TO THE GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by International Accounting Standards Board
(“1ASB").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
leasehold land and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, that has
been measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars ("KD”), whichis the functional
and presentation currency of the Parent Company.

Certain prior year amounts do not correspond with the 2020 consolidated financial statements
and reflect adjustments made for restatements as detailed in Note 23.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are consistent with those used in the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new
standards effective as of 1 January 2021. The Group has not early adopted any other standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

2.2.1 New standards, interpretations, and amendments adopted by the Group

Several amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2021, but do not have animpact
on the consolidated financial information of the Group.

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when
an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR).
The amendments include the following practical expedients:

» A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly
required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a
movement in a market rate of interest.

Y

Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued.

Y

Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
Group intends to use the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 Amendments to IFRS 16

On 28 May 2020, the IASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to IFRS 16 Leases.
The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a
practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession
from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change
in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would
account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change were not a lease modification.

The amendment was intended to apply until 30 June 2021, but as the impact of the Covid-19
pandemicis continuing,on 31March 2021, the IASB extended the period of application of the practical
expedient to 30 June 2022. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or
after1April 2021. However, the Group has not received Covid-19-related rent concessions, but plans
to apply the practical expedient if it becomes applicable within allowed period of application.

2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to IFRS 3

In May 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the
Conceptual Framework. The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property and
equipment

Net movement in fixed deposits with original
maturities more than three months

Interest income received

Dividend income received
Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid

Term loans received

Finance costs paid on loans and borrowings
Finance costs paid on lease liability

Lease payments of principal amounts

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of foreign currency translation

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

Non-cash transactions
Additions to right of use asset

Additions to lease liabilities

The attached notes 1to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

12
13

10

2021 2020
KD KD
(9,554,025) (4,363,973)
284,635 58,644

- 500,000

27,452 52,962
23,751 18,072
(9,218187) (3,734,295)
(3,000,000) (6,000,000)
5,143,935 -
(148,329) (56,540)
(56,946) (61107)
(675,963) (543,061)
1,262,697 (6,660,708)
(867,214) (1108,722)
16,124 (6177)
3,426,777 4541676
2,575,687 3426777
806,566 1288193
(806,566) (1,288193)
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed)
(the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), for the year ended 31
December 2021 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Parent Company’s
Board of Directors on 10 March 2022, and are subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Parent Company in the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). The General Assembly of the Parent
Company’s shareholders has the power to amend these consolidated financial statements in the
AGM of the Parent Company’s shareholders.

The registered head office of the Parent Company is at Mirgab, Area No 1, Building No 8, Saleh
Sulaiman Al Jarah Real Estate Complex, Office 2, 5th floor, P.O. Box 22801, Safat 13089, Kuwait. The
Parent Company is a subsidiary of Qurain Petrochemical Industries Company K.S.C.P., a Company
listed on the Kuwait stock exchange.

The Parent Company was a closed Kuwaiti shareholding Company registered and incorporated in
Kuwait on 25 May 1979. On 21 January 2021, it filed an application with the Capital Market Authority
(CMA) in Kuwait for listing of its shares on the Kuwait Stock Exchange (KSE). The CMA gave the
approval on 23 September 2021 and as a result, the shares of the Parent Company were listed on
KSE from 17 October 2021.

The activities of the Parent Company as per the Articles of Association comprise of the following:
1. Carry out all road transport operations outside the State of Kuwait and in particular operations
related to carrying passengers by any mean of land transportation.

2. Buy, sell, rent, hire and import all kinds of trucks, vehicles, equipment and machinery, light and
heavy, and any necessary mean for stevedoring, land, sea materials transportation inside and
outside Kuwait.

3. Develop any private road transport industry or related to it (after getting the approval of the
Public Authority for Industry).

4. Clearance, shipping and stevedoring operations forimported and issued goods and packaging
goods of all kinds.

5. Participateinthe management, operation and maintenance and the establishment of maritime
and land ports and container terminals related to this activity.

6. Practicing all e-commerce activities, according to the Group’s activity.

7. Build and rent the necessary buildings for services and crafts related to stevedoring and land
and maritime transport.

8. Shipping and services of all kinds of vessels and supply ships and ships agents for companies.

9. Provide all transportation and airport management services, which include ground support
services for passengers, aircraft and aviation-related goods.

10. Owns moveable property and real estate to conduct its operations in the permissible limits
according to the law.

1. Using the available funds of the Parent Company by investing them in financial portfolios
managed by specialized authorities and companies.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2021 For the year ended 31 December 2021
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The attached notes 1to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
48 49
Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar



Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
As at 31 December 2021 For the year ended 31 December 2021
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The attached notes 1to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020 Notes 2021 Restated* Restated*
KD KD KD 2020 1January 2020
KD KD
Profit for the year 2,407,863 4,072,707 ASSETS
o Non-current assets
Other comprehensive income:
Property and equipment 7 43,626,046 36,890,603 36,477,235
Items that are or may be subsequently
reclassified to consolidated statement of Right of use assets 8 922,265 1,040,173 1133,861
income:
Exchange difference on translation (415) (8.414) 4454831 37,930,776 37,611,096
Current assets
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified )
to consolidated statement of income: Inventories 737,697 608,793 534,426
Revaluation of leasehold land 1,646,000 150,000 Financial assets at fair value through 20 215,401 254,037 21,748
other comprehensive income
Unreallized (loss) gain on financial assets at fair (38,636) 42,289
value through other Comprehensive income Trade receivables and prepoyments 9 7,190,675 7,916,751 717,031
Cash and cash equivalents 10 3,075,687 3,926,777 5,541,676
Other comprehensive income for the year 1,606,949 183,875
11,219,460 12,706,358 13,404,881
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 4,014,812 4,256,582
TOTAL ASSETS 55,767,771 50,637,134 51,015,977
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital n 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
Statutory reserve 12 6,360,614 6,111,806 5,692,824
Revaluation surplus 12 10,489,850 8,843,850 8,693,850
Fair value reserve 108,721 147,357 105,068
Foreign currency translation reserve (10,075) (9,660) (1,246)
Retained earnings 12,497,485 13,338,430 15,684,705
Total equity 44,446,595 43,431,783 45,175,201

The attached notes 1to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements. The attached notes 1to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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E I Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its Subsidiaries
\liavglrllgllrr:g evgﬁgter CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JASSIM

TRANSPORT & STEVEDORING COMPANY K.S.C. (Closed) (continued) somn 2020

Notes KD KD

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and Revenue 3 22,012,962 21,172,927
the consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent
Company’s Board of Directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in
accordance therewith. We further report that, we obtained all the information and explanations
that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements GROSS PROFIT 5,043,773 6,560,914
incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No.1 of 2016, as amended,

and its executive regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of

Incorporation and Articles of Association, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the Other income 5 334,597 444,697
best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No.1 of 2016, as amended,

and its executive regulations, as amended, nor of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of

Operating expenses 4 (16,969,189) (14,612,013)

Incorporatlop and Articles of Assqmatlon have occurrqd during the year ended 31 Decemb_er Administrative expenses 6 (2.712,785) (2.708141)

2021 that might have had a material effect on the business of the Parent Company or on its

financial position. Finance costs (177,504) (17,647)

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any material PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE CONTRIBUTION TO

violations of the provisions of Law No. 7 of 2010 concerning the Capital Markets Authority and KUWAIT FOUNDATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT

its related regulations during the year ended 31 December 2021 that might have had a material OF SCIENCES (KFAS), NATIONAL LABOUR SUPPORT

effect on the business of the Parent Company or on its financial position. TAX (NLST), ZAKAT, AND DIRECTORS’ FEES 2,488,081 4,179,823
KFAS (24,059) (41558)
NLST (10,100) -
Zakat (24,059) (41558)

§ Directors’ remuneration (22,000) (24,000)
\

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,407,863 4,072,707

WALEED A. AL OSAIMI

LICENCE NO. 68 A . .
EY BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 18 16 fils 27 fils

AL AIBAN, AL OSAIMI & PARTNERS

10 March 2022
Kuwait

The attached notes 1to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JASSIM
TRANSPORT & STEVEDORING COMPANY K.S.C. (Closed) (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JASSIM
TRANSPORT & STEVEDORING COMPANY K.S.C. (Closed) (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JASSIM
TRANSPORT & STEVEDORING COMPANY K.S.C. (Closed)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jassim Transport & Stevedoring
Company K.S.C. (Closed) (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the
Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of income, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JASSIM
TRANSPORT & STEVEDORING COMPANY K.S.C. (Closed)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has trade receivables amounted to KD 4,094,246
representing 7% of total assets.

The group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for receivables by establishing a
provision matrix that is based on historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment in which each debtors operate.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns.

Due to the significance of receivables and the subjectivity involved in arriving at the inputs used
for the purpose of the ECL calculation, this was considered as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:
We assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions used in the ECL calculation by comparing
them with historical data adjusted for current market conditions and forward-looking
information;
We performed substantive procedures to test, on a sample basis, the completeness and
accuracy of the information included in the debtors’ ageing report;
Further, in order to evaluate the appropriateness of management judgements, we verified on
a sample basis, the customer’s historical payment patterns and whether any post year-end
payments had been received up to the date of completing our audit procedures; and
We also considered the adequacy of the group’s disclosures relating to the ECL,
management’s assessment of the credit risk and their responses to such risks in Note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Other information included in the Group’s 2021 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the
information included in the Group’s 2021 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s
Board of Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the remaining
sections of the Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
Is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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the shareholders’ general assembly and voting mechanisms. The company complies with the
following when arranging for shareholder’s general assembly meetings:

< Send an invitation by the Board of Directors to the shareholders to the hold their meetings
including the agenda, time and venue of the meeting by advertising in accordance with the
mechanism specified in the Companies Law.

« Allow all shareholders to exercise the right to vote in person or by proxy without any obstacles
that lead to the prohibition of voting.

« Provide shareholders with an opportunity to participate effectively in meetings of the General
Assembly, discuss the agenda items, and direct questions in their regard to the members of the
Board of Directors and External Auditor.

« No fees are imposed on any category of shareholders for attending of the General Assembly
meetings, and there is no preferential advantage for any category against other categories of
shareholders.

The Ninth Rule:
Recognize the Legitimate Interests of Stakeholders

< Overview on the policies and procedures which ensures protection and acknowledgment of
the rights of stakeholders

Withinthe framework of its corporate governance policies,the Company follows policies for dealing
with stakeholders in recognition and protection of their rights. These policies include the need to
deal with stakeholders on the same terms applied by the company in dealing with members of the
board of directors without any discrimination or preference. They also include the mechanisms
to deal with stakeholders and meet their requirements appropriately while maintaining a good
relationship, respect the rights of shareholders and maintain their confidentiality of information.

< Overview of the methods of encouraging stakeholders to participate in following up the the
company’s various activities

JTC seeks to encourage stakeholders to participate in the follow-up of the company’s various
activities by providing the information and data related to its activities in a timely and transparent
manner. This is achieved through adopting a policy in which stakeholders can reportinappropriate
practices of the company and provide appropriate protection inits policy for the reporting parties.

The Tenth Rule:
Encourage and Enhance Performance

+ Overview of developing the processes which allow all Board Members and Executive
Management on receiving continuous training workshops

The company strives to continuously train and develop its human resources to achieve
better performance and governance. Training and development efforts contributes to the
enhancement and expansion of business It has a positive effect on the performance of the Board
and Management and enables them to fulfill their responsibilities and achieve better results.
Therefore, the company has activated a policy to continuously train its Board and Management,
and encourage participation in seminars and conferences related to the company’s business
with the aim to identify the latest developments and keep abreast of changes in the company’s
business sectors.

« The training programs, workshops and global conferences in whereas the managers have
participated during the fiscal year include:

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar

- Sales Coaching and training: 2 FULL DAYS (16t Jan 2021 & 18' Jan 2021) + 4 days (2 hour sessions) - 1
per week (as marked above)

JTC’s Sales Training initiative was aimed at optimizing sales performances by developing sales
effectiveness and efficancy. The objectives of the strategy were multiple pronged; to familiarize
the team with the best practices and tips in selling and sales management systems, enhancing
existing time management skills and selling activities, and to identify and adopt appropriate
selling behaviors needed to maximize performance. The duration of the training was two days
with JTC’s Sales team and the Division Heads.

+ Briefing on Board of Directors Evaluation collectively and individually:

The performance of the company’s Executive Management are evaluated periodically through
the Company’s approved evaluation mechanisms and KPIs related to Company as well as
departmental strategic objectives. However once the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
is formed, it shall set the KPI's of the Board Members and the evaluation standards as per the
Company policy approved by the Board of Directors.

The company relies on the self-evaluation system to assess the annually performance of the
members and committees of the Board of Directors. This system determines which aspects or
requirements require attention or development. As for executive management and employees,
they are evaluated periodically according to specific performance indicators linked to their
objectives, accordingly the requirements for development and training are determined according
to evaluation results.

« An overview of the efforts of the Board of Directors to create corporate values for employees
of the company through the achievement of strategic objectives and improved overall
performance rates.

The Board of Directors continuously emphasizes the importance of creating organizational values
for employees within the company by developing mechanisms and procedures that work to
achieve the strategic objectives and improve performance in the company. These mechanisms
and procedures also enhance the culture of compliance with laws and regulations that create
a disciplined work environment that follows the prevailing rules. Additionally, they raise the spirit
of responsibility and professional ethics, that result in enhanced employee performance and
effectiveness in the achievement of company objectives.

The Eleventh Rule:
Importance of Social Responsibility

JTC, being one of the earliest companies operating in the Kuwaiti market and is considered one
of the pillars and subtrates in its field; the company focuses its activities to support the society of
which it is part of and recognizes the importance of encouraging the active companies and its
social responsibility, as this has a positive impact on the entire society within which JTC operates.

On December 18, 2021, the Company has sponsored a group of students from the Faculty of
Engineering and Petroleum at Kuwait University who designed construction equipments, fully
supported them and encouraged them to move forward with their project.

The Company also donates annually an amount equivalent to (1%) of its annual earnings to
charities through “Masharee Al Khair” Charity Organization in contribution to its committment of
social responsibility towards people of Kuwait.

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar
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internal or other control systems. The reporter is granted the confidentiality and protection from
any retaliation or punishment for reporting these doubts. The company’s rules also mandate
maintaining the confidentiality of the internal information of the company and sets the procedures
and disciplinary consequences for violations to the code set for professional conduct.

« Overview of conflict of interest policies

The company follows a conflict of interest policy approved by its Board which aims to reduce
conflicts of interest situations that may arise from the company’s business process. This policy
includes clear examples of interest conflict situations and ways to address them. A conflict of
interest policy states that any member of the Board shall notify the Board of Directors of any
personal interests that the Board member may have in the business and contracts related to
the company’s business. Such notification is recorded in the minutes of Board meetings and the
member that has an interest in a certain business is not allowed to vote on a Board resolution
on that subject. The Chairman of the Board shall also notify the General Assembly upon meeting
regarding the businesses and contracts for which a member of the Board of Directors has a
personal interest along with a special report from the Auditor on the subject.

The Seventh Rule:
Ensure Timely and High-Quality Disclosure and Transparency

« Overview on implementation of transparent disclosure process

The company follows a policy based on disclosure and transparency aimedto enable shareholders,
investors and the public to know and follow the company’s activities, evaluate its performance and
ethical standards. Accurate disclosure in a timely manner creates an environment of trust and
confidence among investors and other stakeholders regarding the company’s financial position
and all aspects related to its activities, financial statements and projects. Therefore, mechanisms
of clear and transparent presentation and disclosure of the material information and all matters
relating to its activities has been developed. These include, financial statements, performance,
ownership and decision making. The Company, strives to abide by requirements and instructions
related to disclosure at the appropriate time issued by the various regulatory and supervisory
authorities.

« Overview of Company’s practice of keeping a register of disclosures related to Board Members
and Executive Management

The Company maintains a special register that contains the disclosures of members of the Board
of Directors and the Executive Management. It includes the data relating to their transactions
according to the insider trading disclosure rules for companies listed on Boursa Kuwait. The data
of the Register is updated periodically and contains information related to remunerations, salaries,
incentives and other financial advantages that are included in the annual report presented to the
General Assembly. The register is made available to any shareholder upon request free of charge.

« Overview of the the formation of the Investor Relations Unit

The organizational structure approved by the Board of Directors includes an investor affairs
unit. This unit provides the necessary data, information and reports to current and prospective
investors and answers their queries regarding the company. This unit is independent enough to
provide accurate data, information and reports on a timely manner through various appropriate
means.

+ Overview of the development of the information technology systems which the company is
dependent on for disclosure activities

The company relies, in its disclosures and communications with shareholders, investors and
stakeholders,onvarious means,includinginformationtechnology.The company’s website contains
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comprehensive information on its investments, financial reports and essential information. The
website also includes a section on corporate governance and investor affairs through which
the recent data are published to assist current and prospective shareholders and investors in
obtaining the necessary information about the company and assess its performance.

The Eighth Rule:
Respect the Rights of Shareholders

« Overview on the implementation of requirements of of determining and protecting the general
rights of shareholders to ensure equality and balance among shareholders

The company’s governance aims at achieving balance between the objectives of the company
and objective of its shareholders’, protecting their rights, and achieving fair dealing and equality
among all shareholders, so that no shareholders would receive any special treatment, regardless
of their position. The company does not at any time deny any shareholder an information or a
granted right.

The Company’s Articles of Association, regulations and internal policies also provide for the
procedures that guarantee the achievement of this objective, including the general shareholders’
rights guaranteed by the Company such as:

1. Register shareholding values in company records.

2. Dispose shares from the registration of ownership and transfer and [ or convert them.

3. Obtain the approved share of dividends.

4. Acquire the share of the company’s assets in case of liquidation.

5. Obtain the data and information about the company’s activity and its operational and
investment strategy in a regular and easy manner.

6. Review the shareholders register.

7. Participate in the meetings of the shareholders General Assembly and vote on its decisions.

8. Elect members of the Board of Directors.

9. Monitor the company’s performance in general, and board of directors’ performance in

particular.

10. Hold accountable the company’s Board of Directors or Executive Management and file the
claim of responsibility in the event of failure to perform the tasks entrusted to them.

« Overview on the formation of a share register held by a clearing agent to ensure continuos
follow up of the shareholders data

The Company has established a special register with Kuwait Clearing Company, that includes the
names, nationalities and domiciles of shareholders, and the number of shares owned by each of
them. The information in this register is maintained with highly confidentiality and protection

This registeris updated with any change to the datarecorded init,and the company’s shareholders
may request to view the register in accordance with the procedures of Kuwait Clearing Company.
Updated records of the company’s shareholders are also kept at the Investor Affairs Unit in the
company.

+ Overview on the methods of encouraging shareholders to participate in the voting process at
the general meetings

The company is keen to encourage shareholders to participate and vote in the meetings of the
company’s assemblies through the mechanisms established to participate in the meetings of
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Total remuneration granted for year 2021

1. Board of Directors (K.D/Year)

Remuneration and benefits of Members of Board of Directors

Total Remuneration & benefits through the parent Remuneration & benefits through the subsidiaries
number company
of
members Fixed Variable Fixed Variable
Health Annual Committee’s Health Monthly Annual Committee’s
insurance | remuneration | renumeration | insurance salaries remuneration | remuneration
(total for
the year)
5 0 22,000 0 0 0 0 0

2- Executive Management (K.D/Year)

Total Remuneration & Benefits through the parent company

executive

positions Fixed Variable
Monthly Health Annual Housing | Transportation’s | Social Leave Annual
salaries insurance tickets | allowance allowance Security | Salary | remuneration

(totol for the
year)
6 283,972 0 6,463 0 12170 3795 29,575 A

Note: There has been no substantial deviations from remuneration policy approved by Board of
Directors.

The Fourth Rule:
Safeguard Integrity of Financial Reporting

Commitments of the Board of Directors and Executive Management to the soundness and
integrity of financial reports

The Executive Management has made a written statement to the Board of Directors certifying
that the financial reports of the Company are presented soundly and fairly, and state all the
financial aspects of the Company including operational data and results. They further certify that
the financial data are prepared according to the international accounting standards approved
by the Capital Market Authority and that the Executive Management is responsible for the validity
and accuracy of these data.

In turn, the Board of Directors of JTC undertakes to its shareholders through this report to present
its financial statements in a sound, fair and accurate manner, and all members have signed this
declaration and it is maintained in company records.

Audit Committee formation

The Company formed an Audit Committee in line with the nature of the company’s activities in.
The Audit Committee consisting of three members, shall include an independent Board member
upon election or nomination. Committee members possess the necessary scientific qualifications
and professional experience in the accounting and financial fields. There was no contradiction
between the recommendations of the Audit Committee and the decisions of the Board of Directors.
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Independence and impartiality of the external auditor

The External Auditor is appointed upon the approval of the General Assembly based on
the recommendation of the Board of Directors. The External Auditor of the company is fully
independent from the Company and its Board of Directors and shall not carry out any additional
assignments for the Company related to audit and auditing activities, which may affect neutrality
or independence of the External Audit. The Audit Committee also verifies the independence of the
external auditor, and reviews and discusses the issued annual and quarterly financial reports by
the external auditor before submitting them to the Board for final decision/ approval.

The Fifth Rule:
Sound Systems of Risk Management and Internal Controls

On the 2Ist of December, 2021 JTC has signed a contract with a specialized company to be
responsible for measuring and following up various types of risks that may face the company
and report on these risks. This Company is fully independent and reports directly to the Risk
Management Committee. It possesses the authorities necessary for performing its tasks to the
fullest and does not have any financial authorities or powers. The Department recruits the qualified
human resources that has the necessary professional qualifications.

The Company’s approved organizational structure also has an independent internal audit
department that reports directly to the Audit Committee. This department effectively analyzes
the company’s internal control environment.

The company relies on internal control and monitoring systems in all its activities by observing
the principles of internal control of the dual control process, namely the proper identification of
authorities and responsibilities, complete separation of duties and non-conflict of interest, dual
examination and control, and dual signature. This is achieved through a clear delegation of
authorities’ structure for financial and administrative duties.

The Sixth Rule:
Promote Ethical Standards and Responsible Conduct

« Overview of the charter which consists of the standards of the ethical values and code of
conduct

The company implements its Board approved Code of Conduct, which includes standards and
policies that consolidate the culture of professional conduct and ethical values of the company
and the basic principles of professional ethics within the framework of its corporate governance.
The promotion of these standards within the company enhances investor confidence in the
company’s integrity and soundness of its financials.

The Code of Conduct is based on the principle of compliance of each member of the board of
directors and executive management with all laws, regulations and professional standards for
the interests of the company, its shareholders and other stakeholders. The code also includes the
obligation of each member not to exploit the powers and authorities of their positions, and the
assets and resources of the company in order to achieve a personal interest for themselves or for
others. The code also includes the mechanisms that prevent members of the Board and staff from
the exploitation of insider information that came into their possession by virtue of their positions
within the company or assist others to achieve a personal interest and to act justly and fairly with
all parties in the company.

The company has developed an internal reporting system to facilitate reporting by employees
regarding their doubts about improper practices or suspicions about financial reporting,
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5. Examine the Company’s proposed transactions and deals with related parties and recommend
thereon to the Board of Directors.

3. Nominations and Remunerations Committee

Objective:

The objective of the committee is to assist the Board of Directors in complying with corporate
governance principle relating to nominations and remunerations for members of the Board of
Directors and Executive Management. It recommends the nomination and re-nomination of
directors and executive management members; establishes remunerations policies, as well as
reviewing the needs and skills required for membership of the Board of Directors and determining
the different categories of remunerations.

Date of formation and duration of the committee:

The committee is not formed as of today, however once formed the its validity period shall be
similar to the Board's term of three years. No chairman or member has been elected yet. The
process is contengint to the election of the independent board member.

Duties of the Committee:

1. Recommend the nomination, appointment, reappointment and removal of members of the
Board of Directors, members of the Committee and members of the Executive Management
and make recommendations regarding the above to the Board.

2. Ensurethatthe remuneration of directors and executive management members are consistent
with the long-term interests of shareholders within the appropriate control framework.

3. Create a clear relationship between the executive management performance and rewards
remunerations

4. Review and recommend the executive management’s remunerations.
5. Ensure the continued applicability of independency of the independent board member.

6. Review company’s Corporate Governance report for the year and present it to the Board for
approval.

A summary of how to apply the requirements that allow the Members of the Board of Directors to
obtain accurate and timely information and data:

The company’s executive management provides Board members with the necessary information
that enables them to make the appropriate decisions at the right time to achieve their obligations.
Effective communication and relationship between the members of the Board of directors and
the Executive management is at the core of management process to achieve company’s vision
and objectives. A separation between duties and responsibilities of the Board of directors and
Executive Management exists to ensure independence to achieve company and stakeholder
goals. The Secretary of the Board acts as the liaison between Board members and executive
management for required information and reports. Board of directors holds periodic meetings
with the Executive management to discuss ongoing business progress reports and to discuss
information regarding company activities.
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The Third Rule:
Recruiting Highly Qualified Candidates for the Board of Directors and Executive Management

About the Nominations and Remunerations Committee

The Board of Directors upon forming the Nominations and Remunerations Committee which
shall consist of three members, including an independent member, to assist in the nomination
and selection of members of the Board of Directors, members of the Board’'s Committees and
members of the Executive Management. The committee shall select candidates according to
the company’s needs and the required skills to manage its business and sets the principles for
Board and Executive Management remunerations. The Committee submits its remuneration
recommendations for initial approval by the Board of Directors and final approval by the General
Assembly of the Company.

Report on remuneration and incentive system for Board of Directors and Executive Management
for year 2021

Policy in brief

The Company follows the remuneration and incentives standards for the Board Members, in line
with the requirements of the applicable laws of the State of Kuwait and the rules of governance.
The total remuneration shall not exceed 10% of the net profits of the Company (after deduction
of depreciation, reserves and shareholders’ dividends of not less than 5% of the company’s
capital or any higher percentage, as provided for in the Company’s Articles of Association). The
remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors is approved by the General Assembly in its
annual meeting, upon the recommendation of the Nominations and Remunerations Committee.
The independent Board member may be exempted from the maximum remuneration, subject to
the approval of the Company’s Ordinary General Assembly.

As for the Executive Management remuneration, it is determined based on the set KPIs linked to
the management objectives for each functional level and performance results achieved by the
company, including:

Fixed Remuneration:

These remunerations are determined by the level of responsibilities assigned, the levels of expertise
and competencies of each employee and the career path of the job. This type is determined
including the allowances and benefits according to the employment functional level and the
approved employee salary scheme.

Performance-linked Remunerations:

This portion of remunerations is allocated based on the individual performance of executive
management members and the overall performance of the company. The annual remunerations
proposalis prepared by the HumanResources Departmentanditis calculated based onthe specific
allotments and performance evaluations of each employee. The remuneration is calculated
according to a fixed criterion for the calculation of remunerations either (as a fixed amount for
each functional level or a percentage of the salary or salary multiplier). The remunerations amount
is determined based on the employee’s performance evaluation rate.
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1. Audit Committee

Date of formation and duration:

The committee was formed in 2019 prior to the listing of the shares in the Kuwaiti stock market,
with a validity period of the current Board term of three years, however on November 9th, 2021 the
committee was separated from the Risk Management Committee as a result of Capital Market
Authority’s decision.

Objective:

To assist the Board of Directors in implementing its responsibilities effectively with regard
to reviewing financial reports and internal controls, and making the necessary related
recommendations to the Board of Directors.

Committee members and meetings during the fiscal year:

Meeting # 1 2 3 4 5
Date 19/01/2021 | 18/03/2021 | 28/07/2021 | 19/08/2021 | 09/1/2021
Members of the Committee Position Attendance
Mr. Sadoun Abdullah Ali Chairman v v v v v
Mr. Sulaiman Mohammed
Shaheen Al Rubaie Member / / Y / Y
Mr. Muhaiman Ali Behbehani Member v v v v v

Duties of the Committee include:

1. Review the interim and annual financial statements and report of the external auditor, and
determine any significantimpacts on the financial position of the company and approve them
preliminarily before submission to the Board of Directors for final approval.

2. Analyze the observations of external auditors on the financial statements of the company and
follow up on action that has to be taken in their regard if applicable.

3. Analyze the accounting principles and policies of the company and examine any changes that
may affect the financial position of the company and identify the reasons for these changes
whenever required.

4. Ensure the company’s compliance with applicable accounting laws and regulations.

5. Hold periodic meetings with the external auditor and at least four times with the internal auditor
and whenever needed, at the request of the committee or the auditors.

6. Review the results of the internal audit reports and ensure that corrective actions have been
taken regarding the observations in the reports.

7. Review the charter, work plan and internal audit needs.

8. Oversee the work of the internal audit department in the company in order to verify its
effectiveness in carrying out its duties and tasks.

9. Appoint an independent auditor to prepare a report reviewing the internal control systems
to be submitted to the Committee and submit this report the Capital Markets Authority on an
annual basis.

10. Review and initially approve the policies and procedures of the internal audit department.

1. Recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment or reappointment of the external
auditors or their replacement and determine their fees.
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Committee achievements during the year:

1. Review the interim and annual financial statements and report of the external auditor, and
determine any significant impacts on the financial position of the company before submission
to the Board of Directors for final approval.

2. Reviewed Company’s Annual Internal Audit report.

3. Reviewed amendments and updates on various internal policies and procedures in the
company.

4. Recommended to the Board the assignment of the company’s external auditor and determine
their fees.

5. Reviewed of departmental internal audit reports.

6. Recommended to the Board of Directors the separation of the Audit and Risk Committees
pursuant to the Letter addressed to the Company by the Capital Markets Authority in this
regard.

2. Risk Management Committee

Date of formation and duration:

The committee was formed since 2019, prior to the listing of the shares in the Kuwaiti stock market,
with a validity period of the current Board term of three years, however on November 9th, 2021
the committee was separated from the Audit Committee as a result of Capital Market Authority’s
decision

Objective:

To assist the Board of Directors in implementing its responsibilities effectively with regard to Risk
Assessment and Compliance through reviewing and analyzing the Risks that the Company might
be exposed to, and provide the related recommendations to the Board.

Committee members and meetings during the fiscal year:

Members of the Committee Meeting # 1 2 3 4 5

26/10/2020 | 31/1/2021
Date 19/01/2021 | 18/03/2021 W hi 09/11/2021
28/07/2021 | 19/08/2021

Position Attendance
Mr. Sadoun Abdullah Ali Chairman J v v v v
Mr. Sulaiman Mohammed
) Member v v v v v
Shaheen Al Rubaie
Mr. Muhaiman Ali Behbehani Member J v v v v

Duties of the Committee include:

1. Prepare and review risk management strategies and policies prior to obtaining final approval
from the Board of Directors and ensure that they are in proportionate with the size and activities
of the Company.

2. Review periodic Audit reports submitted by the risk management for the purpose of monitoring
the potentialrisks, reviewing the efficiency and effectiveness of the systems and the procedures
for monitoring and measuring the risks in the company.

3. Ensure that sufficient resources and systems are available to manage risk.

4. Assist the Board of Directors with identifying and assessing acceptable risk limits to the
Company, and ensure that the Company does not exceed -on any aspect- the approved risk
levels.
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NBFC, infrastructure and education. During his
career in Research, he spearheaded a team of
analysts in sectors including telecom, utilities
(power & water), banking, cement, FMCG and
pharmaceuticals.

Mr. Bhatt holds a Bachelor's degree in
Commerce from University of Mumboai, India
and Post-Graduate Diploma in Financial
Management (PGDFM) from L. N. Welingkar
Institute of Management Development &
Research, Mumbai, India.

Meetings of the Board of Directors during the Fiscal Year 2021

Meeting No. 1 2 3 4 5 6
Meeting date 19/01/2021 | 21/03/2021 | 28/07/2021 | 19/08/2021 | 09/11/2021 | 28/12/2021

Name of the Member Position Attendance

. Chairman of the Board of

Ali Fawaz Al Sabah birectors v v v v v v

Sadoun Abdullah Ali Vice Chairman v v J J v v

Sulaiman Mohammed Member of the Board of

Shaheen Al Rubadie Directors v v v v/ v/ v/

. . . Member of the Board of

Muhaiman Ali Behbehani Directors v Vv Vv v v v
Member of the Board of

Chandresh Subodh Bhatt Directors v v Vv v v v

« The requirement for minuting, organizing, and recording Board of Director meeting minutes
is conducted according to the approved Board of Director's Charter. Section 8 and 9 of the
Charter details the procedures for organizing board meetings, and preparing its Agenda and
method of voting and recording its Minutes of meeting.

The Second Rule:
Sound designation of responsibilities and duties.

Board of Directors approved Charter defines the responsibilities and obligations of Members of
the Board. Executive Management responsibilities and obligations are defined annually based
on their set of objectives for that financial year and their assigned budget. The performance of
Board of directors and executive management are periodically evaluated according to their Key
performance indicators. Authorities and powers granted to the company’s Executive management
are according to Board approved delegation of authority matrix in which such powers are clearly
defined.

Main responsibilities of the Board of Directors

p—

Approve, amend and direct the main objectives, strategies, plans and policies of the company.
Set the objectives to assess the performance of the executive management.

Approve the annual budgets, and approve the interim and annual financial statements.

Ea < R

Ensure company compliance with the policies and procedures that guarantee company’s
compliance with the internal systems and regulations set forth.
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5. Ensure accuracy and integrity of data and information to be disclosed according to the rules
of transparency and disclosure.

6. Establish a company-wide corporate governance code, and supervise its effectiveness and
amend it when needed.

Board of Director’s achievements during the year:

1. Approved the interim and annual financial statements, year budget, , in addition to approving
business plan taking into consideration both direct and indirect effect of COVID-19 pandemic
on the company and its affiliate companies.

2. Approved the offering memorandum for the private placement of 40% of the share capital.
Listing of the company’s shares at the Primary market of the Kuwaiti stock exchange- ‘Boursa
Kuwait’ in accordance with the regulatory laws of the concerned regulating body - ‘Capital
Markets Authority’.

3. Approval the annual financial statements and acknowledgment of its accuracy and
management report and delegating the executive management to contact the ministry of
commerce and industry to organize the general assembly meeting of the company.

4. Recommend to the General Assembly to distribute 20% of the share’s nominal value equal to
20 Kuwaiti fils to each registered shareholder at the assigned end of record day in accordance
with the regulatory procedures of cash distributions and record dates, and recommend to
deduct 1% of the annual profits to charity through “Masharee Al Khair” Charity Organization.

5. Recommend to the General Assembly the distribution of Board of director’'s remuneration
for year 2021 Call to convene the General Assembly meeting and approve its Agenda for the
financial year 2021.

6. Approved the separation of the Audit and the Risk Management Committees and approved
the split Charters of both committees.

7. Approved the conversion of the legal entity of Qatar subsidiary into a Single Person Company
with limited liability.

8. Recommended to the General Assembly whose in turn approved purchasing and selling of
Company’s Treasury shares within the legal limit of 10% of its Captial shares.

9. Followed up the Company’s overall tasks and performance in light of COVID-19 global and local
impacts.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors forms specialized committees and sets a charter clarifying its powers and
responsibilities in order to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities. A sufficient number of non-
executive and independent board members are appointed in these committees who possess the
necessary qudlifications for membership. These committees are responsible for their functions
before the Board of Directors, but this does not relieve the Board of Directors of their responsibility
for the duties assigned to these committees.

The following is an overview of the independent specialized committees established by the Board
of Directors:
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Sadoun
Abdullah Ali

Vice Chairman

Non-Executive

Mr. Ali joined JTC’s Board in 2019 as the Vice
Chairman with his wide experienceininvestment,
banking and capital markets. He is also the
Vice Chairman and CEO of QPIC in addition to
being a current board member of United Gulf
Holding Company, Bank of Baghdad, Advanced
Technology Company, United Industries and
Burgan Bank. He has been a member of the Audit
Committee of The Chairman’s Club since 2004.

Before joining QPIC, Mr. Ali held different positions
in Kamco Invest since 2006, including CEO and
Managing Director from 2010 until 2012. From
1997 until 2006 Mr. Ali was Accounts and Finance
Manager in KIPCO.

Ali holds a Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration with concentration in Finance
from Ashland University, Ohio, USA.

04/09/2019

currently the Managing Director of Investment
Management at Kamco Invest. Mr. Al Rubaie
is also a member of both the Middle East and
Frontiers Market Councils of the EMPEA and is a
board member of humerous companies in the
GCC and Turkey.

Al-Rubaie received his MBA from London Business
School and a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Operations Research and Industrial Engineering
from Cornell University, Ithaca, New York.

Sulaiman
Mohammed
Shaheen Al
Rubaie

Member of
the Board of
Directors

Non-Executive

Mr. Al-Rubacie has more than 19 years of
experience in merchant banking and private
equity. He has a wealth of experience across
many areas including advisory, mergers &
acquisitions, equity and debt capital markets
and restructuring.

He started his career with boutique investment
bank, Brask and Company (Acquired by
Kaupthing Bank), in their placement and later in
their M&A team with a focus on the high growth
industries. He then moved back to Kuwait to
join the investment banking team at Global
Investment House KS.C.C. (“Global,” acquired by
Kamco Investment Company KS.C.P.) where he
led and co-led the formation, placement, and
strategic monitoring of companies in various
sectors. He later joined Eastgate Capital Group,
the private equity and real estate investment
arm of National Commercial Bank of Saudi
Arabia, in Dubai and was a member of their
transactions team. He joined Global again
in 2010 as Vice President in the Alternative
Asset Management Group and managed
the overall restructuring of the Private Equity
department. Within PE, Mr. A-Rubaie became
Chairman of JTC and has been instrumental
in the transformation of the company from a
family owned business to a diversified logistics
and equipment rental power house. He led JTC
from 2010 to 2019. He then took the responsibility
of continuing the reformation of the Real
Estate and International Asset Management
units in Global as Head of Alternatives Asset
Management. His responsibilities continued to
grow within the organization until he became
Deputy Chief Executive Officer in 2017, and Chief
Executive Officer in 2019. He was instrumental
in the acquisition of Global Investment House
by Kamco Invest, representing the sellers. He is

04/09/2019

Muhaiman Ali
Behbehani

Member of
the Board of
Directors

Non-Executive

Mr. Behbehani has more than 21 years of
experience in business development activities
primarily in Energy sector and he joined the
board of JTC in 2019 as a board member. He is
the Vice Chairman and CEO of United Oil Projects
Co in addition to holding several key profile
positions; board member of Kuwait National
Petroleum Services Company, board member
of Kuwait Olefins Company, Chairman of United
Precision Drilling Company and Vice Chairman
of Al-Khorayef Holding Co.

Mr. Behbehani holds a Bachelor of Mechanical
Engineering from University of Missouri and
University of Toledo.

04/09/2019

Chandresh
Subodh Bhatt

Member of
the Board of
Directors

Non-Executive

Mr. Bhatt has over 27 years of experience,
spanning over private equity and equity research.
He joined Global Investment House’s (acquired
by Kamco Invest) private equity team from the
research department 8 years ago to manage
the portfolio companies. Within Kamco's private
equity team as a board representative and a
portfolio manager of JTC, over the years, Mr. Bhatt
is involved in development and implementation
of corporate strategy, expansion plans and
implementation of restructuring initiatives.
Bhatt was the Vice Chairman of JTC from 2016
to 2019. In Kamco's private equity department,
he is heading ASA (Analytics, Support &
Administration) functions. As part of ASA, he is
responsible for the department’s reporting in
relation to portfolio companies and the funds.
He also plays a key role in the department’s
compliance and risk functions as well as in the
budgeting exercise. With his equity research
background, he is of great assistance in terms
of deal sourcing, evaluation, due diligence
and valuation. He is also actively engaged in
managing portfolio companies in Kuwait and
in India through board representation. He has
wide industry relationships which have been
utilized from time to time to source proprietary
transactions in sectors such as healthcare,
NBFC, infrastructure and education. During his
career in Research, he spearheaded a team of
analysts in sectors including telecom, utilities
(power & Woter), banking, cement, FMCG and
pharmaceuticals.

04/09/2019
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JTC - Corporate Governance Report for the year 2021

Jassim Transport and Stevedoring Company (JTC) is committed to applying the best practices in
the field of corporate governance based on the belief that the principles of sound management
and institution efficiency depend on the continued application of these standards. In order to
achieve this, JTC is committed to implementing the applicable principles of governance issued
C O R PO RATE by the Capital Markets Authority for companies listed on Boursa Kuwait. This implementation is
guaranteed to consolidate and develop the governance culture throughout the company and
among its employees to achieve the best protection and balance between the interests of the

G OV E R N A N ‘ E R E P 0 RT company management and its shareholders and other related stakeholders.

The company’s Board of Directors and Executive Management established the governance
structure through the policies, rules and regulations that governs its business, and define the
responsibilities, tasks and duties of each member of its management, committees and employees.
This system is developed and modified whenever necessary to ensure the achievement of its
objective.

Since the pubilic listing of its shares, JTC has committed itself to initiate the implementation of all
Corporate Governance standards in the best practice and it will be conmmitted to subsequently
submit the related reports on a timely manner and in accordance with Capital Markets Authority
standards.

This report aims to provide a brief overview of the implementation of corporate governance
requirements and procedures in the company to the shareholders:

The First Rule:
Board of Directors Composition at Jassim Transport and Stevedoring Company (Public K.S.C)

Date of election

Name Position Membership | Academic qualification and experience [ appointment
of the Secretary
Ali Fawaz Al Chairman of Non-Executive |In addition to holding the position of the 04/09/2019
Sabah the Board of Chairman of the Board of Directors, Sheikh Ali
Directors Al Sabah joined JTC Board in 2019 as Chairman

with his wide experience in the fields of trade and
FO R TH E YEAR 202] industrial projects management. He currently
holds the position of Vice-Chairman & CEO at
Gulf Glass Manufacturing Company (GGMC), a
Board Member in Nafais Holding Company since
2017 and he is also the Chairman of Basil Salem
Al-Sabah Motor Racing Club since 2010.

Furthermore, Sheikh Ali has held several previous
administrative and executive roles in various
companies and institutions such as being the
General Manager of Rihana General Trading &
Contracting Company from 2009 to 2017, and
a member of the board of Educational Holding
Group Company from 2017 to 2019.

20 21
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Net Income (KWD million)

84
7.8
7.0
6.3
52
4]
I 24

FY 2015  FY 2016 FY 2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY 2020 FY 2021

12.6%
10.6%

Total Assets

16.2%

el

15.3%

8.0%
50.3 49.5 52.8 50.9 510 50.6 55.8
| | | | | |
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B Total Assets (KWD million) ==0==Return on Assets

Earnings and dividends per share

53.3 529 561

47.0 46.3
440
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34.4
272
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Shareholders’ Equity

18.4% 19.2%

43.0

FY 2016

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021

B Shareholders' Equity (KWD million) ==8=Return on Equity
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In addition to the business challenges
explained above, another factor behind
the relative drop in profitability is that
2020 results included the effect of multiple
positive one-off items, most of which were
related to the early stage of the pandemic,
which did not recur in 2021.

Future Outlook

As we enter into 2022, we are cautiously
optimistic about our prospects for the near
term, and remain bullish about our long
term plans. The world’s eagerness to put
the pandemic behind it has led to improving
economic and business conditions, which
we are now seeing in our target geographies.
Our Shuaiba operations and MEW contract
are now running smoothly, and are
expected to achieve their full potential in
2022 as their first full year of execution.
Although some supply chain bottlenecks
persist globally, we expect cargo volumes
in Kuwait to increase from 2022 - though
recent geopolitical developments may
present new challenges.

We consider Warehousing as the
next frontier for our growth. Our first
temperature-controlled warehouse, which
entered construction phase in 2021, is
expected to be open for business by the
third quarter of 2022. We plan to build more
warehouses in the coming years; at least
one more warehouse is expected to enter
construction phase within 2022.

Equipment Leasing is a cyclical business
which is heavily dependent on government
project spending for growth. In Qatar,
recently announced projects such as North
Field Gas Expansion will drive increased
demand over the next few years. In Kuwait,
while minor improvements are expected
from the post-COVID recovery, we don’t
expect a significant rise in demand before
2023.

We expect Saudi Arabia to drive most of our
future long term growth in Power Rental.
Overthe pastfew years, we have established
a strong base in the country, from which
we hope to drive significant growth going
forward. We hope to maintain our current
leadership position in this business in the
Kuwait market, and will focus on higher-
margin segments of the market.

Although the past couple of years have
been a difficult period for JTC, we are
pleased that the diversified nature of our
business portfolio and our strong execution
capabilities in all segments that we operate
in, have helped us weather the storm much
better than most other companies in similar
businesses. We are confident that as we
continue to execute our strategic goals, we
will return to our growth trajectory in the
coming years.

Adel Kohari
Chief Executive Officer
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CEO'S
STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

FY 2021 was a challenging year for JTC.
Most of our regular business segments
continued to be under pressure during
the year from the economic impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic. However, 2021
was also a year when we made important
strides forward for realizing our long-term
vision for the company. We were successful
in launching and scaling up two new
businesses during the year: stevedoring
operations at Shuaiba port, and execution
of a new logistics contract with Kuwait’s
Ministry of Electricity & Water (MEW).
Our strategic plan to build temperature-
controlled warehouses in our facility at Mina
Abdullah entered an important stage, with
our first warehouse starting construction in
mid-2021. We expanded our operations in
Saudi Arabia and Qatar. We also became
a public shareholding company in 2021,
listing on Boursa Kuwait in October.

JTC Power Rental had an excellent year,
achieving significant growth in both Kuwait
and Saudi Arabia. Increased demand
from Artificial Lift operations in Kuwait Oil
Company (KOC) was the main driver for

the growth in Kuwait. We continued on
our long-term strategic plan to expand our
KSA operations by building capacity in the
country.

Our Contract Logistics and Ports
Management divisions faced several
challenges during the year. In early 2021,
the Kuwait government announced the
withdrawal of diesel fuel subsidies from
logistics and equipment companies
starting from April 2021 - not only did
this lead to our fuel costs nearly doubling
from the second quarter, but it also led to
a significant decline in demand for our fuel
transportation services. Cargo volumes
saw a drop, especially in the second
half of the year, due to several reasons:
global semiconductor shortages affecting
automobile manufacturing, and container
shortages around the world. The slowdown
in construction project activity in Kuwait
also led to subdued demand for freight
transportation services in the country.
Despite such challenges, scaling up of our
stevedoring operations at Shuaiba port and
the MEW contract helped the two divisions
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mitigate drops in other segments, though
these new operations had high initial costs
during the year.

Market conditions for our Equipment
Leasing division have been weak for the
past few years, due to delays in awards
of large new projects in Kuwait, further
exacerbated by the pandemic. After the
expiry of our 5-year contract with Kuwait
National Petroleum Company (KNPC), it
was renewed for a year from January 2021
at relatively unfavorable terms - this also
adversely impacted the division during
the year. In contrast to Kuwait, the market
in Qatar picked up in 2021, which helped

us expand our presence and grow our
business there.

Financial Highlights

In 2021, JTC’s revenue grew by 4% to
KWD 22.0 million, up from 21.2 million in
2020. Revenues in all three of our operating
geographies increased during the year.

Despite the top line expansion, our earnings
declined in 2021. Our total net profit for the
year is KWD 2.4 million, 41% below the
4.1 million reported in 2020. As a result,
our earnings per share (EPS) declined to
16 fils, versus 27 fils in the previous year.

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

Greetings.

On behalf of Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Company’s (JTC) Board of Directors,
| am pleased to present to you the company’s Annual Report and consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31/12/2021, to brief you on the
operational results of your Company and its subsidiaries.

For the financial year, JTC achieved
revenue of around KWD 22 million, 4%
higher than the previous year, and net
profit of KWD 2.4 million, 41% below the
previous year. The results reflect the
impact of COVID-19 global pandemic
on the company as well as the entire
business environment during the
past year; however, the company has
managed to strategically navigate
this unprecedented period while
maintaining positive results.

During 2021, a private placement for
40% of the Company’'s share capital
was successfully completedresultingin
an increased number of shareholders,
resulting in JTC’s shares to be publicly
listed in the main market of Kuwaiti
stock exchange in October.

Despite challenging market conditions,
JTC had several successes and
achievements during the year. The
company commenced operations as
an aggregate handling contractor at
Shuaiba port in 2021. A new contract
with Kuwait’s Ministry of Electricity and
Water was initiated at the beginning of
the year. The construction of JTC's first
temperature-controlled  warehouse
at Mina Abdullah began during 202,
with a plan to expand this segment by
building more similar warehouses in
the coming years. The company also
expanded its operations in Qatar and
KSA markets during the year.

Despite all the obstacles that we and
the entire business environment have
faced due to impact of the Coronavirus
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pandemic, JTC was able to swiftly
adapt to the situation with the least
possible damage and achieve the
results outlined above. In this context,
the Board of Directors of the General
Assembly of the Shareholders has
recommended the distribution of a
cash dividend equivalent to (16%) of
the par value per share, equivalent to
16 fils per share, and amounting to a
total value of KWD 2.4 million, subject
to obtaining the necessary approval of
the General Assembly and the relevant
authorities.

JTC’s Board of Directors would like to
express, on behalf of you, its gratitude
and to extend its sincere appreciation
to HH Prince of Kuwait and to his Crown

Prince for his generous support of
Kuwaiti citizens, residents of Kuwait
and national companies operating in
the Kuwaiti market.

Finally, the Board of Directors is hereby
extending its greatest appreciation
and gratitude to all JTC employees for
their outstanding efforts and continued
dedication which have contributed to
the permanence of its success and the
achievement of its objectives, looking
forward to creating more value for our
dear shareholders in the upcoming
years.

Ali Fawaz Al Sabah
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Jassim Transport & Stevedoring Co.KS.CP. | Kuwait | KSA | Qatar
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OUR CORE VALUES

Our Core Values

Customer Focus

To provide excellent service to all customers by understanding their business,
responding to their needs, and delighting them always.

Integrity

To follow our moral and ethical convictions and do the right thing in all
circumstances; to conduct ourselves with the highest levels of honesty,
dependability, professionalism, and ethical standards.

Teamwork

To work collectively with a shared purpose and vision, support each other to face
challenges, and solve them.

Ownership

To take personal responsibility and accountability for our actions in all areas of
our work.

Respect

To value and respect each individual while nurturing an environment that helps
the organization flourish as a team.

QHSE

To deliver our services with the utmost focus on the quality of work, health and
safety of our employees and other stakeholders, and care for the environment.
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OUR HISTORY

1986

Acquired ports services
license for Shuwaikh
Port

2005

Expanded Equipment
Leasing to Qatar

2010

0 60 0 0 O ©

Launched Power Rental
services

1979

Founded as an inland
transportation Company
in Kuwait

1996

Launched equipment
rental services

2008

Opened custom bonded
warehouse (CBW) at
Shuwaikh Port
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2016

Converted from W.L.L. to
K.S.C.C.

2019

60% stake acquired by
Qurain Petrochemical
Industries (QPIC), thus
becoming a part of
KIPCO Group

2021

Listed on the Kuwait
stock exchange

Q@ 0 0 60 6 ©

2015

Expanded Power Rental
to KSA

2018

Added 700 ton mobile
and 650 ton crawler
cranes to fleet

2020

Commenced operations
in Shuaiba port for
aggregate and general
cargo stevedoring
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JASSIM TRANSPORT &
STEVEDORING CO. K.S.C.P.

OUR MISSION

JTCseekstobe oneoftheleading
service providers in the GCC for
Ports Management, Contract
Logistics, Equipment Leasing,

and Power Rental. Using a

diversified mix of quality assets,
state-of-the-art infrastructure,
and talented people, we create
a safe and reliable customer

experience.

INTRODUCTION

JASSIM TRANSPORT & STEVEDORING CO. K.S.C.P. (JTC) was founded in 1979 divisions. For more than 40

as an inland transportation company. Over the years, the company has years, we have been one of the

undergone significant change. JTC today is a dynamic, innovative, and highly leading service providers for

responsive customer-focused organization. With offices in Kuwait, Saudi Ports Management, Contract

Arabia & Qatar, we work with clients in various sectors in the GCC providing Logistics, Equipment Leasing,

professional, high-quality, and cost-effective solutions through our operating and Power Rental.
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H.H. Sheikh Nawaf Al-Ahmad Al-Jaber Al-Sabah H.H. Sheikh Mishal Al-Ahmad Al-Jaaber Al-Sabah
Amir of the State of Kuwait Crown Prince of the State of Kuwait
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